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MISSION {®an

We are committed to creating

value for stakeholders by providing
comprehensive and innovative solutions
that achieve high quality results.
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e Customer Focus
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* Integrity
FTEHE

e Teamwork
BREEH

e Innovation
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e Pursuit of Excellence
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
REREORE

Awarded a re-development
works contract of 3 Travessa
do Faisao, Macau.

Won a gold award and two
merit awards at the Best
Property Safety Management

Award. AERPYILES 3 RHER
THg -

K [ERTEYEER

ANEE| SRNMIBERE o
Received the JobMarket

Employer of Choice Award.

Synergis’ mobile phone
applications “Synergis
Community” and “SICA” won
two awards in the Quality
Improvement and Experience
Sharing Convention (QIESC).

TENE JobMarket 2 #i & 3 A

RIES L TFHIEMIE Synergis
Community F1 SICA &15 [8
EWELHBRINE ] MEKRLE-

Mar 2018

Provision of pre-
construction consultancy
services to the A&A and
renovation of a church
property in Kowloon Tong.

\ Awarded the 15 years Plus Caring Company
Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for 2 consecutive years.

BEMTEEELSRGHEEE (165
Plus B RREAER] F=RTR

AEENBEEEHEYE
DNBGE R BT — SR
TA2EERIARTS -

Published our first
standalone Environmental,

VES7777

\ Awarded the property
management services

contract of Grenville House
in Mid-Levels Central.

AEEPFILREZENYE
ERREEH °
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Social and Governance
Report to announce our
sustainable development
programmes.
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May 2018

Provision of facility management
services to Malvern College
Hong Kong.

REERAXERBREHR
b IR AR

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR

REF KB 08

Awarded of renovation works
contract of Novotel Citygate Hong
Kong.

R RO A & 1 SR OB B RERT
THE e

(Hong Kong Section).

Provision of fitting-out works to B1-M restaurant at West Kowloon Station

A TN B1-M(BBR) BB TIE -

Awarded the renovation works
contract of the washrooms of
Watson Centre.

AEEEE KA O 2 ERELFHA
B3I -

Set a record high by receiving 185 property
and security services awards from various
regions, of which the New Territories North
topped others as it alone attained 68 awards.

RERYMERRLEEHEIZ185HZIR - A

BEHm -

BRI R ESCSERR -

Won several new contracts of the
Hong Kong International Airport
(HKIA), including improvement
works of HKIA T1 North Satellite
Concourse and fitting-out works
of a new retail banking branch at
Regal Airport Hotel.

EEREBBRRRSRNZIAT
2B REENELFGE
FERHRELR - UARER
BBIERITOITEVRE TIZ ©

Awarded an improvement works
contract of a school under Po
Leung Kuk.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
MERXEOR

Awarded the A&A works contract of
5/F, CITIC Tower.

HEERRPEAE 5 BHINBEETIE -

Secured the repair and
maintenance services contract
of Social Services Centres —
The Waterfront.

AR A B RERIET O
HERRERBEL -

Aug 2018

Won a building construction works
contract of a commercial development
project of Electric Road, Tin Hau.

EERFEREEREANERRIER
RETRETIZAL -

Awarded the design works
contract of 18/F, Atelier K11,
TST.

BARWIH Atelier K11 18 18
IR R TR -

Awarded the renovation works
contract of LG/F to 3/F, Hilltop
Plaza.

AEREREEH O MEEE 3
BB TIE -

Awarded fitting-out works
contracts of several branch shops
of Chow Tai Fook.

EEEARKRESTEEOED
K TRAH

Received 3 honours at the Hong Kong Construction Association’s
Construction Safety Award.

RE [EERERNSRELREAE] —@%F -
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
M RSB 0ORR

Sep 2018

Awarded facility management services
contract of Hong Kong International
Airport Taxi Services Management.

Awarded the operations
management services contract
of Guangzhou-Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Express Rail Link
(Hong Kong Section) West
Kowloon Station car park.

EEEBREHOSH T R EIRHRE
BEERBEH

AR ERERRERR R
NEEEESNEEE RS
=¥ Ok

Oct 2018

Awarded management services contract of M+
Museum Project.

EEM+EYEIRE N EARMHTIZEIRSHL)
N/ e ki
Excellence in
4 w2018

Awarded fitting-out works contract of Whampoa
Garden Site 1 and A&A works contract of WWhampoa

Garden Site 9. Won a grand award, 3 excellence awards and a silver

award in the Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management’s
Excellence in Facility Management Award.

AEEIHCE 1 BN R TRENERIEE 9 B

(=] oy Tig o
FROMEELE KERERMERSS [FHRMERR| RE—(AF

HAREE « = (8= A —(EIREE -

Nov 2018

Won 18 awards, including
| Awarded the lobbies upgrade “The Ei<cellent Contractor
contract at 3/F, Centre A and B Award” of the Mid-term of
of ATL Logistics Centre. 2018: Property Management
Support Services (PMSS) in
TSNS IEY R L A F the LINK Award Presentation
B B 3 A B BRALE CEEmE
Ti2AH - \
a 1E4ER 2018 Frh AR sEIE
o KERE [ =R
ANiE — BRI ERS
FEAHY 13 [BEEIA -

Awarded property management services
contract of Braemar Hill Mansions in North Point.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRWS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Synergis Holdings
Limited (the “Company” or “Synergis”), | hereby present to you the
annual performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group recorded a decrease of approximately 26.4% in total
revenue to approximately HK$1,533.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, due to the decreases in both the number of
substantial new orders awarded and the number of works kicked off
during the year for our interiors and special projects (the “ISP”)
business. Gross profit margin however increased to 9.8% this year as
compared to 8.0% recorded last year. The Group still suffered
approximately 10.0% reduction of the gross profit from approximately
HK$166.8 million last year to approximately HK$150.1 million this
year. In order to increase the profitability of the Group despite
intensifying competition, we consider that cost control is critical to the
expansion of our businesses. After management has taken
appropriate cost control measures, the general and administrative
expenses decreased by 16.8% to approximately HK$123.5 million as
compared to that of last year. Moreover, due to the decrease in the
outstanding workload for contracts on hand and the increasingly
competitive business environment for ISP business, it was inevitable
for management to make an one-off non-cash adjustment, which is
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the full impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$116.8
million (almost all of which was arisen from the acquisition of ISP
business from Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited ("Hsin Chong") in
late 2012), in addition to the goodwill impairment charge of HK$55
million made for the year ended 31 December 2017, and the further
provision for the amounts including contract assets and receivables
of approximately HK$70.4 million, the majority of which of
approximately HK$63.0 million is related to respective balances of
several key projects with Hsin Chong and its subsidiaries. As a result,
the loss attributable to Shareholders substantially increased from
approximately HK$54.4 million last year to approximately HK$160.0
million this year after taking into account of major exceptional items.
We would like to share more details of the Group’s performance,
financial position and operation of the Group for the reporting period
in the following section “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

The property and facility management (the “PFM”) business
maintained a stable performance and manages over 82,000
residential units and 6.4 million square metres of residential,
commercial and industrial facilities of about 330 PFM projects in Hong
Kong and China. With its expertise and extensive experience to offer
one-stop services to customers for over 40 years, the Group has
gained recognition from the public, proven by the new contracts
awarded during the year and the high retention contract rate. The
management teams of PFM segment put unremitting efforts in the
second half of 2018 to make significant progress in improving the
poor financial outlook of the first half of the year and began to yield
satisfactory results. Another main stream of income is contributed by
ISP business. ISP segment currently has 14 major projects on hand,
7 projects of which have project periods covering the full year of
2019. We would be eager to maintain and foster our core businesses
including renovation, fitting-out and small-scale construction
businesses to continuously offer top-notch professional services to
our clients. It remains the driving force for our growth.

The Group always implements Total Quality Management which
covers all aspects of our operations, and constantly seeks to improve
the quality of our services, and create value for stakeholders through
comprehensive and innovative solutions as we further our mission.
The awards we have won over the years attest to the wide recognition
we have received for our dedication. With numerous awards received
across industry, occupational safety and health, human resources
and technological innovation fields, 2018 was a fruitful year for
Synergis.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBRS

Taking into account of the financial results, the Group’s available cash
reserves and working capital requirements, the Board resolved not to
declare final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: Nil).

Stepping into 2019, Hong Kong property market is still in an
expansion mode. Public gives great concern over housing stock
production and the speed up of the issue of housing completion. We
expect that the property management business will expand
simultaneously. We will continue to expand our management portfolio
by capturing the continuing outsourcing activities implemented by
private residential owners, corporations and government institutions.
Besides, a track record of our ISP segment was evidenced through
the winning of large-scale contracts in the past. The strength and
capability in managing large-scale projects reinforced by our
competent and professional teams are widely recognized. Our ISP
business is well positioned for long term growth.

Aligning our values of customer focus, integrity, teamwork, innovation
and pursuit of excellence, sustainability is a core focus of our
business strategy. We committed to proactively making
improvements in its quality of services with the aim to enhance
customer satisfaction. The Group is cautiously optimistic about the
outlook of both businesses with continuing challenge and
uncertainties in 2019.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most sincere
gratitude to our Directors and dedicated team for their unwavering
commitment and passion for the business over the past years and
have put forth in driving the Group towards sustainable development.
| would also like to sincerely thank all our valued service providers,
business partners as well as our Shareholders for their continuous
support. With the solid business base and the effort of all our staff,
the Group will endeavor to open a new chapter in the future.

Kingston Chu Chun Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SPEIEREI NSl

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW k] (8
Change
2018 2017 Amount %
Gk Bok
Revenue HK$’ million
W5 B HET 1,533.0 2,083.3 (5650.3) —26.4%
Gross profit HKS$’ million
EM BEEET 150.1 166.8 (16.7) -10.0%
Gross profit margin
FF| = 9.8% 8.0% - +1.8%
Operating expenses HK$' million
LERY BEHETT (123.5) (148.5) 25.0 +16.8%
Operating profit before HKS$’ million
exceptional items
B4 PR IR B ATAS 2% A BEBEET 26.7 20.4 6.3 +30.9%
Doubtful debts recovery HK$’ million
YB35 Bk BEBEET 0.3 19.8 (19.5) -98.5%
Impairment of contract assets HK$’ million
and receivables

BRBEREYERFRE BEEET (70.4) (5.9) 64.5) -1,093.2%
Impairment loss on goodwill HK$’ million
EEREE R BEEET (116.8) (55.0) (61.8) -112.4%
Intangible asset write off HKS$’ million
MiHmT & E BEBEETT - (33.9) 33.9 +100.0%
(LBITDA)/EBITDA HK$’ million
(BRER - TERBIHANER) B
B rE NEH RN BEBEET (31.4) 50.5 (81.9) -162.2%
Loss attributable to Shareholders HKS$’ million
IR E(LEE BEBEET (160.0) (54.4) (105.6) -194.1%
Basic losses per share HK cents
BREAREE AL (37.7) (13.8) (23.9) -173.2%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group reported consolidated revenue of approximately
HK$1,533.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018, a
decrease of approximately 26.4% over the year ended 31 December
2017 as a result of the completion of few key contracts and fewer
new contracts with substantial revenue contributions of interiors and
special projects business (the “ISP Business”) having been awarded.
In spite of keen competition and rising cost, the management team
had successfully improved gross profit margin and was able to
achieve a gross profit margin of 9.8% for this year, 1.8% higher than
that recorded last year. The gross profit was still decreased by 10%
to approximately HK$150.1 million despite that the management
strived hard for the year. After management has imposed appropriate
cost control measures during the year, the operating expenses have
been reduced by 16.8% to approximately HK$123.5 million. As a
result of that, the operating profit before exceptional items has been
increased by 30.9% to approximately HK$26.7 million. However,
including the additional amount of approximately HK$116.8 million on
full impairment loss of goodwill and approximately HK$70.4 million on
impairment of contract assets and receivables, the Group recorded a
loss attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$160.0 million
as compared to the loss of approximately HK$54.4 million recorded
last year. Losses per share was 37.7 HK cents (2017: losses per
share was 13.8 HK cents).

SR =R S Al

HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE - AEBERBLR
A Y25 4978 8 1,533,000,000 7T * & A = 2017
F12H3THIEFERLH264% REEE
NI B R S ERTE B 255 ([ ERE RFHRIER
EBDETEEAHNT I RAEREAMRZEN
FELRPIE - EARABFHRURKAR LT
BEREBKIESENE  AFEHEBENE
08%  BEFIRS1.8%  HAEEEBRFER
2R BB D10%E & F K
150,100,0007T - AFE - EEEBEMSEN
BT E1E - CEFATIRD 16.8% E48
123,500,000 7T ° E It + BREFIAIE B ATAS &
st Al 38 1130.9% = #) 7% ¥ 26,700,000 7T © A
i R EEEEREBENTIES AL B
116,800,000 7T & & %) & B K & IR FURE &Y
IS EEHBIE 70,400,000 7T © AEE RS
B JE {5 /5 18 4978 %5 160,000,000 7T+ i1 2= & Bl
SRS BB 497845 54,400,000 7T » BREE BB
#37.7 1L (2017 & : BAREIBAME13.810) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB Yo X DT

In view that the financial position of Hsin Chong Group Holdings
Limited (“Hsin Chong”) continued to worsen, the Group made a
provision of amounts including contract assets and receivables of
approximately HK$63.0 million, the majority of which is mainly related
to several ISP contracts with Hsin Chong, for the year ended 31
December 2018, further to the provision of amounts including
contract assets and receivables of approximately HK$90.0 million
made for the year ended 31 December 2016. On the ground that
Hsin Chong has repeatedly defaulted payments under the second
settlement agreement entered in between Hsin Chong and the
Company on 1 June 2018 (the “2018 Settlement Agreement”) and
the financial position of Hsin Chong deteriorated, the Company
delivered a petition (the “Petition”) to the Court of First Instance of
High Court of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) against Hsin Chong on
18 January 2019 that Hsin Chong be wound up by the High Court so
as to recover the outstanding debts under the 2018 Settlement
Agreement in the amount of approximately HK$79.0 million including
interest due from Hsin Chong and its subsidiaries. The hearing for the
Petition has been adjourned to May 2019. The Company has sought
legal advice as to actions it may take to protect its rights, and will
make further announcements as and when appropriate. Details of the
update can be referred to the announcements of the Company dated
18 January 2019 and 6 March 2019.

Besides, due to decreased outstanding workload for contracts on
hand of ISP Business during the year and the uncertainties under
increasingly competitive business environment of ISP Business, a
further non-cash goodwill impairment provision on all the remaining
carrying value of the goodwill of approximately HK$116.8 million
(almost all of which was generated from the acquisition of ISP
Business in late 2012 (“Acquisition”)) was made for the year ended 31
December 2018, in addition to the goodwill impairment provision of
HK$55.0 million made for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Business Overview

The Group’s property and facility management (“PFM”) business and
ancillary business (the “Ancillary Business”) (collectively, the “PFM
Business”) remained stable in revenue and profits and continued to
maintain its solid market position whilst ISP Business has contributed
over half of the Group’s revenue.

Revenue W%

BRE AR DI

X ORBRATR
RIS

AEBZMERRBEE((MELREERE])
X hmpEF((HER]) (REA[ME
RBRMEEIEERR ) 2 et Ko RS TR E 3 A
BRFEZETISIAL - = A REFHRIA
BEBHAEE RSB F -

Gross Profit & Fl

HK$ million HKS$ million

BEBEETL

548.5, 36%

839.5, 55%

28.1, 2%

116.9, 7%

PFM - Hong Kong
MENRBER BB

Ancillary Business

EEES

° The revenue of PFM Business — Hong Kong of approximately
HK$665.4 million which was slightly above that of last year
(2017: HK$630.4 million)

° The gross profit of PFM Business — Hong Kong of
approximately HK$85.8 million which was very similar to that of
last year (2017: HK$86.5 million)

° Because one of key contracts expired during the year, the
revenue and gross profit of PFM Business — China reduced
substantially to approximately HK$28.1 million (2017: HK$67.2
million) and approximately HK$10.1 million (2017: HK$15.5
million) respectively as compared those of last year.

° Due to the completion of few key contracts and fewer new
contracts with substantial revenue contributions of ISP
Business, the revenue and gross profit reduced by 39.4% and
16.4% to approximately HK$839.5 million (2017: HK$1,385.7
million) and approximately HK$54.2 million respectively (2017:
HK$64.8 million) as compared with last year.

BEBEET

64.1, 43%

54.2, 36%

10.1, 7%

21.7,14%

PFM - China
WEREREE -

Interiors and Special Projects
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB Yo X DT

AT & EDE P 3 K iRt B FE SR 75 M IE BB I
FIREB XK LEEE U TEBREREA
B - BREFPEEMELZENEERBEER
FORME - WEIRREEE ZREEE

The operating results of PFM Business and ISP Business in the
following sections excluded the exceptional items, being the
impairment of contract assets and receivables due to client's
credibility, the recovery of doubtful debts and the impairment loss on
goodwill respectively.

Operating Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items

(HK$’ million)
BReEFRIE B AT ERA(BR)
(B%BEER)
Change sthalf  2nd half Change
i) 2018 2018 2%
Amount %  2018%F  2018%F  Amount %
2018 2017 Ea BAL ¥ TEE £ ARt
PFM MERFHER
— Hong Kong -5 26.5 31.1 (4.6) -14.8% 8.2 18.3 101 +123.2%
Ancillary Business BHER
— Hong Kong -5k 5.1 0.4 47 +1,175% 0.2 49 4.7 +2,350.0%
PFM Business NERRRERER
— Hong Kong -5
Sub-total Nt 31.6 31.5 0.1 0.3% 8.4 23.2 148  +176.2%
PFM MERZEER
— China — (8.3) (1.3 (700 -538.5% 2.4) (5.9) 3.5) -145.8%
PFM Business NERRBERER
— Sub-total - Mt 233 30.2 (6.9 -22.8% 6.0 17.3 11.3  +188.3%
ISP Business ERERRERK
BEREX 12.7 5.7 70  +122.8% 5.2 75 2.3 +44.2%
Corporate Overheads {THEHR (9.9) (15.5) 6.2  +40.0% (5.3) (4.0) 1.3 +24.5%
Total st 26.7 20.4 6.3 +30.9% 5.9 20.8 149  +252.5%
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IR BB RFEEEEFEE) EinE
ERVEELERBTES - BEREF  WAR
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2018F 12 A1 HILFE  2F=H 22K
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When comparing with the interim results of the Group, the financial
performance of operating results for the second half of 2018 has
been improved substantially especially on the operating profit from
approximately HK$5.9 million for the six months ended 30 June 2018
to approximately HK$26.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 since the management teams, especially that of PFM Business
in Hong Kong, paid more attention to provide quality services to our
customers, tenants and residents and have been more cost
conscious in terms of monitoring the operating expenditure. Our two-
third of operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
achieved in the second half of the year.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property and Facility Management Business
Property and Facility Management

The PFM Business in Hong Kong is capable of sustaining a diverse
portfolio for a wide spectrum of clients including government,
corporate clients, public institutions and private clients. The scope of
service covers government departments, large-scale public facilities,
transportation systems, airport cargo terminals, education institutions,
hospitals, commercial and industrial properties, public and private
housing estates and car parks, etc.

Hong Kong:

In 2018, our facility management team has successfully extended our
portfolio to management services for international school and
luxurious retail brand by the award of the first facility management
contract for the newly established Malvern College Hong Kong in Tai
Po with a contract period for three years and the newly opened Zung
Fu House for Mercedes-Benz showroom and service centre at Chai
Wan. During the year, key corporate clients such as MTR Corporation
Limited, HKU SPACE, Asia Airfreight Terminal Company Limited and
Hong Kong Jockey Club, have maintained good relationship with us.
In addition, our property management team also put effort into
extending its scope of services to the prestige residential properties
from last year in addition to the property management for large-scale
residential estates. Priding ourselves on our extensive property
management expertise and professional quality-based management
model, we won some successful bids in Mid-levels and Stanley
including Grenville House, Robinson Mansion, Mirror Marina, Grosse
Pointe Villa, 6-8 Stanley Village Road and Braemar Hill Mansions.

Besides, we have been providing car park management services for
public and private car park operators, including 42 the Hong Kong
Housing Authority’s car parks and 48 Link Real Estate Investment
Trust’s car parks during the year. With effort to develop our car park
business, we have gained recognition from MTR Corporation Limited,
which awarded us a three-year car park management contract with
an estimated contract sum of approximately HK$40 million for West
Kowloon Station Car Park in Hong Kong Section of Express Rail Link.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB Yo X DT

In addition to the contracts above, the Group has also obtained 39
new contracts from two-year to three-year with a total contract sum
of over HK$263 million. Significant contracts include:

° Property Management Service Contracts: Kwong Ming Court,
Yee Fung Garden, Hampton Place and Greenknoll Court; and

° Facility Management Service Contracts: Taxi Services
Management at Hong Kong International Airport, maintenance
contract for Kwong Wah Hospital, West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority Cyberport Office and Offices of Employees
Retraining Board and Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications, etc.

Apart from expanding our business portfolio, we are also capable of
maintaining high retention rate for our existing contracts, which
proves that our quality services are being recognised by our clients
and also enables us to generate steady revenue to the Group. Below
are the key contracts successfully renewed with a contract period of
two to three years with an increase in service fee during the year:

° Property Management Service Contracts: Hin Ming Court, Wan
Tau Tong Estate, Yuk Ming Court, Fu Shin Estate, Evelyn
Towers, Summit Insurance Building, Hong Pak Court, Tai Wo
Estate, Pearl Gardens and Wah Kwai Estate; and

o Facility Management Service Contracts: The Hang Seng
University of Hong Kong, Asia Airfreight Terminal Company
Limited, The Education University of Hong Kong, HKU SPACE
and provision of Services for Customer Service Centre and
Backend Accountancy for MTR Stations.

Qur efforts to provide quality services are recognized by the public. At
the Excellence in Facility Management Award 2018 organized by the
Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management, we won not only three
excellence awards and a silver award but Tuen Mun Public Riding
School also won the Grand Award (Institutional & Government
Properties), which is the highest honour we received at the same
competition over the years. At the LINK Award Presentation
Ceremony, we won 13 awards, including the Excellent Contractor
Award of the Mid-term of 2018: Property Management Support
Services (PMSS). Besides, we also won the Best Sustainability Award
in Quality Improvement and Experience Sharing Convention 2017/18.
In recognition of our efforts, our PFM business has set a record high
by receiving 185 property and security services awards from various
regions.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue for this business segment has slightly increased by 1.8%
but gross profit has decreased by around 5.3% to approximately
HK$64.1 million. In view of general inflation, the operating expenses
have increased by 3.0%. Thus, the operating profit has decreased by
around 14.8% of that of last year to approximately HK$26.5 million.
We strived hard to expand our business under keen competition and
can keep the gross profit margin of 11.7%. On the other hand, due to
the reengineering exercise of management team carried out from
August 2018, we succeeded in reducing operating expenses
substantially by 28.6% from approximately HK$22.0 million recorded
for the first half of the year to approximately HK$15.7 million recorded
for the second half of the year. We are sure that we will increase our
competitive strength in 2019 with the cost-conscious mindset.

China:

In view of keen competition from large developers in China, our Group
would strategically focus on and allocate resources to Shanghai
team. However, due to the lack of substantial new contracts awarded
in 2018 and the expiration of one of key contracts in Beijing, revenue
for this business segment has decreased by 58.2% to approximately
HK$28.1 million from that of last year. The operating loss for this
segment has increased substantially to approximately HK$8.3 million,
which included the compensation cost of approximately HK$3.7
million in relation to the scaling down exercise of the operation teams
in Southern China and Northern China in the second half of 2018
after revisiting the business strategies for the long term development
of China Business. The management team targets to turn around and
generate profit from 2019 with our strong commitment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB Yo X DT

Ancillary Business:

Our Ancillary Business comprising integrated procurement, laundry,
cleaning, security and maintenance services has long been offering
flexible services to the clients and supporting our core PFM business.
Cleaning business is still the main revenue contributor to this
segment. A number of new cleaning contracts with a total contract
sum of approximately HK$30 million were awarded during the year.
Major contracts include cleaning services contracts for branches of
the Bank of East Asia, Limited at Hong Kong Island and the New
Territories, Foodies Market Limited in Tai Wai, Hampton Place, a
building located at 33 Des Voeux Road Central, Loplus@Johnston
and Radiant Towers. Besides, our maintenance services business
has improved its performance from the second half of 2018. Major
contracts include maintenance and technical supports for Fung
Chuen Court, Chun Wo Commercial Centre, Wan Tau Tong Estate,
Tai Wo Estate and Kwong Ming Court.

Total revenue from the Ancillary Business reported a 27.3% increase
from that of last year to approximately HK$116.9 million due to more
business for our cleaning and maintenance services this year. The
gross profit has increased by 15.4% from that of the last year to
approximately HK$21.7 million. This business segment recorded an
encouraging result, the operating profit for this segment of
approximately HK$5.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

We put more effort into enhancing the business model of our Ancillary
Business and repositioning its strategy from the second half of 2018.
Nearly all of the operating profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 of approximately HK$5.1 million from Ancillary Business was
achieved in the second half, which reflected the new management
team's strong commitment to reach a new height.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

It is expected that our cleaning business will continue to be our main
profit contributor to the Ancillary Business in 2019. We believe that,
our maintenance services business will further improve its business
and become one of key contributors to our Ancillary Business in
2019. Our maintenance services business has also received the
qualifications of Registered Minor Works Contractor and Registered
Electrical Contractor. Having become a Registered Fire Service
Installation Contractor (Classes 1 & 2) in February 2019, we have
planned to bid for and undertake fire services including the related
improvement and renovation works. With enhanced quality of our
Ancillary Business services, business diversification and the
advantages of having managed large portfolio of residential units, the
management is highly confident that higher revenue and profit
contribution are anticipated in the coming year.
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Operating Profit before exceptional items for the year ended 31 December 2018
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Stepping into 2019, Synergis has continued to adopt a total quality
management approach, which helps us to maintain a high standard
of services and provide premium services to our clients as in the past.
We have a dedicated management team and a strong backup force
comprising professional headquarters supporting team, technical and
security support team. This gives us confidence to grasp all possible
opportunities to expand our market share with our enlarging service
scope and quality services and to retain our current clients for more
prosperous reward. The management team is ambitious to perform
much better than it did in 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB Yo X DT

Interiors and Special Projects Business

As a part of the core business of Synergis, ISP Business provides
one-stop ISP services including planning, design, consultancy, project
management, demolition work, site formation work, repair and
restoration of historic buildings work, etc. to its local and overseas
customers.

During the year, the total revenue and gross profit of ISP Business
recorded approximately HK$839.5 million and approximately
HK$54.2 million respectively, representing a decrease of 39.4% in
revenue and 16.4% in gross profit respectively when compared to
those of last year. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
completion of few key contracts and fewer new contracts with
substantial revenue contributions for the year but we have
endeavored to improve and successfully increased our gross profit
margin by 1.8% from 4.7% to 6.5%. The significant revenue
contribution came from 4 key projects including residential
development at Discovery Bay North Phase 16, decoration works for
a hotel in Tung Chung, the new factory development of a well-
established pharmaceutical brand in Yuen Long, builder works for
automation of arrival bags delivery at Hong Kong International Airport,
which contributed over half of ISP Business'’s revenue for the year.
Management took a more cautious approach to monitor the operating
expenses this year and thus operating expenses decreased by
30.0%. Therefore, the operating profit increased from approximately
HK$5.7 million recorded last year to approximately HK$12.7 million
recorded this year.

Despite the increasing competitive environment of the industry, ISP
Business has managed to obtain a number of new projects during
the year with the contract sum amounting to approximately HK$917.2
million. The major contracts mainly for alteration and addition, and
construction are listed below:

° A Temple Renovation Project at Kowloon Tong;

° Proposed Commercial Building Development Works at 2C&2D
Lau Li Street and 68-70 Electric Road;

° Residential Development at 2 Headland Road, Repulse Bay;
and

° Renovation of Existing Toilets at Watson Centre in Kwai Chung.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The total outstanding workload for contracts on hand as of 31
December 2018 exceeded HK$1.0 billion, over two-third of which is
expected to be completed in 2019. In view that ISP Business faced a
very challenging business environment recently and suffered reduction
of the outstanding workload for contracts on hand and its business
performance (including the revenue and gross profit) of ISP Business
is unlikely to be significantly improved in the near future, it is inevitable
for us to make a further provision for all the remaining carrying value
of the goodwill approximately HK$116.8 million (almost all of which
was arisen from the Acquisition) for this year, further to the provision
of HK$55.0 million made last year.

Stepping in 2019, ISP Business would focus on the core businesses
(fitting-out, alteration and addition, renovation, special construction
project, demolition, etc.) and we believe that we may gain an
opportunity to better serve our clients with the team’s commitment to
excellence in the coming years.

Financial Position and Financial Risk Management

As of 31 December 2018, the total outstanding bank loans were
HK$166.0 million, which is very similar to that of last year and
scheduled to be repaid over the next two years. This includes an
outstanding balance of HK$36.0 million (of which HK$12.0 million is
due over one year) related to the banking facility drawn down for the
Acquisition and a term loan of HK$40.0 million (of which HK$10.0
million is due over one year) drawn down to support ISP operation.
The remaining sum represents the working capital loans for
supporting ISP operation and business development. During the year,
the Group’s sources of fund were generated primarily from operating
activities and financing activities including existing banking facilities.

Interest costs on bank borrowings are primarily charged based on a
spread over HIBOR. With regard to the current portfolio of
businesses, management expects that financial requirements for the
foreseeable future will be met from a combination of shareholders’
equity and banking facilities. The Group would continue to proactively
monitor the financial position and maintain sufficient working capital
and liquidity in the way that can enable us to capture any good
business opportunities and to meet the challenges ahead.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BBV DN

Because of the full impairment of goodwill (almost all of which was
arisen from the Acquisition) and further provision for contract assets
and receivables related to Hsin Chong for the year ended 31
December 2018, the net assets have been dropped to approximately — £ -
HK$89.5 million. As a result, the gearing ratio (net debt to net tangible
assets) increased from 34.5% to 58.1% as compared with last year.

Financial position (HK$’000)

HE2018F12A31HILEFE  r AREE(E
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BEFETNUEL B 89,500,000 7T °
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BEARR BT ) 2018 2017
Total assets EEHE 838,874 1,120,897
Receivables and other assets FEUBR T R E A& = 698,105 864,921
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents o B4 nEAEE 113,950 116,198
Current assets REBEE 812,055 981,119
Intangible assets mpEE - 116,794
Net tangible assets B EEFE 89,522 134,033
Net assets EEBE 89,522 250,827
Current liabilities nEaE 747,200 868,442
Bank loans IRITER 166,000 162,402
Gearing ratios and liquidity EEEBXERRHES

Net debt to net tangible assets FRERAREEFEILE 58.1% 34.5%
Total debt to net tangible assets MEFERENEEFE X 185.4% 121.2%
Current ratio BN 1.1 1.1
Per share data sRrRER

Shares in issue (all classes) BTG (FTEER) 504,850,000 504,850,000
Basic and diluted losses per share (HK cents) &R EL AN [z #5538 (GEH1L) (37.7) (13.8)
Net assets per share (HK cents) FREEFEEEW) 17.7 49.7
The Group adopts a conservative approach in the management of its ~ NEBRINITE E S 2 25 T S H B AR

financial risks and resources, under the supervision of the Executive

Committee.

Interest rate risk arising from bank borrowings is low as interest rates
are fixed for short-term periods to take advantage of the lower rates
thus available. Interest rates will be subject to fluctuation at the time

of renewal.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s business is conducted primarily in Hong Kong, and the
majority of its assets and liabilities is denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars. Therefore, the Group has minimal foreign currency exposure.
The growth of the Group’s business in China has been funded via
permanent capital injection, which is for the long-term and as such,
foreign currency hedging is considered unnecessary.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for
speculative purposes. It is also the Group’s policy not to invest its
financial resources in financial products, including hedge funds or
similar instruments, with significant underlying leverage or derivative
exposure.

Cash Management

The Group operates a centralised cash management system. Cash
balances surplus to immediate requirements are mainly placed as
short-term bank deposits with a number of licensed banks in Hong
Kong.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 5,294 staff
(81 December 2017: 5,695) in Hong Kong, China and Macau.

In order to sustain our quality services, it is always our long-term goal
to retain capable staff. We have put a lot of effort into ensuring that
our staff members are having desirable staff remuneration and
benefits through market research and regular review. Our Human
Resources Team always strives their best to keep track of changes in
the latest market conditions so as to more talented candidates to
serve the Group. In addition, aiming for the mutual growth of the staff
and the Company, the Company is willing to share resources with our
staff. In 2019, our new Human Resources Management focuses on
“We Care We Share F/EBIZH=ZMR". We believe that the staff will
reward the Company and customers through providing quality
services and thus we can gain more appreciation and recognition
from the customers. Besides, the team manages to enhance the
existing Human Resources system. In the era of information
technology, Synergis believes that digitalization helps promote the
effectiveness and efficiency of business operations.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
EBZEIT

MR. KINGSTON CHU CHUN HO
(aged 33)

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (“Mr.
Chu”) was appointed as an
Executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company with effect from 9
March 2017. He is also a member of
each of the Executive Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chu is a licensed person under Securities and Futures Ordinance
for Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activities for Kingston Securities Limited and
Kingston Corporate Finance Limited, respectively. Mr. Chu is a
member of Guangxi Committee of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a member of General Committee of The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, vice president of Hong
Kong CPPCC Youth Association, Youth Committee Vice Director of
HKCPPCC (Provincial) Members Association, vice president of
Federation of Hong Kong Guangxi Community Organisations, vice
chairman of Hong Kong Guangdong Youth Association, honorary
chairman of Hong Kong Guangxi Youth Organisations and Youth
Committee Chairman of Hong Kong Federation of Dongguan
Associations. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor Degree of Science in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California in
the U.S.A.

Mr. Chu has been an executive director of Kingston Financial Group
Limited (stock code: 1031) since 21 August 2015 and an executive
director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444)
(“Sincere HK”) since 29 May 2012, both of which are listed on the
main board (the “Main Board”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Chu has also been a director of Sincere Watch Limited, a
shareholder of Sincere HK since 21 May 2012. He was a non-
executive director of New Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code:
2221) from September 2016 to November 2017, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chu is the son of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, the ultimate beneficial
owner of Champ Key Holdings Limited, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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MR. TERENCE LEUNG SIU
CHEONG

BSc, MHKIE, MCIOB, MHKICM,
ACIArb, R.P.E. (aged 53)

Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong
(“Mr. Leung”) was appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from
10 April 2015. He subsequently
was (i) appointed as a Co-
Managing Director with effect from 1 September 2015 and re-
designated to a Managing Director for the interiors and special
projects business with effect from 5 April 2016; and (i) appointed as
the Deputy Chairman with effect from 9 March 2017. He is also a
member of the Executive Committee.

Mr. Leung is the managing director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a member of the supervisory board of a joint
venture of the Group.

Mr. Leung is responsible for the business development and project
monitoring of all addition and alteration works, renovation works,
fitting-out works, conservation and revitalisation works, and various
construction and special projects. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and a registered professional engineer. Mr.
Leung has established and managed the interiors and special projects
division since 2006, which was incorporated into the Group as one of
the major businesses of the Group in 2012. He has over 30 years of
experience in project planning and monitoring, building construction
and coordination, cost control, renovation and fitting-out works.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
SEFELBHN

MR. LAU MAN TAK
(aged 49)

Mr. Lau Man Tak (“Mr. Lau”) has been
appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director since 28 September
2017. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee, and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy in November 1991. Mr. Lau
has more than 18 years of experience in finance and accounting. He
has been an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since September 1997, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since July 2002, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors since August
2012 and a member and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since April 2000 and November
2015, respectively.

Mr. Lau is currently the chairman and an executive director of TEM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8346) and an independent non-
executive director of Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited
(stock code: 8272), both of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of the Stock Exchange, and an independent non-
executive director of Kingston Financial Group Limited (stock code:
1031), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He is also the chairman and a non-executive director of REF Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1631), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive
director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444)
from June 2012 to December 2016, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

BB E

(49%%)

B EEE(NRIELEE]) B2017F9 A28 H
EZEARNAR 2B IFENITES - FINAE
BEESER  ULFHEEGRREREZES
2B

BEEM1NF11AEREEIREBEE
BEEHENELEN - B EEReRm et
FHEEBB1STAR - KA 1997 FIR B A
BEECHMAE g8 B2002F78#EA
EEBETFARSHMAGZEREE 8
012F8ARATBETLG rERTERD
BB 2000 4 A K% 2015511 AR AT B EH

kigEBe s eBREREE -

2|5 4 38 5 A TEM Holdings Limited (Bl #7 &
TRRABMR DA (BRDRIE - 8346) 2 EfE 3
PITEEREARREEBR AT (RMRIE :
8272) 2 BN EMITE S - ZF A AR AFT
GEM([GEM]) £ - TR FEemERE
RN T (BNREE - 1031) 2 B FEITE S -
ZAR R R ER £ % I8 AREF
Holdings Limited (3% 7 .57 : 1631) & * J& 38
FERITES  ZARIRBERFTERLET - 85k
AR 20125 6 AZ= 2016 F 12 A BT Sincere
Watch (Hong Kong) Limited ( 3% 17 X 5% = 444)
ZEBYNTES ZARRBHERLE
e

- EHRHF



MR. ERIC LEE HON MAN
(aged 52)

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man (“Mr. Lee”)
has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director
since 28 September 2017. He is the
chairman of the Nomination
Committee, and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of TEM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8346), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange, and is employed by Orient Finance Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited as managing director of investment banking
department. Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Birmingham,
the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in
electronic and electrical engineering in July 1988, and obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 1993.

Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in the corporate finance
industry. From August 2015 to February 2017, Mr. Lee worked at LY
Capital Limited, a company engaging in advising on corporate
finance, as a director. From April 2002 to November 2014, Mr. Lee
worked at First Shanghai Capital Limited, a company engaging in
advising on corporate finance, and his last position was managing
director. From July 1997 to March 2002, Mr. Lee worked at DBS Asia
Capital Limited, a company engaging in advising on corporate
finance, and his last position was vice president.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
SEFELBHN

DR. WONG YUN KUEN
(aged 61)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (“Dr. Wong”) has
been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director since 1
December 2017. He is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, and
a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Dr. Wong received a Ph.D. Degree from Harvard University, and was
“Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania. He has worked in financial industries in the United
States and Hong Kong for many years, and has considerable
experience in corporate finance, investment and derivative products.
He is a member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Dr. Wong is the chairman and an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited and Far East Holdings International Limited, a
non-executive director of China Sandi Holdings Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Kingston Financial Group
Limited, DeTai New Energy Group Limited (formerly known as
Guocang Group Limited), Kaisun Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Kaisun Energy Group Limited), GT Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as China Yunnan Tin Minerals Group Company Limited), Tech
Pro Technology Development Limited and Asia Coal Limited. Dr.
Wong was also an executive director of Boill Healthcare Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Ngai Shun Holdings Limited) from July
2016 to December 2018 and an independent non-executive director
of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited from September 2012 to
November 2017, Bauhaus International (Holdings) Limited from
October 2004 to December 2016, China Sandi Holdings Limited from
September 2009 to September 2016, Far East Holdings International
Limited from December 2014 to July 2017. All the companies
mentioned above are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP'S KEY PERSONNEL

PROPERTY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

MS. MANDY HUI SUK MAN
MBA, FCCA, FCPA (aged 43)

Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man (“Ms. Hui”) is
the Acting Managing Director for the
property and facility management
business and the Finance Director of
the Group. She is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Hui is responsible for strategic planning and implementation,
business development, monitoring operation of the property and
facility management business and supervising corporate services
teams to improve the operational efficiency of the Group. She is also
in charge of overseeing the finance and accounting operations,
budgetary control, financial control and treasury management of the
Group. She also assists the Board for any merger and acquisition
projects. She is a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and has
around 20 years of experience in corporate accounting, financing and
taxation. Ms. Hui joined the Group in 2006 and prior to that, she got
solid experience in both audit and accounting. She is also responsible
to company secretarial practice of the Group and is the primary
corporate contact person of company secretarial function for the
Company. Ms. Hui holds a Master’s Degree of Business
Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University. She is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP'S KEY PERSONNEL
SEZB BN

MS. CELINE TAM PUI
CHING

MHousMan(HKU), F.PFM,
MHKIoD, MCIH, RPHM, MHIREA
(aged 58)

Ms. Celine Tam Pui Ching (“Ms.
Tam”) is the Director — Property
Management and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the
Company. She is responsible for overseeing daily management
operations as well as strategic planning and business development of
the Group’s Hong Kong and Kowloon regions of property
management segment.

Ms. Tam began her career for property and facility management at
Hong Kong Housing Department. She was later transferred to the
then City & New Territories Administration as liaison officer to serve at
the deployed District Offices. She left the civil service and started
gaining extensive working experience in the private sector at some
well-established property/facility management companies. Prior to her
joining to Synergis in May 2017, she worked for a property
management subsidiary of a reputable property developer.

Ms. Tam holds a Master’s Degree of Housing Management from The
University of Hong Kong. She is an expert in property management
with rich experience in related industries. Being the fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management, she was elected as
the president of the Institute for the year term of 2011-2012. She is
currently a registered professional housing manager who holds
membership of Chartered Institute of Housing Asian Pacific Branch,
Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP’S KEY PERSONNEL

MR. IVAN CHEUNG YUK
LUNG

BBA, BAHS (Hons), RPHM, FHKIH,
MRICS (aged 42)

Mr. Ivan Cheung Yuk Lung (“Mr.
Cheung”) is the General Manager —
Property Management and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is responsible for the
strategic planning, business development and management operation
of the Group’s New Territories East and West regions of property
management segment and car park segment. He has over 19 years
of experience in property management.

Mr. Cheung received a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts in Housing Studies
from the City University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor’s Degree of
Business Administration in Applied Economics from the Baptist
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Housing and has served as a council member since 2017.
Also, he is a professional member of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors, a registered professional housing manager of
the Housing Managers Registration Board and a national property
manager of Human Resources and Social Security Department of
Guangdong Province.

Mr. Cheung began his career at Synergis as property officer in 2002.
Three years later, he was promoted to assistant property manager
and started his managerial career path. After that, he was
subsequently promoted to the current position in 2018.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP'S KEY PERSONNEL
SEZB BN

MR. NELSON HO SIU LEUNG

MBA, FRICS, F.PFM, FHKIloD,
MHKIS, Beam Pro, Green Building
Faculty (aged 53)

Mr. Nelson Ho Siu Leung (“Mr. Ho”)
joined the Group on 11 May 2016 as
a director of Synergis Facility
Management Limited and is
‘ responsible for the overall strategic
planning, business development and management operation of the
facility management business.

Mr. Ho graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
qualified as a Chartered Building Surveyor and Chartered Project
Management Surveyor. He is also a green building expert and
appointed as a member of Green Building Faculty of Hong Kong
Green Building Council and a nominated director of the Beam Society
Limited. He is a founding director and the past president of the Hong
Kong Institute of Facility Management; and a founding director and
the founding chairman of buildingSMART Hong Kong. Mr. Ho
contributes much of his time to public service and is currently a
member (2012-2019) of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Building) of the
Development Bureau, Task Force Member (since 2012) of the Task
Force on Energy Management System (EnMS) Certification of the
Hong Kong Accreditation Service, Innovation and Technology
Commission. He was a member (2011-2017) of the Panel of Advisors
on Building Management Disputes, Home Affairs Department.

Mr. Ho possesses over 30 years of experience in the project and
facility management industry and had served in various renowned
developers, major consulting firms and public organisations in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ho had established recognition
from the facility management industry and is an award-winning facility
management leader.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP’S KEY PERSONNEL

MR. LEUNG CHI MING
EMBA, MRICS, MCIH (aged 45)

Mr. Leung Chi Ming (“Mr. Leung”) is
the Regional Director (China) and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Leung holds an
Executive Master’s Degree of
Business Administration in Real
Estate. He is also a member of
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the Chartered Institute
of Housing.

Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1999 and has over 22 years of
extensive experience in real estate consultancy and service in Hong
Kong and China. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning,
business development and management operations of the real estate
business of the Group in China.

INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS BUSINESS

MR. DAVID CHAN TAT WAI
(aged 59)

Mr. David Chan Tat Wai, (“Mr. Chan”)
is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and responsible for the
strategic planning, business
development and overall operation of
interiors and special projects business.

i

Mr. Chan is also responsible for the business development and
project monitoring of certain alterations and additions works,
renovation works, fitting-out works, facade works and special
projects. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Building and
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers.

Mr. Chan joined interiors and special projects division in 2010 and
has over 37 years of experience in project planning and monitoring,
building construction and coordination, estimating and budgeting,
cost control, procurement, renovation and fitting-out works.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP'S KEY PERSONNEL
SEZB BN

MR. YU CHI WING
(aged 51)

Mr. Yu Chi Wing (“Mr. Yu”) is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company
and responsible for the strategic
planning, business development and
overall operation of interiors and
special projects business.

Mr. Yu is also responsible for the business development, tendering,
project monitoring and commercial issues of all alteration and
addition works, renovation works, fitting-out works, conservation
and revitalization works and special projects. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Yu had worked for over 24 years in Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited, the former holding company of the Group and
was its senior staff member. He has over 30 years of experience in
building construction and coordination, cost control, renovation and
fitting-out works.

MS. CECILIA CHIU MEI ZIN
CIPS(UK), MIPS(HK) (aged 60)

Ms. Cecilia Chiu Mei Zin (“Ms. Chiu”)
is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and is responsible for
overall strategic planning, business
development and operation of the
Group’s procurement and supply
chain services.

Ms. Chiu is a member of the Chartered Institute of Procurement &
Supply of the United Kingdom and a member of Institute of
Purchasing & Supply of Hong Kong. Being a procurement and supply
chain professional, Ms. Chiu possesses over 32 years of solid
procurement and supply chain experience at top management
capacity regionally and globally in several multi-national listed
companies.

She was the head in charge of procurement and supply chain for
different industries, majority of which are construction and hospitality
industries including various sizeable construction projects in Hong
Kong, Macau, China and South East Asia plus several mega
integrated resort projects in Las Vegas, Macau and Singapore.
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PROFILES OF THE GROUP’S KEY PERSONNEL

MR. LOUIS LOK TAK KWONG
(aged 46)

Mr. Louis Lok Tak Kwong (“Mr. Lok”)
is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and is responsible for
overall operation of certain projects
and in charge of Planning
Department and Building Services
Department of the Group as well.

™

<
Mr. Lok joined interiors and special projects division in 2009 and
possesses more than 20 years of experience in building construction,
alteration and additional works, cost control and project planning. He

has been involved in several mega projects in Macau and various
commercial, residential and industrial buildings in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lok graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science (Honours) in
Building Technology and Management and a Master’s Degree in
Project Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
has been qualified as a member of each of Hong Kong Institutes of
Construction Managers, the Chartered Institute of Building and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He is also a Registered
Professional Engineer in (Building Discipline).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
IPREIBHS

The Company recognises the interests of and its responsibility to one
of its most important stakeholders — the shareholders. Synergis is
committed to upholding high standards of corporate governance as a
means of protecting and enhancing shareholder value and ensuring
the integrity of operations of the Group. Synergis’s corporate
governance standards are built on the principles of independence,
accountability, transparency and fairness with an appropriate system
of checks and balances.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions and
certain recommended best practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on Stock Exchange.

Throughout the year, the Company has fully complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange (as amended
from time to time by the Stock Exchange) as its own code of conduct
for regulating securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry by the Company, all the Directors confirmed they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written
guidelines for regulating securities transactions by the senior
management (whose names appear in the annual report of the
Company) and certain employees (collectively, the “Relevant
Employees”) of the Group. The Board believes that the Relevant
Employees may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five Directors, including two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The names of the directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director for ISP Business)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Man Tak
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen
Mr. Kan Fook Yee
(retired with effect from 18 May 2018)

An updated list of directors identifying their roles and functions is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.synergis.com.hk).

Coming from diverse businesses and professional backgrounds, the
Board members possess a balance of skills and expertise appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Group and they are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Save as disclosed in
the Profiles of Directors set out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual
report, there is no relationship among the Board members.

The Company currently has three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the total number of
Board members and is in compliance with the requirement under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The views of the Independent Non-
executive Directors carry weight in the Board’s decisions, and their
participation helps the Board exercise judgment, make decisions and
act objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has given to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence in compliance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are and have remained
independent. Mr. Lau Man Tak, chairman of the Audit Committee,
has the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board members, including all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications
which disclose the names of the Directors of the Company.

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. Its
primary functions are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and to
monitor and measure the management’s performance. The Board is
accountable for the overall strategic development of the Group with
the objective to enhance shareholder value. Material matters are
reserved for the Board’s considerations or decisions which include,
among other things, overall strategy of the Group, business plans,
annual budgets, significant capital expenditure, interim and annual
results and reports, dividend policy and payments, material
acquisitions, disposals or investment proposals, directors’
appointments, re-appointments or removal, and other material
transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Executive Committee. It has also delegated the day-to-day operations
of the Group’s business to the senior management. Delegation of
duties to the Board committees and daily business operations to the
management are discussed on pages 44 to 51 of this report.

Board Chairman and Managing Director

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho is the
Chairman of the Board. Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong is the
Managing Director for ISP Business of the Company. Mr. William
Yeung Wai Ling was the Managing Director for PFM Business of the
Company until 15 July 2018 while Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man has been
appointed as the Acting Managing Director for PFM Business of the
Company with effect from 16 July 2018.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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At all times, the chairmen and chief executives are not related to each
other and there are clear divisions among their responsibilities with a
view to achieving a balance of power and authority. The Chairman of
the Board provides leadership to the Board in terms of formulating
policies and strategies, and discharges those duties set out in code
provision A.2 of the CG Code. The Managing Directors have the
overall responsibility of implementing the decisions, policies and
strategies approved by the Board, and overseeing the Group’s
business and operations. The duties of the Chairman and the
Managing Directors are set out in their respective service agreements
entered into with the Company.

With the support from the Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman of the Board ensures that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising from Board meetings and receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the Directors. The Board set
up a Nomination Committee in 2011 to recommend the appointment,
re-election and removal of the Directors.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into letters
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years subject to
the requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”), including the requirement of retirement by
rotation and re-election or standing for re-election at annual general
meetings ("AGM(s)") of the Company at least once every three years.
The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new Director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided
with information on duties and obligations of director, relevant
regulatory requirements and the Group’s business affairs. All Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting or next following AGM of the Company respectively and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting according to the Bye-
laws of the Company.
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Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board
meetings for next year are scheduled approaching the end of each
calendar year in order to facilitate the Directors to plan for attendance
of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will be convened, as and
when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is not
able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting
through electronic means of communication, such as conference
telephone or other similar communication equipment, in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days
in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board to prepare
the meeting notice and agenda. Each Director may include any item
in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by meeting papers with
sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each Director normally
not less than three days before the date of a Board meeting to enable
the Directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be
discussed, except where a Board meeting is convened on a very
urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the
Board meetings, drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to
Directors for comment and records, respectively, and in both cases,
within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes shall record in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board at the meeting
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection
to any Director on request.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Directors have
full and timely access to all relevant information, including reports
from the Board committees and reports from the management. They
are also provided with updates on the latest developments of the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes and
matters of relevance to the Directors in discharging their duties as
and when appropriate.
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To assist the Directors to discharge their duties, the Board has
adopted written procedures in case any Director wishes to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing
pursuant to the Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision in
a tight timeframe and hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or
not practicable. In the case where a resolution in writing is circulated,
sufficient information and explanatory materials will also be provided
to the Directors at the same time.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which
the Board determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as
long as time is allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the
relevant matter first before any subsequent approval is given by way
of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been arranged to protect the Directors and officers of the Group.
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Attendances of Meetings

Five Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, two
Remuneration Committee meetings, one Nomination Committee
meeting and two general meetings were held during the year.
Attendances of these meetings by Directors are set out below:

Enﬁlljjﬁ_gll R

ZKEEW mi@ﬁ% 5//\%%5 Elu?iﬁc 2//\%1@_
N ﬁ%?ﬁ@é\% 1RRA

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/REREFESE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors EENAF =g ENZEg FHMzEe REZES RRAE
Chairman I
Kingston Chu Chun Ho KEH 5/5 n/a 2/2 il 2/2
Executive Director HITES
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 2% & 5/5 n/a n/a n/a 2/2
Independent BYFHTES

Non-executive Directors

Lau Man Tak e 5/5 2/2 2/2 11 2/2
Eric Lee Hon Man THY 5/5 2/2 2/2 11 2/2
Wong Yun Kuen = 5/5 2/2 2/2 1 2/2
Kan Fook Yee' HiEss 2/2 11 171 11 11
Notes: B 5E

! Mr. Kan Fook Yee retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 18 May 2018.
n/a:  not applicable

During the year, the Chairman of the Board also held one meeting
with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the other
Directors present.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and gain and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders generally. All Independent Non-executive
Directors attended the AGM and special general meeting of the
Company both held on 18 May 2018.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision A.6.5
of CG Code regarding continuous professional development. During
the year, the Company provided reading materials to the Directors for
self-study. In addition, the Directors have attended external courses
or conference organised by various organisations.

Directors also reviewed the business and financial updates and other
reading materials provided to them concerning latest developments in
corporate governance practices, and relevant legal and regulatory
developments. A record of the Directors’ participation in various
continuous professional development programme is kept by the
company secretarial department. A summary of training received by
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2018 according to the
records provided by the Directors is as follows:

attending seminars/
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Reading newspapers,
journals and updates
relating to the economy,
general business,
accounting, laws, rules

Giving talks or

conferences/forums and regulations, etc
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HEWSE RAKERESE

Name of Directors EEHS BE RE ZBE HIARSHER
Kingston Chu Chun Ho KB v Vv
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 2IKE Vv Vv
Lau Man Tak B> Vv Vv
Eric Lee Hon Man E vV Vv
Wong Yun Kuen wEE Vv v
Kan Fook Yee' SRR Vv v

Note: B3

! Mr. Kan Fook Yee retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 18 May 2018.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Each of the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee, is to assist in the execution of the Board’s
responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs.
Each Board committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with
the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of reference and, where
applicable, the proceedings of Board meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Lau Man Tak acts as the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The members of Audit Committee during the year
under review were:

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2018)
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen
Mr. Kan Fook Yee
(retired with effect from 18 May 2018)

None of the Audit Committee members is or has been a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors for the past two
years.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for conducting an
independent and objective review of the financial reporting process,
internal controls and audit function with emphasis on:

(i) appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s internal
and external auditors;

(i)  serve as an independent and objective party to review the
financial information presented by management to
shareholders, regulators and the general public;

@iy  ascertain the adequacy of the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control which management and the
Board have established; and

(iv)  serve as useful channel of communication between the Board
and the external and internal auditors on matters relating to and
arising out of the external and internal audit.
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The authority and duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other
things, recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment or removal of the Company’s external auditor and on its
remuneration; reviewing the Company’s interim and annual financial
statements and other financial reports; and reviewing the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control procedures (including
monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function) and risk
management systems. The Audit Committee has explicit authority to
investigate any activity within its duties and responsibilities and the
authority to obtain outside legal or other independent professional
advice if it considers necessary.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year,
two Audit Committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 42 of this report.

During the year, the Audit Committee members with the participation
of the internal and external auditors and the management, reviewed (j)
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group; and
(i) the interim and annual results and the related financial statements
of the Company with a view to ensuring that these financial
statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles and standards generally accepted in Hong Kong. The Audit
Committee also considered the reports from the external auditor on
the scope and findings of its independent review of the interim
financial statements and audit of the annual financial statements.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee’s view on re-appointment of external auditor, and they
both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the
ensuing year at the 2019 AGM of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four Directors, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, and Dr.
Wong Yun Kuen acts as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The members of the Remuneration Committee during the
year under review were:

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho
Mr. Lau Man Tak
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man
Mr. Kan Fook Yee
(retired with effect from 18 May 2018)

The authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee are set out
in its specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing
the remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Its duties
are summarised below:

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(i) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(i)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

(v) consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

HEHZE
HHEZEER
TEFREZE
J& o MEER

;U]]H
0

R REEEX DM‘%I%F%H
ERRELTEIFMEES
FMZBEMmREINT

BEEE T (E)

REERA

B Edh A

YA

BiReaL A
(B2018%F5 18 HALEMT)

HNZ B e 2 R MBEEN TS EBE
BEAN - FHEZEGZRREEEZXDEHN
ZA/NSIVSE B NI

FHNEECXTZTAERTAEEZHFHIBR X
RAFEEHZBEIEAB 2 HEEE - HB
EMEAaT

) HMARBMEEERSEEEABHMN
ZHBUR R - AR ERF MR
IV —EERBEBRHEZRRF ME
FeEhEE

(i) KR2EEEGZHLEXRNLERE &
A RAHEEIEE 2 HrE e

iy BERATEERSEBTEAB ZFHN
#E - mESeELER

V) BAIFRITERZHM MEESEHRZ
&

V) ERLBARIANHS B0
R BT DA R B O A B
PR ¢



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
F(EBIE®RS

(i review and approve compensation payable to Executive (v RF R AEARTEERSEEEAS

Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of AMERI LB EAMBELN
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with HIEE(E - AR RZ SR (E R G A& —
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; B BREEHEANIET—B 0 BEIA

AFAIE - FHES

(vii) review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to  (vi) 5 R EREE BT AL E TR EE

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that SEBEZMSMNEELZEE - ER

they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise ZEZHERENGEHR B BEREEE

reasonable and appropriate; and BN —B BEEBETEGEEE
)53

(viil) ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in (i) HEAR{E (A& Bl H(F @8 A 52
deciding his own remuneration. EE AR

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During ¥ EZEE € BEFE D EIT— R &H - NF
the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held. R FHEES 7
Attendances of the meetings have been disclosed on page 42 of this BN R AREF 42 BHE -
report.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee members reviewed () ZA&RFER - HIEE KB 2B () TESEW
the remuneration packages of the newly appointed Acting Managing #¥ ERERMEIEXEBIEEEMALKIE Y HHlEF
Director for PFM Business; (i) the salaries of Executive Directors and 8 : (i)EtZ 2019412 A31 BILEE 2 #1778
senior management for the year ending 31 December 2019; (i) the FENXSEEBEABZH S : (il Z=2019F12
salary increment of the general staff for the year ending 31 December AS31H IFFE 2 EBE TH N (VEZE
2019; (iv) the directors’ fees for the year ending 31 December 2019; 2019412 A31 BILFE 2 EEWE : L (5t
and (v) recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for #t/ FillEERAESSEHHERS -
approval.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration B % E AT R 2 SFRIEX FEB.1.51& « B
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December [7HEEEEABREHZ2018F 12 A31H

2018 is set out below: IFFERFH AR -
Number of
Within the band of A BN F R individuals
A
up to HK$1,000,000 781,000,000 7Tk A T 12
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 JLE B # 2,000,000 7T 22
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 7B 2,000,001 7T 278 ¥ 3,000,000 7T 1
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Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the
prevailing market conditions and benchmark of the industry, and by
formulating a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure that
the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the
highest calibre, essential to the successful leadership and effective
management of the Group. The performance measures are balanced
between financial and industrial comparatives. The components of
remuneration package may consist of base salary, allowances,
benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance and
contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary
bonus, participation in a share option scheme or long-term rewards.

The remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company are determined by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board by reference to their
respective duties and responsibilities in the Group, individual
performance, achievement of the Group’s targets and the prevailing
market terms in the industry.

The remunerations of the Non-executive and Independent Non-
executive Directors are determined by the Board under the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee by reference to
their duties and responsibilities in the Group, time involvement and
the prevailing market situation.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four Directors, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, and Mr.
Eric Lee Hon Man acts as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The members of the Nomination Committee during the
year under review were:

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 18 May 2018)

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

Mr. Kan Fook Yee (former Chairman)
(retired with effect from 18 May 2018)

The authority and duties of the Nomination Committee are set out in
its specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
nomination policy and leading the process of identifying and
nominating suitable candidates. Its duties are summarised below:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, skills, knowledge, professional experience and length
of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of
Directors for the Board’s approval;

taking into account the Group’s corporate strategy and mix of
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future,
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive;

assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and review the Independent Non-executive Directors’
annual confirmations on their independence; and make
disclosure of its review results in the Corporate Governance
Report;

regularly review the time required from a Director to perform his/
her responsibilities and report to the Board of their findings; and

review the policies on both the Board Diversity Policy and
Nomination Policy, as appropriate; and review the measurable
objectives that the Board had set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives;
and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. Attendances
of the meeting have been disclosed on page 42 of this report.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee members (i) reviewed and
considered that the structure, size, diversity and composition of the
Board are appropriate; (i) assessed the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors; (iii) reviewed the re-designation of the
chairman of Nomination Committee; (iv) reviewed the appointment of
the Acting Managing Director of PFM Business; and (v) recommended
the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.

The “Board Diversity Policy“ sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, background,
experience, knowledge, expertise and other qualities of the Board
members. These differences will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board composition by considering the benefits of all
aspect of diversity, including but not limited to those described above.
The “Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by the Nomination
Committee, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

The “Nomination Policy” and revised terms of reference of Nomination
Committee were adopted from January 2019, taking into
consideration the revised Listing Rules effective from 1 January 2019.
The “Nomination Policy" sets out the key selection criteria and
nomination procedures of the Nomination Committee in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The “Nomination Policy” shall be
reviewed by the Board from time to time.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises two Executive
Directors and one senior management member of the Group. The
members of the Executive Committee during the year under review
were:

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong (Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director for ISP Business)
Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man
(Acting Managing Director for PFM Business and Finance Director)
(appointed as the Acting Managing Director for PFM Business with
effect from 16 July 2018)

Mr. William Yeung Wai Ling
(former Managing Director for PFM Business)
(resigned as the Managing Director for PFM Business with effect
from 16 July 2018)

The authority and duties of the Executive Committee are set out in
the specific written terms of reference adopted by the Board. Full text
of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee is available on
the website of the Company. The principal duties of the Executive
Committee are, pursuant to the Authorisation Matrix/Limits of
Authority of each subsidiary, to approve tender submission and/or
payment requisition when the amount of tender or payment exceeds
certain limits, to approve banking matters, the issue of guarantees to
third party customers, the issue of shares under share option scheme
and promotion or appointment of senior management at operation
level, and other duties delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Executive Committee shall meet as and when required depending
on business and operation needs. Members’ attendances would
depend on the importance of the matters to be transacted. During
the year, the Executive Committee held 30 meetings to discharge
their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

@iy review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v)  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has in place Procedures for Directors to seek Independent
Professional Advice.

DELEGATION TO MANAGEMENT

The monitoring of the day-to-day business operations of the Group
and the implementation of the business plans and strategies adopted
by the Board are performed by the senior management led primarily
by the Managing Directors of the Company.

The Group has also organised a management meeting for senior
management and other relevant staff to meet on a monthly basis to
review business operations with significant issue, review the financial
and business performance against the budget approved by the
Board, and review the implementation of the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board.

Risk Management Committee

With a view to further enhancing risk management at all levels, a Risk
Management Committee, as approved by the Audit Committee and
the Board, has been established to assume the responsibility for
identifying, evaluating, assessing and managing risk areas from
company-wide perspective. The Risk Management Committee
comprises senior management and corporate managers of the
Group. Its findings and recommendations are reported to the Audit
Committee.
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Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for establishing, maintaining
and evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the
top, performing risk assessments, and owning the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal controls. The associated
policies and procedures for risk management and internal controls,
which are properly documented and communicated to staff, are
designed to help ensure that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
against unauthorised use or disposition; relevant rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with; complete, accurate and reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained; and key risk factors
including business strategic, operational, financial and regulatory
compliance risks which may impact the Group’s performance are
appropriately identified and managed.

To ensure the risk management process is consistent with the best
practice, the Directors of Group review the existing practice, and their
suggestions will be incorporated into the Group’s risk management
framework in due course.

The Group’s risk management framework comprises the following
key features:

° A distinct organisational structure for different responsible
parties with defined authority, responsibilities and risk
management roles;

° The Board sets forth the proper risk management culture and
risk appetite for the Group, evaluates and determines the level
of risk that the Group should take and monitor regularly;

° The Risk Management Committee facilitates the risk
assessment process and timely communication to the Audit
Committee and the Board. Also, they ensure key business and
operational risks being properly identified and managed; and
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o A Risk Management Policy has been established to provide a
framework for the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment,
monitoring and reporting of key risks at all levels across the
Group to support the achievement of the organisation’s overall
strategic objectives.

Identified potential risks are evaluated using appropriate qualitative
and quantitative techniques and risk responses (i.e. accept, reduce,
transfer and avoid) are formulated, which are consistent with the
Group’s risk appetite. Risks are assessed based on a risk assessment
matrix that helps to rank the risks into four risk levels (i.e. Extremely
High, High, Medium and Low) and to prioritise risk management effort
to determine the appropriate risk mitigation plans.

Internal Control

The Group has an internal audit (“IA”) function, which plays a major
role in monitoring the internal governance of the Group, to conduct
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control system and report the review results
regularly to the Board through the Audit Committee.

To ensure systematic coverage of all auditable areas and effective
deployment of resources, a 3-year |IA plan with reference to the risk
assessment results has been formulated and approved by the Audit
Committee. During the year, the IA plan focused on the examination
of the fraud control, site safety, business strategy, financial and
treasury management, compliance with applicable rules and
regulations, management of litigation and claims, payment controls
and conflict of interest. Subsequent meetings were conducted to
update the IA plan in order to reflect the major changes in the
organisational structure and business objectives, review the IA reports
and highlight the more significant issues identified from the IA reviews
and follow-up actions taken. Meetings between the head of IA
function and senior management are conducted monthly to stay
current with market developments and changes in the business
strategy.
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The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and
dissemination of inside information under the Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”). The Group has a set of procedures and controls in
place to preserve the confidentiality of inside information relating to
the Group. All Board members and senior management, who are
likely to possess the Group’s inside information because of their
offices or employments in the Group, are bound by Model Code. In
addition, every employee is required to follow the guidelines of the
code of conduct and the staff handbook to keep unpublished inside
information strictly confidential.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

During the year, the Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group through discussion with the Audit Committee, which covers
the major control procedures in areas of business/strategy,
operational, financial, compliance and regulatory risk, and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The changes in the nature and extent of significant risks faced by the
Group and response plans to changes in its business and the external
environment have been evaluated. The scope and quality of ongoing
monitoring of risks and the internal control systems have been
assessed. No significant areas of concern that may affect the Group
to achieve strategic goals have been identified. The Board considered
that the risk management and internal control systems are functioning
effectively and adequately.

In addition, confirmation from management on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group was
received during the year.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training requirements
and budgets of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and IA
functions.
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Integrity Monitoring Committee

Each of our staff is given clear guidelines and codes of standard in
the staff handbook with integrity being put as the first and foremost
code of conduct. A whistle-blowing-type channel which is
implemented by the Integrity Monitoring Committee is to provide staff
and contractors a channel to report issues which might cause a
significant financial loss to, or an adverse impact on the image of the
Company. The Integrity Monitoring Committee comprises the Senior
Quiality Assurance Manager as chairman of the Committee, the Acting
Managing Director for PFM Business and Finance Director and the
Senior Human Resources Manager as members.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern
basis. With the support of the accounting and finance functions led
by the Finance Director of the Group, the Directors have ensured that
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been prepared in accordance with appropriate
accounting policies applied, if any, consistently save for those new
and amended accounting standards as disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, the Directors aim at presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.
Financial information put before the Board for approval by
management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the
Directors to make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of
the external auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements, is set out in pages 87 to 90 of this
annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out as follows:

FEHREBHRS
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Fees paid/payable

gt ENER

HK$’'000

Services rendered FriR AR 75 BT IT
Audit services ERZIRTE 1,856
Non-audit services* IEEZ RS 232

comprised services mainly related to interim review and continuing connected
transactions assurance, etc.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members. The
Company Secretary complied with all the qualifications under the
Listing Rules. The Company Secretary is Mr. Eric Chan Kwong
Leung, who is engaged and appointed by the Company from an
external secretarial services provider. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man, the Acting
Managing Director for PFM Business and Finance Director of the
Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS, INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements,
circulars, quarterly business updates and press releases, updates on
the Group’s developments are also provided on the Company’s
website which is updated in a timely manner.

Comments and suggestions from shareholders or investors are
welcome through the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of
business at 7/F., Linkchart Centre, 2 Tai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2751 8784

(i) by telephone at (852) 3471 2340

(iv) by email at investor@synergis.com.hk
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(v)  on the Company’s website at www.synergis.com.hk under “IR
Contact” of “Investor Relations”

An AGM is deemed as a forum for shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days
together with detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the AGM of
the Company and 10 clear business days for all special general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolution is proposed at the
AGM on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
each individual director.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The
chairman of meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the
relevant general meeting.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics
and integrity and increasing shareholder value as a whole.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

v) AR A A 3 www.synergis.com.hk 2
[(REEBR] T RERER] —H

BRAFASHRESBRREEEGXNEERAE
BOFE - BRARFABRREAFAGARIN
E=BREXANMARRTEREFASE
@iz BE  MARRMBERRERIASRIA
10EEBEEH - ERRERMZTEELR
EBUYMEREREERREAFAE  BHRERL
ERIES -

RRROEERRRASRRNEF

RBANZHAE  EAHEERNERAE L
XEZARABERARNDR+ 02 —HKR
R OERAEFEURAAWEZHERER
Ko BREFEARABRFRIARE - LEEE
EERSILPAOES RN E N - 2
BARERARTAETEMRR - KEZFEH
RIBARRAE EMBRERRNEF

NEfRH EREIBKF

ERERRHBEBRALCEE KT BER
DBBEMERES  BREF—ERZERS
RRHAGEHEEX  REARRNEEE
{E o



HIGHLIGHTS OF 2018 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2018 FIRIR -

As a responsible corporate citizen, we take sustainability into careful
considerations to enhance business resilience, improve our people’s
well-being, enhance customers’ satisfaction, and protect our
common natural resources. We take concrete actions that are
consistent with our sustainability strategies, with an aim to create
sustained values to our stakeholders.

Our standalone 2018 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
report is prepared to share our actions, performances and policies
relating to sustainability to our stakeholders. It adheres to the “comply
or explain” and “recommended disclosure” provisions of the ESG
Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on the Stock

HHENECHSHR

ER—EREENCERAR  HAEEZER
FEBRRAEREBEREN HEETR
i RBATPREE  RREAHBAER -
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HIPRE2018FHUMRE @ REA([IR
B HekERDBRETERTNES ZRM
BRATTHERRNITE  RIWNEEK - HEE
RTERPT EM AR R SR 27 IR B R
ERmERES [ NE TR & (3 E]

Exchange.

Below are some key highlights of our 2018 ESG performance:

{3 »

TRHEIBEM2018FRE - tB@REBRER
WETIZME

Sustainability at Synergis
ARNTHERRE

Performed our first sustainability risk identification assessment to strengthen our
internal discussion about corporate sustainability risks
EITED TR R B RIFT 6 - LADnsR R R (b 2 TS A M R B B9 AT R

The Group’s Economic
and Governance
EEBNRERER

Upheld integrity in our operations and continued to work closely with the Hong
Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption to ensure our business
integrity

BRFEENEREBREBRBIAZERT S EUABREBHE

Service Responsibility

RIS EE

Encouraged innovations and integrated technological elements into our
operations in pursuit of service excellence

SENEIFT RS RIBIT R AL ED - PUBKE MR

Supply Chain Management
ftpEgE e

Collaborated closely with our supply chain partners to enhance their
sustainability performance

HHERAFREHERETAE  WRARARKENERR

Workplace Practices
IHEER

Optimized the e-learning platform to create more training opportunities to
employees
BILEFREETE  RESAEEZEIIME

Environment

Refined our data collection network and expanded the scope of our

RIB environmental KPls reporting

R BB W R RR MR R R R E R R ENEE
Community Continued to invest in the community through various volunteering and
HE fundraising activities

HEEBTRANAENEFEDMEHE

Please visit our corporate website to download the full version of our

2018 ESG report.
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The Directors present the report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
PFM Business and ISP Business in Hong Kong, China and Macau.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
notes 34 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review information are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 23 of
this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We consider environmental protection is essential to the long-term
development of the Group and will constantly improve management
practices so as to minimise waste, maximise efficiencies and reduce
our negative environmental impact on the environment.

For details, please refer to our standalone “2018 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements.
The Group has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, China and Macau while the Company
itself was incorporated in Bermuda and listed on the Stock Exchange
in Hong Kong. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, Bermuda,
China and Macau.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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To ensure compliance with the Competition Ordinance, the Group
has conducted trainings for our staff. We also step up measures to
increase safety awareness amongst our management and staff to
prevent accidents in contravention with safety regulations.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Various risks that the Company may face have been disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report and the Notes to the Financial
Statements on pages 52 to 55 and pages 126 to 131 of this annual
report respectively.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and we
regularly review and improve our policies on remuneration and
benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive,
analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on
remedies with the aim of improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

For details, please refer to our standalone “2018 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 91; the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is set out on page
92 and the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2018 are set out in the consolidated balance sheet on
pages 93 to 94; and balance sheet and reserve movement of the
Company are set out on note 32.

The Board did not recommend the payment of interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2018 (2017: nil). To preserve funds for
the operation and business development of the Company, the Board
does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: nil). Accordingly, total dividends for the
financial year of 2018 is nil (2017: nil).

DIRECTORS" REPORT
EEeHE

RERETHFED  AKRECHE TETE
Al e FAFIR MR EERAEEABRETIRZRS
Bl UIEBRZEEMR 2 FREL -

RBRNRAEERR

ARE AL SRR E D RIRAFRE
52EEEEE NFEI26EEFI1EZESE
AR KBTS TR MG EE

RES EFRER R

AEERREEETHRGSAIEFM - REFHK
FI7nE B et RBCE R PIF B R AE A - 15
Al BERERER L EBR

AEBETPREBREBE ARBRERP
BB IR R AR - AT AT SRR KB A
RE R EE - EMRTRBER -

AEBEEHERHRFRFBERLHEMER
TR REAE 2 5 -

BRFBEF2HRFIELA [2018FRE -
HekER®mE] -

FRR D

RNEEEZ2018FE 12 31 BILFE 2 245 H
RETEZEABRER  FREZEATA
WAFRE - RAEBEMARFEHZE20184F 12
A3 BB RSN E IR EF M E 2 &1E
BEABREMERZARRNEEAERR
REZEE -

BEECTEFIEE2018F6 F30H IF /A
AR R EARR B (2017F : ZT) - AT AQ A
LEBNEBERRZESHE  ETSTEE
HZE2018F 12 A31 A I F EIR A REK B
(20174 : T) o Eit ' 2018 M FE 2 L&
WEAT(2017TF : Z) o

SEZRARAT
—EB-N\FFR

061



062

DIRECTORS" REPORT
EESHE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) on 3
January 2019, pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to
share the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future growth. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall also take into account, among others, the Group’s actual
and expected financial performance, operating results, cash flow,
financial condition and capital requirements, Shareholders’ interests,
contractual covenants, general business conditions and strategies,
possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness, state of economy
and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined at
the sole discretion of the Board and is subject to the restrictions
under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Bye-laws and any other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy, and the Dividend Policy shall not
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company and there is
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount in
any given period.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity on page 95 and in note 23 to the financial
statements respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years and for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out on page 177. This summary does not form
a part of the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note
14 and note 15 to the financial statements respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2018,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$nil (31 December 2017: HK$7,947,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director for ISP Business)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Man Tak
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen
Mr. Kan Fook Yee *
(retired with effect from 18 May 2018)

The profiles of Directors who are in office as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Kingston Chu Chun
Ho and Mr. Lau Man Tak shall retire by rotation at the AGM, and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.
Save for the aforesaid, the other remaining Directors would continue
in office.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with the terms of the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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The director who has served on the boards of directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this report was Mr.
Terence Leung Siu Cheong.

# Mr. Kan Fook Yee retired as an Independent Non-executive Director upon
conclusion of the 2018 AGM held on 18 May 2018 as he would like to devote
more time for other personal pursuits. He has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and that he is not aware of any matter in relation to
his retirement that needs to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at AGM have
entered into a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for the agreements disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, there were no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, its holding companies
or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director and
the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”,
“Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company — Convertible Preference
Shares” of this report, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreements during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-law 168, every Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto, and no Director or other officers shall be liable for
any loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred
by the Company in the execution of the duties of his/her office or in
relation thereto, provided that this Bye-law shall only have effect in so
far as its provisions are not avoided by the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The Company has maintained Directors and officers liability
insurance during the year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Analysis of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018 is set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required: (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the 2013 AGM, the shareholders approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the
Share Option Scheme as required to be disclosed under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Summary of the Share Option Scheme
(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of
recognising and motivating the contribution of the Eligible
Persons (as defined below) to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as defined
below).

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Eligible persons entitled to participate in the Share Option
Scheme (the “Eligible Persons”) include:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries holds
an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”); including
any executive director of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and any
employee employed or to be employed by the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any
independent non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

@iy any shareholder of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued by the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who has, in the
opinion of the Board, made contribution to the
business growth of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods and/or services to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any business collaborator, business consultant, joint
venture or business partner, or technical, financial,
legal and other professional advisers engaged by
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity who has, in the opinion of the Board, made
contribution to the business growth of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; or

the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board,
the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the
discretionary objects) of which includes any of the
above-mentioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the
options may be granted to any company wholly owned by
one or more of the above Eligible Persons.

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)
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(c)

(d)

EEORS

Maximum Number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

At 2013 AGM, the scheme mandate limit for the Share
Option Scheme to allow the Company to issue a
maximum of 33,200,000 options under the Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 7.81% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company (i.e.
424,850,000 ordinary shares) as at 26 March 2019.

As at 31 December 2018, there were no outstanding
share options and there were not any share options
granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme. As at the date of this report, the
maximum number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 29,600,000, representing
approximately 6.97% of the total number of issued shares
of the Company (i.e. 424,850,000 ordinary shares) as at
26 March 2019.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under
the Share Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in
any 12-month period which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of shares already issued to such
Eligible Person under all the options previously granted to
him/her which have been exercised and, issuable to him/
her under all the options previously granted to him/her
which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised,
exceeding 1% of the share capital of the Company in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
being approved by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting.

(c)

(d)
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Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the
proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total
number of shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the
proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0 million, such
proposed grant of option shall be subject to the
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company
at a general meeting in which all connected persons
for the time being of the Company (if any) (except
where any connected person intends to vote
against the proposed grant of option and his/her
intention to do so has been stated in the circular)
shall abstain from voting at such general meeting
and at which any vote taken shall be taken on a
poll.

Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by an
Eligible Person (and by no other person) in respect of all
the shares for which the offer is made. Acceptance shall
be made by such Eligible Person by signing and returning
the duplicate of the offer letter together with the payment
of a consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to the
Company within the time period specified in the offer
letter.

(e)
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U]

(9)

(h)

EEORS

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board and notified to each grantee
and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of a share; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which an offer for grant of an
option (the “New Offer Date”) is made to an Eligible
Person; and (jii) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the New
Offer Date which must be a business day, provided that
the subscription price shall be rounded upwards to the
nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before
exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option
must be held before exercise pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. The commencement date of the period
during which an option may be exercised shall be
specified by the Board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on 17 June 2013, the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the
Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year, the Company has the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to which options may be granted, inter alia, to the Directors.

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR'S INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 26 March 2019, a Director had the following interests in
business which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business:

Name of company

AL

Name of Director

EEaA

Nature of business

REME

DIRECTORS" REPORT
EEeHE

ESRBRINNES &l

RER - RRAHEBRE S B AR
AARLERET (EPem)ES-

B L TRER R8I T EE SN - A A -
H AR 22 A) S E AT MY 8 X B AN R AT B
RSB M REE - BEESHREFHACRE
HA8ERIA T F R AIE B E AR A A
H AR A B 88 2 B £ 38 B 25 0 #E R JE BRI 2%

ESNHPRB @D
HE2019F3H26H  —BEFRUATER
oS ESoA L e SR s
2 EBRAA MR

Nature of interests

BEME

Terence Leung Siu Cheong Hsin Chong Construction Co. Ltd*

Building construction

Being the legal representative

2IE and its branches (a wholly and civil engineering and a director, and person
foreign owned enterprise BFEERIATIR in charge of the branches
in the PRC) REERRARES
MEEERERRRAIREN AT RAREIBEA
(hFREIEBERR)

Zhuhai Henggin New Area
HCCG Construction Management
Co., Ltd.* (a wholly foreign
owned enterprise in the PRC)
WERENENEEREEFR LT
(FESNEBELE)

Building construction
and civil engineering

BFRENRTIATR

Being a director

Note: Although Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong has competing interests in above
mentioned companies by virtue of his common directorship, the Directors
consider that such competition, if any, is neither significant nor material to the
Group as a whole. Furthermore, Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong will fulfil his
fiduciary duties in order to ensure that he will act in the best interest of the
Shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (excluding
Independent Non-executive Directors) nor their respective associates
had any interest in business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

* for identification purposes only

M BARKEXRERARNEERBME LA ATES
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company issued and allotted 80,000,000 convertible preference
shares (“CPSs”), as part of the consideration for the acquisition of ISP
Business in late 2012. The CPSs are convertible into the ordinary
shares at HK$0.75 per share subject to satisfaction of the minimum
public float requirements under the Listing Rules. As at 31 December
2018, none of the CPSs was converted nor redeemed.

Save as above and other than the share option scheme described in
the paragraph titled “Share Option Scheme” above and in note 10 to
the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights at 31 December 2018.
There was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participated in mandatory provident fund schemes in
Hong Kong and in the municipal government contribution scheme in
China. Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note
2.15(c) to the financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND FERRNIR L SR D K 0 REAZ 9 o #E
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING BrIERR%E
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the following person/entities (other than & E 20184 12 A31 B » RIFFEH KA S K
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or £ 336 A ARIBTHEE 2 BT E L%
taken to have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying 2 &M ([ F BAREZ MM 1) Fracss - oA
shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests and =+, E 8 (AR T E S HITHERGIN) AR
short positions of substantial shareholders (the “Register of &I MABRR D P HE A SRR A A Rk
Substantial Shareholders”) required to be kept by the Company %#& :

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of RN SIRIDRZIBRARMNB 2 FR
the Company

(@) Ordinary Shares (a) ZBERER®

Approximate

percentage of

Number of interests in the
ordinary total number of

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held issued shares
HE 81T
BEZEBRR RiTEE
RREE =7} BROBE HMAEREIL
(Note (i)
(Bt (i)
Chu Yuet Wah ("Mrs. Chu") Interests of controlled 225,518,633 53.08%
FAE ([Fxt]) corporation(s) (Note (i))
A EER (1T ()
Champ Key Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 225,518,633 53.08%
(“Champ Key”) BEnEA A
Notes: BitsE
[0} Champ Key being a company wholly-owned by Mrs. Chu is deemed to be () IR 75 R EE &P Champ Key (&£
a controlled corporation of Mrs. Chu under the SFO. 2EREEZRAERA/FT R L2 ZREE -
(i) There were 424,850,000 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 (i AAFHE2018F12 A1 B ZEHITER
December 2018. &A% 17 A 424,850,000 f% ©
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(b) Convertible Preference Shares

(b) FEBRELR

Approximate
Number of percentage of
convertible interests in the
preference total number of

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held issued shares
BT
BEz2ER gt
BRERERB 51 BEAREE MMAEREIL
(Note (i)
(B &£ (i)
Mrs. Chu Interests of controlled 80,000,000 100%
Eyodan corporation(s) (Note (i))
2P A E R (B 32 ()
Champ Key Beneficial owner 80,000,000 100%
Em#EA A
Notes: BiaE -

(0] The Company issued and allotted 80,000,000 CPSs to Smart Lane
Holdings Limited (“Smart Lane”), as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of ISP Business in late 2012. As disclosed in the joint
announcement of Champ Key and the Company dated 30 November
2016, Champ Key (a company wholly-owned by Mrs. Chu) as the offeror
entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Smart Lane as the
vendor of the sale and purchase of 169,116,777 ordinary shares and the
80,000,000 CPSs. Champ Key being a company wholly-owned by Mrs.
Chu is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mrs. Chu under the SFO.

(ii) There were 80,000,000 CPSs of the Company in issue as at at 31
December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any persons/entities (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who/which had or were deemed or taken
to have any other interests or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the Register of
Substantial Shareholders required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS KEMERS

During the year, the Company and/or its subsidiaries had entered into  ARER » KRR AN SEMB AR DT 5
the following continuing connected transactions which are subject to  ZBE=F FHHAIE 14AE 2 FEEX K BHIEHR
annual review and reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the  FEHIFEREL S -

Listing Rules:
(a) General Business Services Master Agreement (a) —MEFIRFSAHRE
The Company entered into a General Business Services Master R2017F9A8H » ARalEEL 45
Agreement on 8 September 2017 with Mrs. Chu, pursuant to N—MEBERG AR BtELL
which Mrs. Chu and/or her associates may engage the Group Y/ EBE AT REAEEIRE—R
to provide general business services. The annual cap for the EEREE - HLE2018F 12 A31 B IEF
General Business Services Master Agreement for the year B —REBRGBHENEELRA
ended 31 December 2018 was HK$11,800,000. Details of the 7% 11,800,0007C * X FF1ER TR 4E
transaction were summarised below and disclosed in the ERANFBHA2017F9AHNA
announcement of the Company dated 8 September 2017. LNIFEE -
Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annual cap  consideration  connected person’s interest
BEAL iE Lk MR #E FELR EERE BEALEENEREE
(HKS) (HK$)
(B%7T) (B%7)
Mrs. Chu General Business Services The period from 8 September ~ Mrs. Chu and/or her associates to 11,800,000 7,511,691 Mrs, Chu'is a substantial
Master Agreement dated 2017 to 31 December 2019 engage the Group for providing the Shareholder and
8 September 2017 (both days inclusive) general business services, controlling shareholder of
including but not limited the Company and hence,
to, the property and assets a connected person under
management, real estate advisory the Listing Rules.
services, fitting-out works,
renovation works, general
consuttancy and other ancilary
services
X BER2017F9A8EL B201759A88EE LR/ IHBEATNEE FRTREARAZETERR
—REBRBERE 2019512 A31 B 1B FEBRM-REBRS - 0F RERER - B A LR
(REEEME) EFBERNEREEER Bib TZBEAL
EAARE - REIR - B
1] AR EBIR
SAEEZERERAA
ZE-N\FFR 075
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EEORS

(b) ISP Works Master Agreement (b) EAREMRFIRIAE Li2fRiH

The Company entered into an ISP Works Master Agreement on
29 March 2018 with Mrs. Chu, pursuant to which Mrs. Chu
and/or her associates may engage the Group for providing ISP
Works on a non-exclusive basis. The annual cap for the ISP
Works Master Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2018 was HK$350,000,000. Details of the transaction were
summarised below and disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 March 2018 and its circular dated 24 April
2018.

MR20184F 3 A29H » AR A EELZ+F]
VEANEMREHRES IRREHE &
WELZ L+ R/ SREBEATREAEE
RIEBREEREEZRE RIS HRER
TR HZE2018F12A31HIEFE -
EREMNEHRER TIREHENFE
IR A7 350,000,000 T ° X ZFHER
TRAZLN QR A A201843 A29
BHAE N B A20185F 4 A24 BHE
BRI EE o

Annual  Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annual cap  consideration  connected person’s interest
BEAL LELE] R #E FELR EERE BEALEZNEREE
(HKS) (HKS)
(%) (B%1)
Mrs. Chu ISP Works Master Agreement  The period from 1 June 2018 Mrs. Chu and/or her associates to 350,000,000 141,738,760  Mrs. Chu's a substantial
dated 29 March 2018 to 31 December 2019 engage the Group for providing shareholder and controlling
(both days inclusive) ISP Works shareholder of the Company
and hence, a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
ERTAARE TERE
X FHR018F3A0E2  B18F6A1AEE SRTR/AEREAZERLE REBRR - BALHRE
EREHRERER 20195 12 431 B 1L REEARHRISHER T TZBEAL
Tie@ihE (RFEERRME)

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above conducted in the year
were entered into on the following basis:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the relevant agreements governing these
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

EX(BRBIFATES) D EHIARE
RLEXPTRANFEETOREFERE
RHTRBTFIRAETT :

(@ NARERER-REHHERE

© BEEEZIXSOEBGHREA
FARIHAEDAREEEAR
B ERET ST -
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group as above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the Board
that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the above continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2018:

(@ have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group where the transactions involve the
provision of services by the Group;

(c) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d)  have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in the
respective previous announcements of the Company.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
continuing connected transactions mentioned above.

DIRECTORS" REPORT
EEeHE

BEREETMATHEMNESEREKER
30005% [ FE £ B 75 B R iz s | B LAIMNY EE 4
Tl W2EBKHP7405 [HB TR
MEMNFEBER S ZEENHE] - ARF]
REMEZEHAEEREREI S ELIR
& B FTRBIE14A56 15 - ZEEID 5t
REEFREN FUBSEFRER S  BHERE
BRI WHEEERAMNGEH - A2FE
18 A% BRI R 14 Bl AN (R B 32 At o

IS s RRRZREEEBEESHER  #F
WA R A FIREFEFEE L@EZE2018
FI12A3THILEFEZRFERERS

(@) WEEB=EHME

b)) RABEASTEATTAEANEEBRRY
RASERERB IR S 2 EBBR

© RAEEATHLERBEREZERS
Z BRI ¢ R

(d) WEBBARALAREMKE AR
FELER -

ARBREXFTRERNFERERS 28
S ETRRIE AAEME 2 WERE °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 30.5% (31 December 2017:
44.8%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue attributable to
the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 8.8% (31
December 2017: 16.3%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30 % of the Group’s total purchases for the
year (2017: less than 30%).

None of the Directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital), had any beneficial interest in the
Group'’s five largest customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group donated HK$22,000 (2017: HK$12,000) for charitable and
other purposes during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements. In relation to those related party transactions
that also constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Group as defined in the Listing Rules, the relevant
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

BEFRIMEERD

RAFE  KREBZRASURFSRAEBE AU
2% #930.5% (201712 A31H : 44.8%) * M
REEGAREFPAME RS EEZ Wz 48.8%
(201712 A31H : 16.3%) °

RAFE  AEEZKASUHERERNSELZ
BERRERE L H30% (2017 4F + PR 30%) °

B IARSZBEAIBRBEESMAA
BEARACHITRABBS%E) BELELN
SEZEASUTFPHHAEIMNEGEL

IRITEM

AREFEN2018F 12 A31 BHRITE R EH
R REHT 5 26 °

BR

ARERN AEBEHESEREMBIEE
22,000 7T (2017 4F : B#12,0007T) ©

BE  HEIBORr a2 LHES

ARBSEEAHBRARRNAFARERE
HESBRIARR 2R ETHES -

MEALXRS

AEBEZBAEALR AR RKRM T
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EEeHE

PUBLIC FLOAT nmiERE

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed ~ RZARIRE BE @ AR T EZ ARER LE
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is ~ EFT41%E - AA T4 FHHRAIMETE A
publicly available to the Company and to the best of knowledge of its ~ FIFEE °

Directors.

AUDITOR 1% 25 6

The retiring auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, has expressed — ENJR{F 2 2 SiE & SR B & BT B E
its willingness to offer for re-appointment. A resolution will be KA KERESEZERE - N2 BREEET
proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint ZHREFEFAE HZE —THREAE » SRS
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for & EFEREENEEM AR D TIREE 2 4%
the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration. 2l - WIXEEEEFTHAMS -

On behalf of the Board REESFE

Kingston Chu Chun Ho TE

Chairman KB

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019 B - 2019F 3 26H

SEZERERAF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ENEMER S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Synergis Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
91 to 176, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

BREZERARAAZRE
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSA”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Accounting for construction contracts — including profit
recognition, and contract assets/liabilities;

° Impairment assessment on contract assets and receivables;
and
° Impairment assessment on goodwill.

18 X1 1% 160 ¥ &S

SROER
HPEREBEEB S ASEMO(EEE
ER)ETEN - BRMEZZEERTAENE
EEEARRE [ZBEIREFT 576 P HREA
EHERE] B EE— M -

HPHEE  RAMESHBRBEERTRERE
BEWMARFINESTTLIRERR
RV L3

REFEGHMASRON(EXSFEER
STAD (AT PR - HABLR &%
 WEETTRAIFMEMERBRAL -

FASRESISIA

R ET FRETRIBRFNEXHE - RRY
ARG EMBRRNEBITRAEZNEER -5
LRI ERMBABEEAPBHRRELA
BREEITRIEN - WA T SHELFHREH
BEBNER -

BMEFET T HB WEESRET FEMALT ¢

s RBEANZEFRIE — BREREN M
ANEEAfE:

s  AWNBERBYRRZBERE &

o BEZRERHA
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Key Audit Matter
AREITSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNETNEEEARETEE

Accounting for construction contracts — including profit
recognition, and contract assets/liabilities

BEAKZ SiT BRI — B ER R
BREE BIE

Refer to note 2(c)(iv), note 4(c), note 5 and note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements

B2 MR E BRI 20)v) » MiEE4(c) « Mi7E5 R
FE17

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recognised revenue from construction contracts relating
to the interiors and special projects which totalled
approximately HK$839.5 million. The contract assets and
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$293.1 million
and approximately HK$6.8 million respectively as at 31
December 2018.

HE2018F12A31HIEFE - EEEEIBREER
KM BFEHREERERESNNRFZASHNER
839,500,000 T - R2018F 12 A31H ' G EEKE
&5 Bl B 4775 % 293,100,000 7T K 49,4 % 6,800,000 7T °

The recognition of revenue and cost of sales for the
Group’s construction contracts is based on the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation.
EREREANZKERHEXRIREBEBNEE TR
ERKEEE T LARER o

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

We tested the key controls on how management measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation, including controls on estimated total
contract revenue and costs, budgeted margins, progress
billings and progress payments of contracts.
BMERERENAAERANEET R ERNERNTE
ERETAH - BREMAEAQOAKRERAAR - REFRE -
BREEBERIEENRA BT -

Our work in relation to management’s estimated total
contract revenue and costs, and budgeted margins focused
on the following procedures in relation to material
construction contracts within the Group:

BMEERER BEXEENEREESOMMGEANEHR
Woas R R FRE R B E A ETA TR -

o Discussing with the Group’s quantity surveyors and
project managers for the status of the projects,
identifying any variations, claims and provision on loss-
making contracts, and obtaining explanations for
fluctuations in margins and the expected recovery of
variations.

e B BERETHASMRERLEFNREAER 2K
N ABRIREFAEEMEE BREEAEE LM
EAEREE - WEUS A BAEKS) R IEEE E O WA
fRRE -

o Obtaining corroborative evidence, in relation to the
above points, by reviewing the project budgets,
external architect’s instructions, external architect’s
certificates of work performed and minutes of
management’s regular internal meetings, on a sample
basis.

e HIBATEE  IMNPREMIETR  INPREMEETT
EHEENEREEETHTHANNER L @R L HE
THRER - Bt LSRG R R o
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ARETSE BANETNEEEARETEE

Progress towards complete satisfaction of the e Inspecting signed contracts to identify the total
performance obligation is determined by reference to contract sum and terms.

work performed up to the end of the reporting period. o  BREBEZAL @ UEBBIEOBRSERIER
Recognition of profit on contracts requires significant
judgement and estimates of the total contract revenue e Agreeing the progress towards complete satisfaction

and costs by management. of the performance obligation to the surveyors’ latest
BHEERZERNEE 2 EREHRAANITHIIE valuation and/or external architects certificates.

BT BREVWENFEEEERSORERKAETE o BEHBNEETTR2EKNEERSASMSOE
TR ERAE MG - R/ SoNEP SRR 2 B E -

o Testing the calculations of contract revenue, costs,
and construction contracts assets/liabilities.

o  HAEHNWE  HRAKRBEANEE BEBEMNTEH#TT
A -

o Where applicable, inspecting correspondence with the
customers and sub-contractors to obtain audit
evidence on variations from customers, claims from
customers and sub-contractors.

e HTHEERBAT REHRXPRISHEAIRTER I
REEFHEFES BPROBEHMREL ZZER
BETHRE o

We found the assumptions made by management in relation
to construction contracts (including profit recognition and
contract assets and liabilities) are supported by the audit
evidence available.

RBEABZEE  RMRREREERBESHIEL ZRR
(BREERENRANEERBE) BRI SERIBEX R -

FEZERERAF
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Key Audit Matter
AREITSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNETNEEEARETEE

Impairment assessment on contract assets and
receivables
BRVEE R EWIR R E

Refer to note 2.10, note 4(b), note 17 and note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements
BRHEGAMIERRME2.10 ~ iE40) ~ BIFE17 &M
18

The Group had contract assets of approximately
HK$293.1 million (after provision for impairment of
approximately HK$53.3 million) and receivables of
approximately HK$380.0 million (after provision for
impairment of approximately HK$94.8 million) as at 31
December 2018.

2018 12A31H EXEEREHNEENEE
293,100,000 7T ( 2 1% 6k {8 1 8 #0 7% % 53,300,000 7T )
K & U B 3K 49 74 5 380,000,000 7T ( 2 30 B ok 18 B 5 49
7% 94,800,000 7T ) ©

Contract assets are in relation to the Group’s business of
interiors and special projects, and receivables of the
Group comprise mainly receivables in relation to the
Group’s business of (i) property and facility management
services, and (i) interiors and special projects.
BREERAEEEANRMHIFHREBXZTEB
i EXRECZERKEFVNEZTEGREE EXEOWER
RIEEIRIRTS R () ENEMRSHRIER EHEM &
YRR -

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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We performed the following procedures in relation to the
recoverability of contract assets and receivables:

BPIERSOEERBYERF Z AT @ T LA TIZF -

o Testing the accuracy of aging of accounts receivable
at year end on a sample basis.
o  HEREFRUIRKNERE 2 ER I ETHERH -

° Obtaining lists of outstanding contract assets and
receivables, and identifying any counterparty with
potential financial difficulty through discussion with
management as well as conducting market research
on the industry.

s RERMEHNEEREUERANEE BAHEERENR
HMBANEEFEREEMRRENENTT - WHIT
FETIHHE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANETNEEEARETEE

The recoverable amount is estimated by management
based on their specific recoverability assessment on
individual counterparties with reference to the aging
profile, historical payment pattern, the past record of
default and assessment of their financial position.
Management would make specific provision against
individual balances with reference to the estimated
recoverable amount.

A] B 5 58 T E 3R B AR AR L E B FE 5 75 RO AT [l Y M R A
MmEESE  ER2ERKAES  UENKEE - AT
BRI RTEEMBEARR - EEEGL2ZEMERKE
TR HERASREL S ERE -

For the purpose of impairment assessment, significant
judgements and assumptions include identification of
impairment indicators, the credit risks of counterparty,
the estimated timing and amount of future cash flows for
the determination of the impairment charge.
SRER AT S - EXAE RERREEBNHRETR
ERAZEERR  BREARRRRERECHE @ U
BRRERHE

° Assessing the recoverability of the contract assets and
receivables on a sample basis through our evaluation
of management’s assessment with reference to the
credit profile of the counterparties, historical payment
pattern of the counterparties, publicly available
information and latest correspondence with the
counterparties and to consider if any additional
provision should be made.

o  REEREHEHNEEMERIRKA LWL -
BM2RENANEEAS BNAAENTKES -
NEEMLEEN T HTHRBE - AT AR
WERRZ AT R - I E B RS ELRRIMES

o Testing subsequent contract work certification and
settlement of contract assets and receivables
respectively after the balance sheet date on a sample
basis.

e SDHBAERENGNEEREYNERERZHESAT
ERBREFETHEONR -

We found the key judgements and assumptions used by
management in the recoverability assessment of contract
assets and receivables to be supportable based on the
available evidence.

BIEFIGE2BE  BMIRR/REEEARESHNEE REKER
TR AT BT 2 B B 2T SRR R A IR IR S FE A o
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Key Audit Matter
AREITSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNETNEEEARETEE

Impairment assessment on goodwill

AR Z B EAH

Refer to note 2.5, note 2.9, note 4(d) and note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BLEGAYBRANE25 - 2.9 « WaE4(d) &
16

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has significant
balance of goodwill of approximately HK$116.8 million
(before the impairment charge for the year) relating to the
acquisition of the Interiors and Special Projects business
and ISP Curtain Wall and Aluminum Products Limited
(then known as Hsin Chong abp Company Limited) in
2012 and 2015 respectively. The increasing industry
competition and upward pressure on cost of sales
increase the risk that these businesses may not perform
in line with initial expectations and forecasts and therefore
the carrying values of goodwill may be impaired.
R20185F12A31H - ESEHBENERFELELD
75 116,800,000 7T (#0 fr F RIRE & FA AT ) - 1tk %8 6
2012 F M 2015 F D R = R A& R IR IE B X5 I
AEEIIRERERARAR(EREAFEERER
NA)) B o TEBF B K IHE A IR E 718 N
T ZEEBORE SRS M EA L ET R TR A R B -
E it B e BREE Al se HERRUE ©

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the goodwiill
balances are allocated to separate cash-generating units
(*CGUs"), and the recoverable amount of each CGU is
determined by management based on value-in-use
calculations using cash flow projections.

A ERENS - AEERROKE B RS EL BN
(ReELEM])  BEREERARSRERNRRERE
AEBEAERETRGELEUANAIKEIEHE -

Management has concluded a full impairment provision
of approximately HK$116.8 million in respect of the
goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2018. This
conclusion is based on significant management judgment
with respect to the key assumptions, including revenue
growth, gross profit margin, terminal growth rates and
discount rates.

ERENERANBE2018F 12 A31 BIEFEREE
B 2 TR (B B8 R 478 %5 116,800,000 7 © It 4R TO1R
BHARRRBRWAER  EMX  KEREBERERIT
WEITREERNEIRHE -

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Our work in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

BASEREERENGET TIERE

° Assessing management’s identification of CGUs based
on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group’s business.

e BE EEEZEHBRELRME BEEEXBZT
R L ERERREEEEML 2 ER -

° Assessing the value-in-use calculations methodology
adopted by management.

o HMHEEEEMRBZEREEREE-

o Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including revenue growth, gross profit margin, terminal
growth rates and discount rates) based on our
knowledge of the business and industry.

o BERMURBRITENRD  THERRR (B
R - AR - KR RERITRE) 2 A B -

We found the management’s assumptions used in the
impairment assessment to be reasonable based on available
evidence.

RIBEAIG 2 BE  RPIRRERENRE G T AHR

REGER o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

18 X1 1% 160 ¥ &S

HihfER
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSA will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSA, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
18 X7 6 R S

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chu Ho Kwan Raphael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

> A8 2%
rolEmE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A31 HIEFE

2018 2017
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
HfaE BT T BETIT
Revenue Wz © 1,532,986 2,083,300
Cost of sales SHE A (1,382,846) (1,916,456)
Gross profit EF 150,140 166,844
Other income H AU A 7 4,952 9,801
General and administrative expenses —MRRITH X (123,466) (148,505)
Impairment loss on goodwill EE 7 REEE 16 (116,794) (55,000)
Impairment of contract assets BHEBEZRE 17 (47,162) (2,723)
Impairment of receivables MR RE 18 (28,271) (3,160)
Doubtful debt recovery U [ 522 AR 7 339 19,818
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR 2 ek 30 183 =
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR EBE 29 (623) -
Interest expenses FEREZ 6 (6,235) (5,291)
Amortisation of intangible asset B A Y 16 - (1,628)
Intangible asset write off WiHER & E 16 - (33,907)
Loss before taxation BrEEATE 1B 7 (161,937) (53,751)
Taxation R 1 1,673 (1,770)
Loss for the year FNEIE (160,264) (55,521)
Loss attributable to: FEMREHE -
Equity holders of the Company RAGIRERB A (160,018) (54,377)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (246) (1,144)
(160,264) (55,521)
Losses per share for loss attributable to  Zx/A B A A FE(G 18
the equity holders of the Company 2 G EE
— basic (HK cents) —EARCGEEAL) 13 (37.7) (13.8)
— diluted (HK cents) — s BB 13 (37.7) (13.8)
SEZRERATR
- \FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

MO ZHWMARE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZE2018F 12 A31 HIEFE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST IT
Loss for the year FREIE (160,264) (65,521)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hiv2m (BE), WA :
ltems that will not be reclassified to HEEE I esHnBEEEY
profit or loss: HE :
Actuarial (loss)/gain on long service RERISCAGBZEE
payment liabilities (E518), Wz (1,055) 5056
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified Rl H/&EHHEEEzE 2 EHE
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating RMEBINEBEEZER 5
foreign operations (1,249) 1,696
Realisation of exchange reserve upon B BB B R IR TE N (A
disposal of subsidiaries 152 -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMBEE (EE), WA
for the year (2,152) 2,201
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAEEEBRERE (162,416) (68,320)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: FREMEEGBEEE
Equity holders of the Company KRATRERB A (162,170) (62,176)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR (246) (1,144)
(162,416) (53,320)

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

g A\ MR == iEE%E
MOEEBER
As at 31 December 2018
M20184 12 A31 H

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
iokz3 BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MNEE - M2 MR 14 10,960 15,263
Investment properties WA 15 7,000 5,600
Deferred tax assets BETRIAE E 25 6,528 41
Prepayment SEUNE O 2,331 2,080
Goodwill EES 16 - 116,794
Total non-current assets ERBEELEE 26,819 139,778
Current assets RBEE
Contracting work-in-progress Bl T2 17 - 349,294
Contract assets BHEE 17 293,143 -
Receivables FE U AR X 18 379,983 490,604
Deposits and prepayments & RIBFFRIE 18 22,188 22,429
Taxation recoverable AT U o1 ¢ 18 2,791 2,594
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEE 20 103,084 112,532
Time deposits with original maturities ~ RE|HARBE=1AA 2
over three months FHITFER 20 10,866 3,666
Total currentassets n@EERE 812,055 981,119
Current liabilities REBEE
Payables and accruals R BR R R BT E A 21 569,783 704,154
Contract liabilities EHBE 17 10,953 =
Bank loans RITER 26 166,000 162,402
Taxation payable FES R I8 464 565
Amount due to non-controlling JE 1<) FEHE IR A 25 RRTR
interests 19 - 1,306
Amount due to other partner of JE A< EL i HE[R] 48 & R 1 5K IH
joint operation - 15
Total current liabilities REBAEEE 747,200 868,442
Netcurrentassets ===~~~ REBEEFE 64855 112,677
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAEBASER 91,674 252,455

FEZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mOEEBRTK

As at 31 December 2018
72018412 A31H

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HteF BET T BETIT
Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Long service payment liabilities EHRBeaE 24 1,963 1,380
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIEAE 25 189 248
Totalnonccumentiiablitles. =~~~ Frnmafmes 0 2152 P eess
Netassets == RERE 89522  : Zobier
Equity attributable to equity holders 72 Bl IR #E15H A FE(LREZ
of the Company
Share capital R& 2R 22 50,486 50,486
Retained profits/accumulated losses REBEHRIEEB K
and other reserves E b 23 39,036 201,499
89,522 251,985
Non-controlling interests FERER - (1,158)
Total equity RSB 89,522 250,827

The notes on pages 97 to 176 are an integral part of these 971%176§Zﬁﬁ TAZEESMFERE
consolidated financial statements. ZHRKE D

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on B fS i Rz & EFZ 2N 2019F 3 26 H #t /& -

26 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf. WA TATREZE
Kingston Chu Chun Ho Terence Leung Siu Cheong

KEE 2KE

Chairman Director

FE =5F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RV e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12 A31 HIEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BERNADARESEA
Employee Retained
share profits/ Non-
Share Share Merger option  Exchange accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests Equity
&8 REER/

ks ReEE  AHEFE RRERE ENRE  ZHER g FERER  BRER
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000
AT ARt BNt BETn  AETT EETn BT BT ERTR

At1 January 2018 H2018E1A1R 50,486 185,420 1,513 - (850) 15,416 251,985 (1,158) 250,827
Change in accounting polcy SHEREY - - - - - (293) (293) - (293)
Restated total equity at R20185 1 A 1 B
1 January 2018 A&7 eER 50,486 185,420 1513 - (850) 15128 251,692 (1,158) 250,534
Loss for the year FRhEE - - - - - (160018  (160,018) (46)  (160,264)
Other comprehensive (loss)income: 2 (5ER)/ KA
Actuarialloss on long senvice RERBLEEL
payment liabilties BEER - - - - - (1,055) (1,055) - (1,055)
Exchange differences on translating BEGINEREL Y
foreign operations B ES - - - - (1,249) - (1,249) - (1,249)
Realisation of exchange resenve upon ~ HEHBARBEE
disposal of subsidiaries ERER - - - - 152 - 152 - 152
Total other comprehensive loss Ef2EERAE - - - - (1,007) (1,085) (2,152) - (2159
Total comprehensive loss 2AFEEE - - - - (1,007 (161,073  (162,170) (246)  (162416)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - - - - - 1,404 1,404
At 31 December 2018 R20185 1231 A 50,486 185,420 1,513 - (1,947) (145,950) 89,522 - 89,522
At1 January 2017 R2017E181R 43,065 114,143 1,513 255 (2,546) 69,144 225,564 (14) 225,550
Loss for the year ERhEE = - - - - (54,377) (54,377) (1,144 (55521)
Other comprehensive income: Ef2ENA :
Actuarial gain on long service RERBLEEL
payment libiities REkE - - - - - 505 505 - 505
Exchange differences on translating BEGINERELY
forsign operations ESES = - - - 1,696 - 1696 - 1,696
Total other comprehensive income Ep2ARAEE - - - - 1,696 505 2,201 - 2,201
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EMA/ (BB g - - - - 1,696 (83872) (62,176) (1,144) (63,320)
Placing of new shares RERRR 6,952 66,777 - - - - 73729 - 73,729
Share option scheme B2 - - - 1% - 144 339 = 339
Issue of shares upon exercise of RfrEEREM RN
share options 479 4500 - (450) - - 4529 - 4529
At 31 December 2017 R2017£12531A 50,486 185,420 1,513 - (850) 15,416 251,985 (1,158) 250,827

The note on pages 97 to 176 are an integral part of these HI7TEF17T6BE M AZEHEAMBRE
consolidated financial statements. ZHRER S o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

.@Fcnﬂaﬁ%;ﬁgg

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZE2018F 12 A31 HIEFE

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ha BET T ST IT
Operating activities BT
Cash generated from/ REEBES
(used in) operations (R 2Bz 28 10,866 (32,902)
Interest received BEFE 243 3,737
Interest paid =N (6,279) (5,267)
Income taxes paid ERFrEHE (5,041) (8,972)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBFACESTFE (211) (43,404)
Investing activities REXK
Purchase of property, EEYE - WERRE
plant and equipment (3,565) (8,588)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - R
plant and equipment HEFTERIA 346 213
Disposal of subsidiaries, LERBAR - Mk
net of cash disposed of BHERS 29 & 30 (1,583) =
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits (), B E
over three months —AAMNTHER (7,200) 13,895
Net cash (used in)/generated from REX£E (A, EE
investing activities ZEE T (12,002) 5,520
Financing activities A&
Drawdown of bank loans FARITERK 65,000 233,138
Repayment of bank loans BERITENK (61,402) (274,736)
Placing of new shares Bl & # A n - 73,729
Proceeds from issuance of shares by E 1T AR 357 T
exercise of share options W& 2 P8 skI8 - 4,529
Net cash generated from financing AMEERELHEFEE
activities 3,598 36,660
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBELEERIZ
equivalents HEE (8,615) (1,224)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYzREe RS EE
beginning of the year 112,532 111,723
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and RERMEFEIER
cash equivalents (B8|), W (833) 2,033
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEEREASEE
the end of the year 103,084 112,532
The note on pages 97 to 176 are an integral part of these H97E$176B T AZEGAMBHRE

consolidated financial statements.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as an exempted company on
4 August 2003. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 9
October 2003.

The principal business of the Group is principally engaged in the
provision of PFM Business and ISP Business in Hong Kong,
China and Macau.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated,
and were approved for issue by the Board on 26 March 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of Synergis Holdings Limited
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following amendments to standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The impact of the adoption of these standards and the new
accounting policies are disclosed in note 2(c) below. The
other new and amended standards which had become
effective did not have any impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and did not require retrospective adjustments.

7] 35 ¥ 2= Bl 51
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 155 i = By 5

(b) Standards and amendments to existing (b) EREBENRIFEERZ
standards which are not yet effective (EH]

AT R RAERT IR 20184 2 1&

R IR R E IR R

The following standards and amendments are effective
after 2018 and have not been early adopted by the

Group:

HKFRS 16 Leases' BERBREEN HE
F165

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BEUBREEN  RRALS
F17H

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax AE(ERmBRE BEAGHRENEL

Treatments' 2EZEE) THHRE"

—RBE 23

Amendmentsto  Prepayment Features with Negative R REEN EBEBENRMER
HKFRS 9 Compensation! FOT 2B il

Amendmentsto  Long-term Interests in Associates BEQRNEN RNEELARAEREL
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures' A =HFR

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS BB REED 201522017 F B F
Amendments Standards 2015-2017 Cycle' 2T 564

Amendmentsto  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or BEGHERNE1  HEEB BRI
HKAS 19 Settlement’ FET)

Amendmentsto  Definition of a Business? BBRRREEN  bEER?

HKFRS 3 3% (B3

Amendmentsto  Definition of Material? RO REED FEfTE?
HKFRS 1 and B1RREBEGE
HKAS 8 L ACHY)

Amendmentsto  Sale or Contribution of Assets BB RERED REFHABRBNFLA
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its FIORREEE ELF/HNEAELE
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture* SERIE8Y,  PUEE

Bi1

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

L R2019F1 A1 BBz &REZ

FEHIR AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 2 K2020F1 A1 Az &Rz
& EHAR A R

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 8 R2021F1 A1 BFABKZ&RBZ
FEHRAER

4 Effective for annual periods to be determined g ERHFE B FRTE

098 SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group will adopt the above standards and
amendments to existing standards as and when they
become effective. None of the above is expected to have
a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised
on the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The
accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption. Right-of-use assets for asset leases will be
measured on transition as if the new rules had always
been applied. All other right-of-use assets will be
measured at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the
Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of approximately HK$14,283,000. Based on the
preliminary assessment undertaken to date, it is estimated
that the adoption of HKFRS 16 would result in recognition
of right-of-use assets and financial liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet primarily arising from leases
of land and buildings. The interest expenses on the lease
liabilities and the depreciation expenses on the right-of-
use assets under HKFRS 16 will replace the rental charge
under HKAS 17 in the consolidated income statement.

The Group has already commenced the assessment of
the impact to the Group and the impact of adoption will
be disclosed in the interim report 2019.

871 %5 ¥k = BY 51
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 155 i = By 5

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) SBFHERREE
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 AU R IR N E BT RS &R
Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from FORSRMTEAREBYHEHRESE
Contracts with Customers on the Group’s consolidated BIZE15 REREFA N 2 WY
financial statements and also discloses the new REBGEVHERENTEREE
accounting policies that have been applied from 1 H2018F 1 A1 BB EBANF 5t
January 2018, where they are different to those applied in BX - ZFSFECRENEFER
prior years. MEFETBER R ©
() HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of (i) ETRAYBREENFIRS
adoption MIA — EpsE
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that BB B R E 2R 95 HR
relate to the recognition, classification and REB G HRIZE 99 E
measurement of financial assets and financial TREERCHBERR
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, SEREGE @R TAEKIE
impairment of financial assets and hedge R SREERE RS
accounting. In accordance with the transitional it BREBEEBMBREE
provisions in HKFRS 9, comparative figures have BIEOSERmE MR - L
not been restated. RERIW AR ET o
The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments B2018F1H1HRBHEMNE
from 1 January 2018 resulted in changes in BB EERFEIR 2/
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts TEHERSHBORE S LR
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. EUMBREAMBERSEART
The new accounting policies are set out in note (i) P FEFT RN T X
below. B 2 (i) ©
The total impact on the Group’s retained earnings A& ER2018F1 51H
as at 1 January 2018 is as follows: HRBENOHBRTZETEH N
T
HK$’000
BT T
Closing retained earnings as at R2017F 12 A 31 B EIRRE
31 December 2017 — HKAS 39 BN — BESTERFE 395 15,416
Increase in provision for accounts receivable & Ui BR 205 1% hn (293)
Opening retained earnings as at R 201841 A 1 HRE¥IRE
1 January 2018 — HKFRS 9 BN — BB RELRFEINR 15,123
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has contract assets and receivables that
are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss
model.

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these
classes of assets. The impact of the change in
impairment methodology on the Group’s retained
earnings and equity is disclosed in the table above.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Contract assets and receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for receivables
(including accounts receivable and retention
receivables) and contract assets. This resulted in an
increase of impairment provision for receivables on
1 January 2018 by approximately HK$293,000.

ISP Business

To measure the expected credit losses, contract
assets, accounts receivable and retention
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days invoiced.

The contract assets related to unbilled work in
progress substantially share the same risk
characteristics as the accounts receivable and
retention receivables for the same types of contracts
generated from ISP Business. The Group has
assessed that the expected loss rate for contract
assets, accounts receivable and retention
receivables from ISP Business was immaterial.
Except for the specific impairment provisions made
against on the respective balances, no additional
impairment provision for contract assets, accounts
receivable and retention receivables from ISP
Business was recognised during the year due to
expected credit loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 155 i = By 5

(ii)

PFM Business

To measure the expected credit losses of accounts
receivable from PFM Business, accounts receivable
have been grouped on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days invoiced. On that basis,
additional impairment provision of approximately
HK$293,000 as at 1 January 2018 was determined.

The provision for impairment for accounts receivable
as at 31 December 2017 reconcile to the opening
provision for impairment on 1 January 2018 as
follows:

WER LI EEREK
RITEMERZBEIRE
FEMER M TE BBz B 518 -
EUWEEREZ X REERR
BERBEZAHSME - K
It - BB E R20184F 1 A1
BB EEINR BB B LB
293,000 7T °

201712 A 31 B K fE Uk
R SRR (B 45 BL 5 2018 £F 1
A1 88895 E R
BRZIE LT -

HK$’'000
BT T
Opening provision as at R 2017 F 12 A 31 H Z Bi##&HE —
31 December 2017 — HKAS 39 RIBEEE G ERIE 395 70,577
Amounts restated through opening BiRAATIREB BT ET
retained earnings 293
Opening provision as at R20184 1 A 1 HRYEA¥IHEHE —
1 January 2018 — HKFRS 9 RBEEBIERELRNE IR 70,870
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Accounting (i) EBEVEBREENFEIRS
policies applied from 1 January 2018 MTE — BH2018%F1H1H

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”);

— those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”); and

—  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group classifies its financial assets as at
amortised cost only if both of the following criteria
are met:

—  the asset is held within a business model with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash
flows; and

— the contractual terms of the debt instruments
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding.

The Group classifies its financial assets as at FVOCI
only if both of the following criteria are met:

—  the objective of the Group’s business model
is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the debt instruments
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.

(@  Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(b)  Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

—  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement, together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except
for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to the
consolidated income statement. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are
recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income
statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in
consolidated income instatement and
presented in the period in which it
arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 155 i = By 5

(©

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
QOClI, there is no subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains and losses to the consolidated
income statement following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the
Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are
not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.
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(d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on
a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

For contract assets and receivables (including
accounts receivable and retention
receivables), the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
assets.

For other financial assets originally categorised
as loans and receivables under HKAS 39
which all have been classified as financial
assets at amortised cost under HKFRS 9 from
1 January 2018, the Group has determined
that reliably assessing the probability of default
of the counterparties at the initial recognition
of each financial asset would result in undue
cost and effort. As permitted by a transition
provision in HKFRS 9, provision for
impairment for these financial assets will be
determined based on whether their credit risk
are low at each reporting date, and if so by
recognising a 12 months expected losses
amount until the financial asset is
derecognised. If the financial asset is not of a
low credit risk, the corresponding provision for
impairment will be recognised as equal to
lifetime expected losses.

(@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(iii)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers — Impact of adoption

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers from 1 January 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. In accordance
with the modified retrospective approach in HKFRS
15, comparative figures have not been restated.

The accounting policies were changed to comply
with HKFRS 15, which replaces both the provisions
of HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement
of revenue and costs.

Reclassifications were made as at 1 January 2018
to reflect the terminology used under HKFRS 15:

— contract assets recognised in relation to
construction contracts were previously
presented as amounts due from customers
for contract work

— contract liabilities recognised in relation to
construction contracts were previously
presented as amounts due to customers for
contract work

— contract liabilities recognised in relation to
property management contracts were
previously presented as amounts due to
customers for property and facility
management services
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(iv)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet on 1 January 2018:
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HW2018F1H1B A B E
BEXRERANSEELOT

At 31
December At1
2017 Effects of January
(as originally adoption of 2018
presented) HKFRS 15  (as restated)
R2017 FMEE 20185
12A310  MBHREER 118
(R5)) H15H2TE (E31)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BRI
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) SABERER (FR)
Contracting work-in-progress EEmHTIE 349,294 (349,294) -
Contract assets BHEE - 349,294 349,294
Payables and accruals FER R R e B 704,154 (25,097) 679,057
Contract liabilities BNAR - 25,097 25,097
Other than the above reclassifications, the adoption BN B S I TR E R E 15
of HKFRS 15 has no material impact to the FEY I AE R NI A EE
consolidated income statement and balance sheet, BREE SABESLEHHK
and has no impact to the net cash flow from IR RS RIS R
operating, investing and financing activities on the STRWEEANZE -
consolidated statement of cash flows.
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with (ivy BEMBREEBE15ER

Customers — Accounting policies

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of returns
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.
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Revenue are recognised when or as the control of
the services or goods is transferred to the
purchaser. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the services or goods may transfer over time or at a
point in time. Control of the services or goods is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

— provides all the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the purchaser;
or

— creates and enhances an asset that the
purchaser controls as the Group performs; or

— do not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the services or goods transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the purchaser obtains control of
the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on
output method that best depict the Group’s
performance in satisfying the performance
obligation. The output method is made reference to
the gross value of contracting work to date as
compared to the total contract sum receivable
under the contracts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An entity is a principal if it controls the promised
good or service before transferring it to the
customer. An entity is an agent if its role is to
arrange for another entity to provide the good or
service.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effect of a financing component if it is significant.

(@)

Provision of services of property and facility
management

Property and facility management fees and
other supporting service fees are recognised
when the services are rendered and in
accordance with the terms of agreements.
There are two types of agreement, namely
management remuneration contracts (“MR
Contracts”) and lump sum contracts (“LS
Contracts”). Under a MR Contract, the Group
is remunerated based on a fixed percentage
of the costs involved in the management of
the property or facility, and only such fee is
recognised as the Group’s revenue. Under a
LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum
fee which normally covers the costs involved,
thus the whole of lump sum fee is recognised
as the Group’s revenue.
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(b)

(©

Provision of construction services

Under HKFRS 15, revenue from construction
contracts is recognised when or as the
construction projects are transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the
contracts and the laws that are applicable to
the contracts, control of the construction
projects may transfer over time or at a point in
time. If construction projects create or
enhance an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation
over time and therefore, recognises revenue
over time in accordance with the output
method for measuring progress.

The excess of cumulative revenue recognised
in consolidated income statement over the
cumulative billings to customers is recognised
as contract assets. The excess of cumulative
billings to customers over the cumulative
revenue recognised in consolidated income
statement is recognised as contract liabilities.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customer. A receivable is recognised when
the goods are delivered as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Consolidation

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases. Inter-company
transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment (note 2.9). Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in the
income statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as a joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement.

2.2 Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures; depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. For the
joint arrangements that specify that the parties to the joint
arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations to
the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements, they are
classified as joint operations. For the remaining joint
arrangements, they are classified as joint ventures.

All joint arrangements under the Group are joint
operations.

The Group recognises its direct right to the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint operations and
its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. These have been incorporated in
the financial statements under the appropriate headings.
Details of the joint operation are set out in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gain and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

2.3

2.4
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(i) income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

2.5 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or whenever there is an indication that it may be
impaired and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwiill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment.

(i) ‘BHEREEREERA
HEAZBWARFALZIZ
FHERBRE (BRIEL
FHEEIW IR S A
BRz2FATENSE
A WRIE R ARR
SHBMZEXRKRE):
K

(i) FTBRLELAZERE
BEHREMEEUA T
R AR 2 B R
HH -

EiRE ARKRE - B HE5
EBNREFEMELZE
RER UEREE X &5 A
Hi2HPA - FHER D
SR BN KT - WA
AEHNELZREESFE R
DERERRLEREB 2 8

{/\ ®

2.5 BHE

BB WE A AN B T B B
% 18 FE A P U P Y I /% ) 0 5 T 3
EENAREZEE -BEEF
S E B BN SR AR A] RE TR (B B A T TR
(BRI L A AR R AR E BB A
R BEREBETMERR - HE
ERZWaMEEERENERR
BB EZREE -

WERREARES BERSEL
By WESREBBAREES
R AT B MEISA b P32
MZSReEABU NS EREE
AT o

116 SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.6 Intangible assets
(@) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names
are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and trade
names acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a definite
useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 15
years.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are not
amortised. They subject to impairment testing
annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

(b) Backlog orders

Backlog orders acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The secured contracts have a finite useful life and
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the contracts of 3
years.

2.7 Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied by
the companies in the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.8

871 55 i 2% B9 5

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is
revaluated bi-annually based on active market prices,
adjusted for any necessary difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the
light of current market conditions. Changes in fair values
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in each asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that there is future
economic benefit to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Leasehold improvements Over the lease period HEYHERE HHEAFH
Motor vehicles 25%-33% per annum AE HFF 25%-33%
Furniture and equipment 10%-50% per annum FRIBREE FF 10%-50%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An assets’ carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.9
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2.10Receivables 2.10 [EUXBRX

Accounts receivable are unconditional amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. Receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. They
are classified as current assets if settlement is due within
one year or the normal operating cycle (whichever is
applicable) or else, they are presented as non-current
assets.

2.11Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligations, and such amount can be reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision will be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset.

2.12Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.14Payables

Payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. They are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or the normal operating
cycle (whichever is applicable) or else, they are presented
as non-current liabilities. Payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.15Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. It is the Group’s policy to forfeit any
untaken annual leave with a specific time period.
Subject to regular assessment of staff turnover rate,
a provision will be made or reversed. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave. A provision is
made for the estimated liability up to the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(b)

(c)

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus are made for
the estimated liability for incentive bonus as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date, where there is a contractual
obligation or past practice that has created a
constructive obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Retirement benefit

The Group participates in mandatory provident fund
schemes in Hong Kong which are defined
contribution plan generally funded through
payments to trustee — administered funds. The
assets of the schemes is held separately from those
of the Group in independently administered funds.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
government in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the subsidiaries in PRC participates in the
municipal government contribution scheme whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible
employees. The municipal government of the PRC
is responsible for the entire benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme
is to pay the ongoing contributions required by the
scheme. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred.

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(d)

(e)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Long service payment liabilities

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
accounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine the present value
and reduced by entitlements accrued under the
Group’s retirement plans. The obligation is
calculated using the projected unit credit method by
a qualified actuary. Actuarial gains or losses was
charged/credited to the other comprehensive
income.

Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
consolidated income statement for the year of the
review. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

(d)

(e)
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2.16 Contingent liabilities 2.16 AEE

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future events not wholly within the Group’s
control. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because outflow of
economic resources is considered not probable or the
amount cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability in that outflow becomes
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Group’s
entities operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates tax related situations
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.180perating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.19Revenue and income recognition

Except for the operating lease rental income and interest
income below, the policy of revenue recognition under
HKFRS 15 is set out in note 2(c)(iv).

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts or refundable
deposits outstanding and the effective interest rates
applicable.
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2.20Dividend distribution 2.20 iR ENIK

ARBERRKZFIEERER R
iﬁﬁﬁk]‘f?fi"?fﬁz&ﬂﬂﬁ SE®

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at

the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the (EREERERBTHEERE
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the R ) VEL B -

reporting period.

oz E PR E IR
3.1 HBRKRER

RREE S EREH A EEIM R
RBEZEATE  EREBEAT

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
3.1 Financial risk factors

Risk management seeks to minimise any potential
material effects on the Group’s financial performance from

126

the following factors. [2\fz o
(a) Market risk (@) TEE
() Foreign exchange risk () SMNEE
The Group’s operation in the China and $§E<E43&5$FEJE’\J
Macau are monitored by proper BEALERTERE

(i)

synchronisation of receipt and payment in
different operating currencies. Hedging has
not been effected due to immateriality of the
working capital balances.

Interest rate risk

If interest rates during 2018 on Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings had been 50
basis points (2017: 50 basis points) higher or
lower with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year would have
increased/decreased by approximately
HK$852,000 (2017: HK$996,000) as a result
of higher or lower interest expenses on
floating rate bank borrowings respectively.
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(b)

()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk mainly arises from deposits,
cash and bank balances, contract assets and
receivables. Current policies ensure that sales and
services are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and subject to periodic credit
evaluations. Collection of outstanding receivables is
closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2018, a provision of
approximately HK$47,135,000 (2017:
HK$7,324,000) and approximately HK$92,481,000
(2017: HK$69,600,000) against contract assets and
receivables respectively was made based on the
impairment assessment on the respective balances
with Hsin Chong Group.

Certain customers have exceeded their respective
credit terms during the reporting period. However,
management does not expect any significant losses
from non-performance by these counterparties
because of their satisfactory repayment history.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash
and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are bank with high credit rating.

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk
management which includes maintaining sufficient
bank balances and cash, and having available

funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities.

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 155 i = By 5

For bank loans containing a repayment on demand
clause, if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect, including short term revolving loans of
HK$90,000,000 which is subject to annual review
by lenders, term loans of HK$40,000,000 with
scheduled repayment dates and bank loans of
HK$36,000,000 with scheduled repayment dates,
will be on demand for repayment immediately.

As at 31 December 2018, financial ratio
requirements of bank loans of HK$126,000,000
were not met which might cause these borrowings
to become immediately repayable. Such condition
indicates the existence of certain uncertainties over
the Group’s liquidity position. In view of such
circumstances, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a
going concern. Certain measures have been taken
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the
Group’s financial position which include, but are not
limited to, the following:

(i) The Group has communicated with the bank
over the non-fulfilment of the aforesaid
financial ratios and for the renewal of the
respective bank facility, and the lender has not
indicated for withdrawal of the bank facility
and has not requested for immediate
repayment;

(i)~ The Group will continue to seek for settlement
of the overdue receivables from Hsin Chong
Group pursuant to the settlement
agreements;

@iy ~ The Group will closely monitor the cash flow
requirement before submitting new tenders to
ensure any additional working capital
commitment will not cast doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iv)  The Group will continue to take active
measures to control administrative costs
through various channels; and

(v)  The Group will seek for new credit facilities
from other commercial banks and financial
institutions, if necessary.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than 12 months from 31
December 2018. They are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above mentioned plans and
measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within
12 months from 31 December 2018. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. Taking into account the
Group’s financial position and loan balances of
HK$126 million are guaranteed by an indirect
controlling shareholder, the directors of the
Company do not consider that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate
payment, and believe that the bank loan will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in note 26. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows, including interest payment.
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Financial risk factors
Liquidity risk (in HK$’000)

MR R AZE
nBEERER(E%TIT)

Less Between Between
thaniyear 1and2year  2and5year Total
At 31 December 2018 R20185 12831 H —FR —EmF WELE air
Term loan subject to a repayment ABRRESERN

on demand clause BHER 25,693 12,282 - 37,975

Revolving loans BRER 90,217 - - 90,217
Term loan with repayment schedule BT RSB Z L

EHET 31,713 10,107 - 41,820

Payables and accruals ENRDRETER 531,283 13,516 24,984 569,783

Total ozt 678,906 35,905 24,984 739,795

Less Between Between
than 1 year 1 and 2 year 2 and 5 year Total
At 31 December 2017 ®2017512A 318 —FR -ERF MELE At
Term loan subject to a repayment BRRERERMN

on demand clause BEEH 26,817 25,600 12,563 65,070

Revolving loans BRER 90,089 - - 90,089

Payables and accruals ARG RETER 684,231 19,006 827 704,154

Amount due to non-controling interests  JE(TIEIR IR 28 1,306 - - 1,306
Amount due to other partner of ENEMERSEBETE

joint operation 15 - - 15

Total et 802,458 44,786 13,390 860,634
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2 C(Capital risk management

In managing its capital, the Group’s objectives are to
safeguard its ability to continue operation as a going
concern while keeping an optimal capital level to reduce
the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values due to their short
term maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates
may not, by definition, equal the related actual results. Those
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of each
of the assets and liabilities are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Such estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions.

871 %5 ¥k = BY 51
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87 5 R = B 51

(b) Impairment of contract assets, receivables,

(c)

deposits and prepayment

Management determines the specific provision for
impairment of contract assets, receivables and deposits
and prepayment based on assessment of the
recoverability of the balances. The assessment is based
on the specific recoverability assessment and ageing
profile of the balances, which requires the use of
judgements and estimates. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of the balance, including the financial position and the
historical payment pattern of each counterparty. The
Group has set out policies to ensure follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue receivables and deposits. As at
31 December 2018, the Group has made impairment
provision of receivables approximately HK$94,812,000
and impairment provision of contract assets of
approximately HK$53,273,000 mainly with regard to
balances with Hsin Chong Group, based on the
impairment assessment. The Group has been negotiating
with the counterparties for the payment of settlement. The
determination of the provision involved significant
management estimation.

Construction contracts

As explained in note 2(c)(iv), revenue recognition on a
project is dependent on management’s estimation of the
total outcome of the construction contract, as well as the
work done to date. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted
construction income is measured in accordance with
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations. Budgeted construction costs are
prepared by the management on the basis of quotations
from time to time provided by the major contractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the
management. In order to keep the budget accurate and
up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews of
the management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in estimating the contract
revenue, contract costs, variation works and contract
claims which may have an impact in terms of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligations and recognition of profit.

(b) BRBEE - EKER - 2R

Fa it IR B

EEEREE &S TIE NS
EBEAHNEE BREFEESR
TEN B2 B E R E R - IRIEH
BB AT Us 0 1 AT M BR iR 2E S+ I
& E B A R EEE R R o 5T
HEBRNRRERNEEZIELARE
H e BESENA OISR R
AERNMNREIE - AEEE HER
& REEUREITE) - Uk [ol i EE
EWER R RIESE - R2018F 12 A
318 - AEBERERENS - 5112
BB B E W KB
94,812,000 7T M & #) & E R B
#)7 #53,273,000 T (= B A& B
EXENER) AEE—HER
NA B EEN TR - BEE
EHEAMERETELE -

BIE6HN

EMTEE2(0)(v) P AR - Ti2ER
RIVARNEEERRES MBS
R2MEFH ARESBEMZ T
BoBEAHNIREE FAEEFE
BRETE—MHREERHZANK
wAHRA IREFRMER
BRHREZfAF - BERERER
REBRORTE2EXNER
B BERATREREEE KR
BREAME R T2AEHE - HE
BREENR‘EZREEM LER
BZRBMETE - SERBEER
LEH  EREHECEREELETE
HEN  HBBRESEMNERSR
ZER - HRAEFEANRE - A1
AR BRI TR RANRERER
REHE  EAmMASTEBRORE
SERERMEREE MM 2 ##

e
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(d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had certain claims
over its contract assets and receivables in respect of
disputes or prolonged negotiation between the Group
and the employers in certain building construction
contracts. The Group is closely monitoring the
development of these contracts and has been negotiating
with the employers. The directors of the Company are of
the view that the carrying value of the balances as at 31
December 2018 would be fully recoverable. The
determination of the recoverability involved significant
management estimation.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill have suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2.9. The recoverable amount of goodwill is
the higher of the assets’ fair value less costs to sell and
value in use.

Impairment provision of approximately HK$116,794,000
was provided on the goodwill for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$55,000,000) recognised upon
the Group’s acquisition of the ISP business. Major
assumptions of the impairment of goodwill are set out in
note 16.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions
are required in estimating the recoverable amount of
goodwill, including revenue growth, gross margin, terminal
growth rate and discount rate applied to the cashflows.

(d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(e) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for PRC income taxes. There
are a number of transactions and calculations for which
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
potential tax exposures based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as the
Executive Committee, who is responsible for allocating
resources, assessing performance of the operating segments
and making strategic decisions, the reportable operating
segments are:

° property and facility management services in Hong Kong;
o property and facility management services in Ching;

o ancillary business including security, cleaning, laundry,
procurement and maintenance contracting services; and

o interiors and special projects.
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(a) Segment Results (a) NBELB
PFM
NERZBER
Corporate
Hong Ancillary PFM ISP Overhead
Kong China Business Business Business (Note ) Total
WERRE EREHR  HER
B E EBER | EEER BREEER (W& 1) &t
2018 (in HK$'000) N18% (B4T )
Revenue e
— Atapoint in time - RE-HEH - - 20,268 20,268 - - 20,268
— Over time - — BB 548,454 28,135 96,618 673,207 839,511 - 1,512,718
548,454 28,135 116,886 693,475 839,511 - 1,532,986
Gross prof eS| 64,181 10,100 21,682 95,963 54,171 - 150,140
Operating expenses BERY (37,685) (18,442 (16,601) (72,728) (41,443) (9,295) (123,466)
Operating profit/(loss) before K455 A Al 2 &
exceptional items A/ (B8 26,496 (8,342 5,081 23,235 12,734 (9,295) 26,674
Doubtful debt recovery (Note l]  YrESEE8& (Bi3E1) - - 339 339 - - 339
Impaiment of contractassets ~ AXEERERE 2
and receivables note 5 (b) B (HiEE5) (26) (3,208) (853) (4085 (66,349) - (70,433)
Operating profit/(loss) R/ (FR) 26,470 (11,548) 4,567 19,489 (53,614) (9,295) (43,420)
Impaiment loss on goodwil BB ZHEEE - - (116,794)  (116,794)
Aoquisition loan interest expenses Ui &3 2 FI 8 H % - - (2,360) (2,360)
Other interest expenses Ef SRS - (3,875) - (3,875)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  HE—FEHBA A 2 Wz - 183 - 183
Loss on disposal of subsidlaries  HEHBAR 2R - (629) - (623)
Other income A 4,840 112 - 4,952
Profit/{oss) before taxation BTN/ (B58) 24,329 (57,817) (128,449) (161,937)
Taxation A (4,21) 5,944 - 1,673
Profit/(loss) for the year ERER/(B8) 20,058 (61873) (128449  (160,264)
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PFM
NERZEER
Corporate
Hong Ancillary PFM ISP Overhead
Kong China Busingss Business Business (Note Total
WERiE EREHR  ORER
&b i S BEXE BREREE (gD @i
2017 (in HK$'000) MTE(BETR)
Revenue g 538,092 67,228 91,731 697,551 1,385,749 - 2083300
Gross proft eS| 67,729 15,469 18,776 101,974 64,870 - 166,844
QOperating expenses BERY (36,600) (16,759 (18,364) (1,729) (69,208) (15,49) (146,426)
Operating profit/(loss) before  B$HIE B Al 2 B&
exceptional items &/ (E8) 31,129 (1,290) 412 30,251 5,662 (15,495 20,418
Doubtful debt recovery (Note l] ~ YBlssz8k (Fi3EN) - 12,698 349 13,047 8,771 = 10,818
Impairment of contract assets and - 241 Z RENERZ 2
receivables (note 5(b)) RE(KiEE5(0) = (2,469 (697) (3,160) (2723 - (5,889)
Operating profit/(loss) fmERn/ (bi) 31,129 8,945 64 40,138 9,710 (15,495) 34,353
Impaiment loss on goodwil AR RERE - - (65,000) (65,000)
Amortisation of intangible asset £ EEZ - - (1,628) (1,628)
Intangiole asset write off HHEEVEE - - (33,907) (33,907)
Acquisttion loan interest expenses  WEEZ 2 FI8 5% - - (2,929) (2,925)
Other interest expenses E SRR (162) (2,204) - (2,366)
Other expenses EHRX (60 1900) (339) 0,079
Other income A 6,377 5 - 6,382
Interest income from former REFGEERATZ
ultimate holding company MSMA 204 3,125 - 3419
Profit/oss) befors taxation BHATET /(58 45807 973% (109,204 (53,751)
Tasation B (4.236) (3,397) 5,963 (1,770)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERER/ (FE) 41,571 63390 (103431) (66,521)
Note I: Corporate overhead mainly represents corporate and administrative MizEl: THRERAETEARRINITEUEE © K
activities, and shared services. REZRTE -
Note Il: The amount represents settlement of receivables which were BEEN: 5% £ 58 3R U [3] A BT 2% A R (E /O FE LR
previously impaired. BRAK o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Impairment of Contract Assets and Receivables

A provision of approximately HK$70,433,000 (2017:
HK$5,883,000) was included based on the impairment
assessment on the balances mainly including the
remaining contract assets and receivables related to Hsin
Chong Group, after consideration of the further
deterioration of the financial situation of Hsin Chong
Group as indicated by (i) loss of a major contract during
2018; (i) no materialisation of the re-financing and
restructuring plan based on the latest public information;
(iii) appointment of joint liquidators on Hsin Chong, and
receivers on certain of its operating subsidiaries; and (iv)
certain winding up petitions filed against Hsin Chong and
certain of its subsidiaries including that by the Group
(more details are set out in note 17 and 18 below).
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(b) BHNEENKEBWIRMZHE
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6 INTEREST EXPENSES 6

The entire amount was attributable to the bank loans for the
current and last year.
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7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

7 MRiAIER

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Loss before taxation is arrived after BB RTE R E Ik,
charging/(crediting): (BT A) A% IE :
Staff costs, including directors’ BIRAN(BREESME)
emoluments (note 8) (PfFEES) 672,963 700,780
Impairment loss on goodwill RE 2 REEE 116,794 55,000
Impairment of contract assets AHEEZRE 47,162 2,723
Impairment of receivables FEUWEE R BB 23,271 3,160
Depreciation e 7,303 6,806
Auditor’s remuneration % SN B
— Audit —EZ 1,856 1,520
— Non-audit —IEEX 232 223
Operating lease rental on land, buildings £ - EFRBFAEREZ
and office equipment waEle 12,515 12,380
Fair value gain on investment properties S EWE 2 A EWE (1,400) (2,000)
Doubtful debt recovery Ui o] 22 BR (339) (19,818)
Bank interest income HRITH BWA (238) (292)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — M B A R 2 W (183) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR ZERE 623 =
Intangible asset write off MWiHER A E - 33,907
Interest income from former ultimate R B RIS AIE A |) 2 K BULA
holding company - (8,419)
8 STAFF COSTS, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 8 S8IMNBIEESME)
EMOLUMENTS
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T BT T
Wages and salaries ITENHS
— included in cost of sales — T ASHE A 568,462 582,590
— included in general and administrative ~ — st A —#& RITHEI X%
expenses 82,364 95,492
Pension — defined contribution scheme Bk & — AEH T2
— included in cost of sales — T ABEERKAK 19,707 19,540
— included in general and administrative ~ — 5 A —#& M 1TEFI X
expenses 2,430 2,819
Share option expenses BB RS - 339
672,963 700,780
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9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9 EBRNINIER
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (in HK$'000) (a) ESME (BETIT)
The remuneration of every directors is set out below: BESZEHHEIMAT
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2018F 1231 AILEE
Employer’s
contribution to
a retirement
benefit
Fees Salary* scheme* Total
EEHERK
Name of Directors EEnR e e BBz MR @t
Executive Directors BTES
Kingston Chu Chun Ho Kk 150 1,200 60 1,410
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 23kE 150 2,239 18 2,407
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Lau Man Tak Eye 240 - - 240
Eric Lee Hon Man THV 240 - - 240
Wong Yun Kuen =R 240 - - 240
Kan Fook Yee' iath 91 - - 91
1,111 3,439 78 4,628
* Except for the Independent Non-Executive Directors, the amounts @ MIBYIERITESRIN XSS FEIER
represented emoluments in respect of services provided in IBMABTEAN T KEN B AR
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or 1T 2 B2 RIS UER 2 B & -

its subsidiaries undertaking.

1 Retired as an Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from 1 201845 A 18 B #B iR (£ %8 32 JE#
18 May 2018 TESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE2017F12A31 HIEFE

Estimated Employer’s
money  contribution
value of 1o a retirement

Fees Salary* other benefits* benefit scheme* Total
EEHRIK
Hittahlz wAlErEl
Name ofDiectors 515 e o GHEREE  2gR e
Executive Directors HTES
Kingston Chu Chun Ho' NGO 122 974 - 40 1,136
Terence Leung Siu Cheong Z2KE 150 2,420 52 18 2,640
Joseph Choi Kin Hung? B fEee 28 250 - - 278
Lui Chun Pong? =R 28 45 - 2 75
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Lau Man Tak® Bl fEe 62 - - - 62
Eric Lee Hon Man® 3@ 62 - - - 62
Wong Yun Kuen By 20 - - - 20
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan’ 0 220 - - - 220
Kan Fook Yee et 240 - - - 240
Wong Tsan Kwong? =R 240 - - - 240
David Yu Hon To® RS 240 - - - 240
1,412 3,689 52 60 5,213
* Except for the Independent Non-Executive Directors, the amounts * MRIBIERITESIN  ZESEEHR
represented emoluments in respect of services provided in REBEEEAN AR SEN B AR
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or T2 BB 2 IRBWE 2B -
its subsidiaries undertaking.
1 Appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 9 March 2017 1 H2017F3 AR BEZE AW TES
2 Resigned as Executive Directors with effect from 9 March 2017 2 H2017 63 RO AERENITES
8 Appointed as Independent Non-Executive Directors with effect 8 H2017F9A 28R ER T AB L
from 28 September 2017 IFERITES
4 Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director with effect g H2017F12A1HREZTEAB YL
from 1 December 2017 EMITES
5 Resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director with effect g 2017612 A1 B #£E T B IEH
from 1 December 2017 TESE
6 Resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Directors with effect E 201841 A1 A BHE B IEHNTT
from 1 January 2018 =
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(b) Interest of Directors

(i) During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to
the directors; nor are any payable (2017: Nil). No
consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2017: Nil).

(i) There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of directors, their controlled bodies corporate
and connected entities (2017: Nil).

(i)  No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2017: Nil).

(c) Five highest paid individuals

During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group include one director (2017:
one) whose emoluments are included in note 9(a). The
emoluments payable to the other four (2017: four) highest
paid individuals during the year are as follows:
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(b) EBIEZ

(c)

) NAFE IERNEFHE
kA & X RAF R INTR
M- BRAKLESRB M
AR - IR AE (A B Uk PR
T2 HIB(20174F : &) - W
ERESESREGMERNL
FE=TT LI Y 2 B (2017
FE)

(i) WEER EERSEAIL
B RECEEERELE
RAEEBAIHBAZRS
(2017 4F : #&) »

(i) MAFERIRAEEEM
AT EFEARRRIMYZ
EBARREBZEAR
5 RHREH  MARF
EEEENHEERETHE
BEAER (2017 - |) o

hiugSHAL

RER  AEBRUSZSFALE
F—202017F: —R)EE |
E2HMeBEENHFEI)  AF
A A FEMMNE (2017 4F & T
B EEFATZHEFBOT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits e FRREYH =

in kind 5,838 7,257

Pension — defined contribution BRE — REHERETE
scheme 278 272
Share options expense B AR HE R ST - 84
6,116 7,613
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The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the EATHBEN TATEE
following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
Emolument band [
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 T2
78 2,000,000 7T 4 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 75# 2,000,001 T2
V& 3,000,000 7T -
4 4
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group RER - ANEE W B ER AR
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an mEFATZAERME - ERREE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as IAS N AZR & B B 89 B & s 1 A
compensation for loss of office. BERLAHE o
10 SHARE OPTION SCHEME 10 BERRiEstEl
The Company had the Share Option Scheme (details of which RRARHREERES S (BEAFBINRAR
have been set out on pages 66 to 70 of this report). Under the HEGBET0H) o RIBHRETE
Share Option Scheme, the directors may at their absolute EFGNKRHEBHNERRAESEERATLT
discretion grant options to eligible persons who are employee (BARRISENBARZIEEKES)
or directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. No share BB E - #E 2017 F K 2018412
options were outstanding as at 31 December 2017 and 2018. AB31 8L - WHEEARITE 2 EBAREE
Movements in the share options under the share option scheme BEME  RBERERTE 2 BREL
during the last 2 years are shown as follows: BETIRMAN ¢
Average Number of
exercise price share options
FHTEE BRERE
(HK$ per share) '000
(BB T
As at 1 January 2017 R2017%F1 H1H 0.95 4,786
Exercised 2176 0.95 (4,786)
As at 31 December 2017, MR20174 124318 -
1 January 2018 and 20181 A1H K
31 December 2018 2018 12 A31 H - =
As at 31 December 2017, the weighted average closing price of R2017F 12318 AR ABRHRE
the share of the Company immediately before the dates on B EEREE TR BH 2 InREFE Y
which no share options were exercised was HK$1.56. W {E AEEE1 .56 T °
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11 TAXATION 11718
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% MIEFENBTBNENRTIREBFE 2
on the estimated assessable profits/(losses) for the year after hEHERFOER (BB Mk B EF4&
application of available tax losses brought forward for both A B AR AT E16.5% B -
years. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the RNER 28 5NE M B I8 TR AN F E A5
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation JERTRANEKELEMERR ZIBITH
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. EHHE o
The amount of tax (credited)/charged to the consolidated mAEBEEGIA) /MR zHEBESEN
income statement represents: T
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kfa BET T BT T
Current taxation g HATE
Hong Kong profits tax BEFEH
— provision for the year —F N 4,975 7,768
— over provision in prior years —BEFEBRERE (102) (39)
Overseas tax HNRIE
— provision for the year —FRNBE - 108
Deferred taxation IERETIR 25 (6,546) (6,071)
(1,673) 1,770
The taxation on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from the RNEBBRTATEE 2 BIEER AR E P
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of FERBEREEE ZIERBA AR
the home country of the Company as follows: LUNNE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Loss before taxation FRELRIES 1R (161,937) (53,751)
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% EHRE16.5%TE
(2017: 16.5%) (2017 4F : 16.5%) (26,719) (8,869)
Effect of different taxation rates in Hi A AR R X
other tax jurisdictions -7 (134) 2,761
Over provision in prior years BAFEBRERE (131) (113)
Income not subject to taxation BAERBBA (1,217) (339)
Expenses not deductible for taxation EEH
purposes 19,714 10,427
Unrecognised tax losses/(utilisation of KERR AR (FE
previously unrecognised tax losses) BARERR ZBIREBE) 6,814 (2,097)
(1,673) 1,770

SEERERAR
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12 DIVIDEND 12 KRS

At a meeting held on 26 March 2019, the Board resolved not to 72019 £3 A26 BTz &% L =

declare final dividend for year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: FEZATHEZ2018 F£12 A31 HIE

Nil). FEERAARE (2017 F : ) -

13 LOSSES PER SHARE 13 BREE

(@) Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the @ ERENSBEIIRERERS AR
Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders by the HAREBEEBRARFRNE EITE
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BRMETHHEE -
during the year.

2018 2017
Loss attributable to equity holders A% #EHE A A EIR B8
(HK$’000) (B¥ T L) (160,018) (54,377)
Weighted-average ordinary shares BT E BRI
issued ('000) (Fm) 424,850 393,376

Basic losses per share (HK cents) BAREAREE BEL) (37.7) (13.8)

(o) The diluted losses per share for the year ended 31 () #ZE2018 £K%2017 12 A31 H
December 2018 and 2017 is the same as the basic IEFE 2 GRESEEBEEGRER
losses per share because the exercise of the Group’s EEER - RAAITTHEASEER
share options and convertible preference shares would 1 o AT S ST AR B B N R
result in a decrease in losses per share for the year. B o
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 % - i8R

Leasehold Furniture
improvements Motor vehicles and equipment Total
HEMELE AE BERRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T BETT
Cost B
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1 A1H 12,356 5,001 54,323 71,680
Exchange differences EHERE 24 134 251 409
Additions NE 1,311 748 6,529 8,588
Disposals HE (128) (962) (1,965) (3,05)
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31H8 13,563 4,921 59,138 77,622
Exchange differences EHRER (12) (77) (136) (225)
Additions NE 1,072 58 2,435 3,565
Disposals & (827) (231) (1,598) (2,656)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAT = = (177) (177)
At 31 December 2018 M2018%F12H 31 H 13,796 4,671 59,662 78,129
Accumulated depreciation 2iHiTE
At 1 January 2017 R201751 818 (6,139) (3,452) (48,654) (58,245)
Exchange differences ERER (24) (65) 211) (300)
Additions ANE (2,430) (600) (3,776) (6,806)
Disposals HE 128 950 1,914 2,992
At 31 December 2017 #20175 128318 (8,465) (3167) (50,727) (62:359)
Exchange differences R =8 13 51 125 189
Additions RE (2,683) (624) (3,996) (7,309)
Disposals HeE 826 182 1,283 2,291
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - 13 13
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12318 (10,309) (3558) (53,302) (67,169)
Closing net book value FREEFE
At 31 December 2018 N20185F12A31H 3,487 1,113 6,360 10,960
At 31 December 2017 R20174E12 A31H 5,098 1,754 8,411 15,263
SEZRERATR
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15 &M

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At 1 January »1HA1H 5,600 3,600
Unrealised gain arising from change DABEEBES 7 KEH W
in fair value 1,400 2,000
At 31 December »w12 A31H 7,000 5,600
Properties in Hong Kong held under BIETHEEREEEEME
medium-term lease (more than ten (FBB10FELHRB04)
years but less than fifty years) 7,000 5,600

Note: The investment properties were valued as of year-end date on the basis of M : B ERNERB B I S (EmE—
their open market value by an independent professional property valuer, AEH A HEREXEMERARIRAR
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. THEEEHET o

(a) Valuation processes of the Group (a) NREBZGERES

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2018 has been determined on the basis
of valuations carried out by independent valuers.
Discussion of valuation processes and results are held
between the Group’s senior management and valuers at
least once every six months, in line with the Group’s
interim and annual reporting dates. At each reporting date
the Group’s senior management:

—  verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

— assess property valuations movement when
compared to the prior period valuation report; and

— holds discussions with the independent valuers.

Change in Levels 2 and 3 fair values are also analysed at
each reporting date during the bi-annual valuations
discussions date between the Group’s senior
management.

REBEBEAAENEEREYE -
REEZIHEYENR2018F 12 A
1B Z AR ETRE [ ERE
TZHEEE - AEBESEETEA
BHEEMELENEAR (EAE
EzHHARFERSAH ) #E
T—REERFRERT® - K&
HERH AEESEEEASR

- ERBIUGERSANAE
BEE2HARE

- E M ERE R
HRES A MR E R
K

—  BEBFYHEMETHR

AEEREERARTHE_HR
F=BAREZEPNEHRE A
EIT—FREZEENREETS
il
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(b) Fair value hierarchy

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b)

The following tables analyses the fair value of investment
properties at different levels defined as follows:

— quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

— inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (Level 2).

— inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (Level 3).

Quoted prices

871 %5 ¥k = BY 51

RitERER

TREITRBRZELEYMERAR
BN BRBRZEEMT :

- FBEEXABERERMS
EZHREOCRERR) (F—
) e

- FAFBAZBEARINZ
BERABZABEBAR
B TwER(AER) XHE
BETEBER) (E=R) -

- YHERABEDNSEEZ
BEEXAEHABE(TAE
EWMABR) (E=4)

in active Significant
market for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EEEE BEARHEAM BX
AERTE L AR NG <2
ZHE A BB WA BB
(B—#%) (B=#%) (B=#&%)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT T
As at 31 December 2018 M20184F 12 A31H
Recurring fair value LEMEQNREFE
measurements
Investment properties REYE - 7,000 -
As at 31 December 2017 R2017%12 431 H
Recurring fair value EEEAAEFTE
measurements
Investment properties KEYE - 5,600 -
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during KER B BE_RRE=4H
the year. 2 BN e o
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Fair value measurements using significant other FEREXEMTHEEGAZE A
observable inputs (Level 2) REFE(E=H)
Fair value of the investment properties are derived using BEMEZ AR BEFEREELEE
the direct comparison method. This valuation method is B o WWHEETIAE FEEZY
based on comparing the property to be valued directly HETHIZ 5 2 Hih Al & L s
with other comparable properties, which have recently ETZEEZELRAEM - A © &
transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of MNEYE 2 HE G T ER - BFAE
the properties, appropriate adjustments are usually EHEE AR - MAFFEAER
required to allow for any qualitative differences that may BT YR LE 2 B 2 EfH]
affect the price likely to be achieved by the property under HlER -
consideration.
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL 16 BEEKBE
Backlog
Goodwill Trademark orders Total
LS BE RERIE @ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BETIT BETIT BT
Cost AR
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 /818 171,794 48,826 15,934 64,760
Write off during the year F A - (48,826) = (48,826)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A31HK
31 December 2018 201812 A 31 H 171,794 - 15,934 15,934
Accumulated amortisation/  Rit#iss RE
impairment
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 818 - (13,291) (15,934) (29,225)
Amortisation for the year F Ak 5K - (1,628) - (1,628)
Impairment charge for the year ~ ERFESE (65,000) - - -
Write off during the year F A - 14,919 = 14,919
At 31 December 2017 #2017 512 A31 A (55,000) - (15,934) (15,934)
Impairment charge for the year ~ ERFESE (116,794) - - -
At 31 December 2018 #2018 %512 A31 A (171,794) - (15,934) (15,934)
Net Book Value REFE
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12H31H = = = =
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 A31H 116,794 - - -
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The Company acquired the ISP business in late 2012 (the
“Acquisition”), which are the provision of alteration and addition,
demolition, renovation and conservation, fitting-out,
maintenance and construction works in Hong Kong, China and
Macau. The goodwill generated from the Acquisition was
allocated to ISP Business. The Company is required to assess
the carrying value of the goodwill annually or whenever there is
an impairment indicator in accordance with HKAS 36.

In view that ISP Business faced a very challenging business
environment recently and suffered reduction of the outstanding
workload for contracts on hand, the business performance
(including revenue and gross profit) of ISP Business is unlikely
to be significantly improved in the near future and it is inevitable
for the management to make a further provision in 2018 on all
the remaining carrying value of the goodwill of approximately
HK$116,794,000 (almost all of which was arisen from the
Acquisition), further to the provision of HK$55,000,000 made in
2017.

871 %5 ¥k = BY 51

ARRN 2012 F R = A& R FFIR
HEEB((RBERD REE TE
FORFIRR MG RN - 72 - B R
RE K& RENRBEIR - KBS
HEFELREBDEEERNKMRIFIKRIEA
BE® - ARBABFHUREFT LGS
R 36 A R BRI A A BMERE
8-

ERBERNEREFRIER XD HE
REAKBENEERERFTFERATKA
HITIEER DO REEBRR (BERER
FEF) TRAIBER T AR REBERE -
EEBH R B HE2017F B EHBE
55,000,000 T 1% + A2018 F Rt g & (&
REN 2 MEWEEEES) CMERT
BREEX)B M5 116,794,000 TTIE L B o

2016 2017 2017 vs 2018 vs

2016 2018 2017

HK$'000  HK$'000 % change HK$000 % change

BT BYTT #3asotk BETr 2BESL

Revenue e 1,716,973 1,385,749 -19.3% 839,511 -39.4%
Gross Profit EAH 86,304 64,870 -24.8% 54,177 -16.5%
Gross Margin ESp NP 5.0% 4.7% -0.3% 6.5% +1.8%
Goodwill Impairment EERE - (55,000) -100%  (116,794) -112.4%
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The revenue and gross profits of ISP Business have decreased
since 2017. The total outstanding workload for contracts on
hand as of 31 December 2018 was exceeded HK$1.0 billion,
about two-third of which is expected to be completed in 2019.
The outstanding workload for contracts on hand as of 31
December 2018 was around HK$0.4 billion less than that of last
year (2017: HK$1.4 billion). Besides, management expects a
lower gross profit margin at approximately 4% from 2019 after
considering the cost pressure of staff, subcontractors cost and
material costs in view of competitive environment.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business combination.
Assessment of any impairment of goodwill is based on the
recoverable amount of ISP Business derived from cash flow
projections with reference to approved management budget
over a three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year
period are extrapolated with terminal growth rate of 3%. A post-
tax discount rate of 13% is adopted to reflect specific risk
relating to the segment. The key assumptions adopted are the
revenue growth, gross profit margin, terminal growth rate and
discount rate, which are determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
and industry development.

Management is of the view that the assumptions used in the
impairment assessment are reasonable after considering the
value-in-use calculations methodology, and the key
assumptions adopted based on the industry and business of
ISP.

EREMEEREEEFRERENB
2017 F BT - HZ=2018F 12318 -
FHEATKRANIIRAEBBBE
1,000,000,0007C * =9 2 — BT R
20194 5EAK B E 20184 12 A 31 HHY
FHEAEKRAHDIREREERDBE
400,000,0007C (2017 4% + & ¥
1,400,000,0007 ) ° b4h + & 12 B 78 5B
019 M EMEE THRENI% &R
AHBRFRET EZEEEIKAR
71 DEEERA KRR o

BEOIREEASEERNEB IR E
SRz ReELEN - EAHERE
MFHE D2 EEREN =F 8 2 M KA
HORSRBATENERRKSH LRI
HAXBHAIKRESREFTE - IAE=F
HAUA FH)3R & 1948 3% 48 i 38 &= K
B WERABRHEITEE13% » AR
RSB ZFERR - FTANERR
REWEIERR C EF X KRERER
FHREARMR ARABRKIREBEEERT
REBBHMZRTFERNPLETE -

EEERRBEFEERNRRBS
B ERCERINEMRAEBEFETER
FTERA E 2 /MR - HIAE R E M MRk
THEEBHITERERRIRE -

150 SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to the requirements of HKAS 36 — Impairment of
Assets, the assets has to be carried at no more than their
recoverable amounts. The goodwill impairment was calculated
by reference to value-in-use model based on a three-year cash
flow projection with the assumptions as set out in the table
below.

Inherent in the development of the present value of future cash
flow forecast are assumptions and estimates derived from a
review of the expected average revenue growth rates, gross
and net profit margins, business plans, future market conditions
and inflation rates.

The Company determined the financial forecast based on the
past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The key assumptions and parameters used for
determination of the recoverable amount of the ISP Business
are as follows:

871 %5 ¥k = BY 51

RIEBESTERNE6H — BERE
MRE FREENEEENASNE
AlEERE- - mEREDNSEERER
HAMBE=_FHRSRBUHE - &
RN RAFAIRE

ARBAERBAREBHERTFEFEARS
EMEHTARSERE - ERERRMA
MR ZHRE| - RETIHION KRR
R RER R -

AABRBBERREEHMSERN
EHER IS TRR - EE = R R A
PRIA B XA WD S BT E A AR R
RR2HAT -

Note 2018 2017
M aE
Average annual revenue growth FEHEEREERE (i 1.9% 1.3%
Average gross profit margin i FER R (ii) 4% 4.4%
Terminal growth rate #3185 (iif) 3% 3%
Discount rate IR (iv) 13% 13%
Recoverable amount (HK$’000) A E e R (FET) 4,545 117,000
Notes: B
(i) Average annual revenue growth rates cover the three-year forecast period () T E W R R R R = F IR o

which is estimated based on the business past performance, outstanding
workloads as at year end and management’s expectations on the market
and industry development for each annual impairment assessment
exercise.

(ii) Lower forecasted average gross profit margin is expected relating to the
outstanding workload in light of the increasing market competition and
cost pressure over the ISP Business. The higher GP margin in 2018 mainly
resulted from key higher gross profit margin actual projects obtained in
past years.

(iii) The terminal growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rate of the relevant industry.

(iv) Post-tax discount rate applied to the post-tax cash flow forecast and
reflects specific risks relating to ISP Business segments.

FEREAAFDREBEELRER  £RH
AR TR ERENSEFEREET
EHHISRITENBARMEESL -

(ii) BERZAEMRSHRIEE XK TSHF
B8R R A AR K - TRl M AR SER T
2R FHEFREIBHIE - 2018 FHEFR
EeTZhRBatEEESKEENRSN
FARERIER -

(i) HORBRETRBAMEREEGHREFHE

(v)  BRIFTREXERANFER SRR R T
ERRAERAFRIR B K50 805 KA E R

B -
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17 CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES/ 17 BREERERE HERPNIR
CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS

2018 2017
Note HK$°000 HK$’'000
HiaE BT T BT T
Contract assets ABHEE

— contract work of ISP business — FREHRERBEES () 346,416 356,618
Impairment BE 3.1(b) (53,273) (7,324)
Total contract assets AHBERE 293,143 349,294

Contract liabilities* AHEE"
— contract work of ISP business — EANRMEEFRIEEES (i) (6,804) (14,142)
— property and facility service — MIEMR IR (4,149) (10,955)
Total contract liabilities AHBERRE (10,953) (25,097)

G As at 31 December 2017 prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, these ~ * RZT—tF+=-A=1+— El%%’i??%ﬁz%%iﬁii%

balances were classified as amounts due to customers included in the BIE165%AT  ZSBHREDRRBNEFFIA » 5t

Group's payables and accruals (note 21). AR B PR R IA I e AT R (FitsE21) ©
As at 31 December 2017, the net amount due from customers MR2017F 128310 A ERE
for contract work of HK$335.2 million recognised under HKAS MR TEBREENLERKE A
11 represented contract costs incurred plus attributable profits HEB A8 335,200,000 7T * HEEELER
less foreseeable losses amounted to HK$1,140.8 million, netted ARG R TR AT R G BB
off with progress payments received and receivables amounted 1,140,800,000 7T * 1k B WH E 570 &%
to HK$798.3 million and impairment of HK$7.3 million. JiE U B F 8 5 798,300,000 7T K R (B 78

#57,300,000 7T °

(i) Significant changes in contract assets and (i) BREENEBNEAESH
liabilities
Contract assets have decreased as the Group has fewer EHNEERY ARBRAEER
outstanding workload as at 31 December 2018 together 20184 12 A 31 HAARTEK LI2&
with the impact of the progress of contract works and L BRFREHNIREERTE
timing of work certification as at year end. RABRH A R EFTE o
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(i1) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (il) MENEEEANEE
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRIHEAEBERBHENEER
recognised in the current year related to carried-forward AR AN FER N =S5 R ER R
contract liabilities and how much related to performance AFERTHENETEEN 2
obligations that were satisfied in a prior year. H o
2018
HK$’000
BT
Revenue recognised that was included RERET A B N BELESRD
in the contract liabilities at the B R =
beginning of the period
Contract work of ISP business =N R FIRIE B X
‘AT 14,142
Property and facility services LIEYNE G b 10,955
(iii) Unsatisfied long-term contract work of ISP (iff) ERREH R ISIRIAB R EHR
business TRRIGHTIRE
The following table shows unsatisfied performance TRINFIRNE AL R EFEIEE
obligations resulting from long-term contract work of ISP EBHREBEHIEARTKELN
business. B
2018
HK$’000
BT
Aggregate amount of the transaction price AEER2018F 12 A31 HE 53k
allocated to long-term contract work of ISP E2EARTHNENE R R EFRIAR
business that are partially or fully unsatisfied as ~ ¥EEHNRES LN 5 BEEE
at 31 December 2018 1,068,400
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Management expects approximately that HK$756,100,000
to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 December 2018 will
be recognised as revenue during the next reporting
period. The remaining approximately HK$312,300,000
will be recognised in the 2020 financial year. The amount
disclosed above does not include variable consideration
which is constrained.

The Group made a provision for amounts of contract
assets of approximately HK$7,324,000 based on the
impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December
2017 which is related to Hsin Chong Group. During the
year, approximately HK$1,213,000 of contract assets that
previously impaired, were reallocated to receivables.
Based on the impairment assessment for the year ended
31 December 2018, an addition provision of
approximately HK$47,162,000 was made in relation to
the balances of several key projects mainly with Hsin
Chong Group. As a result, the total contract assets with
provision for impairment as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$53,273,000. The management
considered that there are no further material balances
with Hsin Chong Group under coming impairment
assessment.

Movements in the provision for impairment of contract
assets that are assessed for impairment collectively are as
follows:

EIEEMATEFT R 2018 F 12 A 31
H RS2 & 49K 7% 1 756,100,000
TR EER AT — S A AU
%5 o 8 78 ¥ 49312,300,000 7T #%
R2020F M FEEMBER - L
XM R AR A IR ST
BRE -

BIEHREE2017E12A31 B 1k
FERFESEEDAREWE
AEBBRAENVEERBEHNEL
7,324,0007C © &RF A - L ATE R
BzAHEELEA1,213,0007T
EEFMORERKEER - BIEHZE
2018412 A 31 B ILFE 2 B AT
H EREFrEEFESEHHEE
TH B 2 R 1E I 4978 % 47,162,000
TCRYEEONEE M o Btk - 72018 4F
128318 BEREREZED
B EBELBE 53,273,000 © &
BERABERIBENRTELE
M EEEBBEMNES

BREE (RBFERE) 2 RESR
HEHMT

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BiaE BT T BETIT
Contract Assets EHEE
At 1 January ®1A1H 7,324 9,448
Provision for impairment transferred B 8 A JEBE X~
to receivables T E R 18 (1,213) (4,847)
Provision for impairment recognised A &R
during the year BB 47,162 2,723
At 31 December ®12 A31H 53,273 7,324
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18 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 18 [EUER - RENRFATRIA
The credit period of the Group’s accounts receivable generally AEBRKERZEER RN TF0E
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2017: 30 to 60 days) and the B60H (20174 : 30ZE60H ) - XAEE 2
majority of the Group’s accounts receivable are denominated in AEBAEWERERTDIZBEE - RER
Hong Kong dollars. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable HHEI D2 BUER Z RER DT T -

by invoice date is as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Accounts receivable FE W BR FR
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 145,452 173,954
31 to 60 days 31£260H 41,098 43,424
61 to 90 days 61290 H 14,516 15,977
Over 90 days Q0B E 117,934 120,289
319,000 353,644
Retention receivables and other FE R B & ] H th FE IR IR
receivables 155,795 207,537
Receivables FE W BR X 474,795 561,181
Deposits and prepayments BREREFRIE 22,188 22,429
496,983 583,610
Impairment of accounts receivables, EWERR - ERREELR
retention receivables and other Hih W FRIE Z R E
receivables (94,812) (70,577)
402,171 513,033
Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are HREERZ RUBRES HRBHEBE L
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective GRS - R2018F 12 A31H » £978
contracts. At 31 December 2018, retention receivables held by % 19,028,000t (2017 4F : & ¥
customers for contract works amounting to approximately 39,409,0007T) X &FF #AT K TIZRFE K
HK$19,028,000 (2017: HK$39,409,000) are expected to be FEUR R Bl TR AR A 3R & BAR B AT 121 A
recovered or settled in more than 12 months from the end of BB AT o

the reporting period.
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The Group made a provision for amounts of receivables of
approximately HK$70,870,000 (after restated as at 1 January
2018) based on the impairment assessment for the year ended
31 December 2017 which was almost all of which related to
Hsin Chong Group. Approximately HK$1,213,000 of contract
assets that previously impaired were reallocated to receivables
during the year. Further provision for amounts of receivables of
approximately HK$23,271,000 based on the impairment
assessment for the year ended 31 December 2018 which
mostly related to Hsin Chong Group has been made as well.
During the year, approximately HK$339,000 of receivables
which were previously impaired has been recovered. As a
result, the total receivables with provision for impairment as at
31 December 2018 were approximately HK$94,812,000.
Details movement of provision for impairment is as follows:

As of 31 December 2018, accounts receivable of
HK$94,663,000 (2017: HK$111,892,000) were past due but
not impaired. These related to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
Accounts receivable of HK$71,517,000 (2017: HK$58,980,000)
were past due and impaired which mainly related to Hsin Chong
Group.

BRIEEHZE2017F12 A31 B IEFE K
BiE - AEBEFHREWMRREEL S
#70,870,000 7T (R 201841 A1 HE7
%) Hhpih2PEFEEEFH - &
RIEREZ & L& ELEE 1,213,000 70
ERFAAZREZERKRER - BREEHZE
201812 H31 B It FE H R A 1H -
AEBYEFIREAFEEEFHZEK
BR X B 8 49 78 #23,271,0007C ° AN &
A - BEFAURE TR B FE R F A
75 #.339,0007T ° E It - 7A20184F 12 A
31H @ FHRREREENEKEREREE A
#4975 % 94,812,000 7T ° SRIE BB E B
BT

2018412 A31 H » /& # 94,663,000
7T (2017 £ : 76 #111,892,0007T ) 2 f&
WERAEABEAKRRE - ZEHBRS
HE W EENGENE LSS -
BEH MR 2 8% 71,517,00075(2017
F @ % 58,080,0007T) Z FEWBR R EE
B EEEEGHE -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEF T BEFT

Accounts receivable FEUWBE =X
1 to 30 days 12 30H 35,447 44,256
31 to 60 days 312 60H 10,590 16,667
61 to 90 days 612 90H 3,378 20,553
Over 90 days 90 H A E 45,248 30,416
94,663 111,892
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2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
M5 BT T BEET I
Impairment of receivables AR 2 FEUWBR X
At 1 January »1H1H 70,577 82,304
Change in accounting policy SRTBOREE) - BB
— HKFRS 9 ERLErE 293 -
At 1 January (as restated) A1 A18 (BE5) 70,870 82,304
Provision for impairment HEANEEY
transferred from contract BB R
assets 17 1,213 4,847
Provision for impairment ERRZBERE
recognised 5(b) 23,271 3,160
Doubtful debts recovery qEp=s (339) (19,818)
Exchange differences fEHZER (203) 84
At 31 December M12H31H 94,812 70,577

A settlement agreement (“2018 Settlement Agreement”) was
entered with Hsin Chong on 1 June 2018, which superseded
the previous settlement agreement. This agreement requested
for the repayment of the net receivables of approximately
HK$75,779,000 as of 30 April 2018 plus interest by five
installments over the period from 1 June 2018 to 30 April 2019.
As at 31 December 2018, the total amount of net receivables of
approximately HK$75,592,000 was outstanding and to be
recovered with Hsin Chong Group under the 2018 Settlement
Agreement. On the ground that Hsin Chong has repeatedly
defaulted payments under the 2018 Settlement Agreement and
the financial deterioration of Hsin Chong Group, the Company
delivered a petition (the “Petition”) to the Court of First Instance
of High Court of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) against Hsin
Chong on 18 January 2019 that Hsin Chong be wound up by
the High Court so as to recover the outstanding debts of
approximately HK$79,000,000 including interest under the
2018 Settlement Agreement. The hearing for the Petition was
adjourned to May 2019. The Company has sought legal advice
as to actions it may take to protect its rights, and will make
further announcements as and when appropriate.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying value of the accounts receivable mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

AKAREFER2018FE6 A1 HEI &
Kk (2018 FEFHaE]) - WHZEE
Sk E H201846 A1 HEE201944
H30H % A Bi{EE B = 20184 4 A 30
B 2 %R 5K 4078 % 75,779,000 7T 5
mE e WHRKEMNERGZE - R
2018 12 A31H  $TE S BN 20184
ERBE T2 FRKERBENEE
75,592,000 7T ° R FTE B IR #5/K 2018
FEFBZETNERLTESENIK
AR - RAFR2019F 1 A 18 HIA
EFREERERNEE (S5 AR R
EREERBEFEBTENER 2
wBl)  LAREI 2018 F B K ipd T REE
fEIE 8 # 79,000,000 » 2 FHANEH
Z2019F5H « AN A Bt H AT HEA
TEENEAEER - MREEER - I
BREE R ERTIZE— P RE -

K& RHAEEcRREERRA L
AEWIER REE - AEEYESH
EEA R IEER -

SEZRARAT
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19 AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 19 [EfTIFIRpRigEzSZR1a

Amount due to non-controlling interests as at 31 December R2017F 12 31 B R (T IEIE i o=
2017 were unsecured, interest free, repayable on demand with HIBTERE 28 AEREREERM
no fixed terms of repayment and mainly denominated in Hong BAEEERARFEZNEEBER -
Kong dollars.
20 DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 FR-RERRESFE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYT T BT T
Cash and bank balance Re RIRTTEEH 89,871 92,038
Time deposits with original maturities FEEIBBE A=A N TH
less than three months FHARITIER 13,213 20,494
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEE 103,084 112,532
Time deposits with original maturities FREIBE@EBE=(AM
over three months FHARITIER 10,866 3,666
113,950 116,198
The majority of the Group’s deposits, cash and cash equivalents AEBEZGEHR BREERRESFEENE D
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. LAVS#E BB AL o
The deposits, cash and cash equivalents disclosed above and EXHENFR  BERRSEEMG
in the consolidated statement of cash flows include A& & B &% 2 K% %17,934,000 7T
HK$17,934,000 (2017: HK$32,760,000) which are held in the (2017 4F : %% 32,760,000 7T ) HH7EH
PRC. These deposits are subject to regulatory restrictions and FE ZEEFEAXEERG - AEE
are therefore not available for general use by the other entities NEMEBASHBER—RAS -

within the Group.
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21 PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21 [EfERMKLESTER
The credit period of the Group’s accounts payable generally AEEBEMERZEER BN FI0E
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2017: 30 to 60 days). The ageing 60 H (20174 : 30E£60H ) - #£E#EEH
analysis of accounts payable by invoice date is as follows: D3 2 R IR R 2 BRE DT A0 T
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BETIT
Accounts payable FE{FER X
0 to 30 days 02 30H 323,386 375,704
31 to 60 days 31 £60H 17,822 21,694
61 to 90 days 61290 H 5,727 16,286
Over 90 days 90 HM F 34,011 38,879
380,946 452,563
Retention payables, other payables ENREE  HMESERR
and accruals LESER 188,837 226,494
Amounts due to customers for EBREEZWEMN
property and facility services =it R % 2 A - 10,955
Amounts due to customers for ENEFz2IRER
contract work - 14,142
569,783 704,154
Retention payables in respect of the contracting business are AEER ZEWRE S TIIBEHERBE Y
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective R - R2018F 12 A31H » A&
contracts. At 31 December 2018, retention payables held by & 7 45 #9 78 22,250,000 7T (2017 £F -
the Group amounting to approximately HK$22,250,000 (2017: 75 119,924,000 7T ) 2 FE R [E & 78 &7
HK$19,924,000) are expected to be settled in more than 12 MRS AR 12 A& 41T -

months from the end of the reporting periods.
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 BR7K
Number of
shares Amount
BHEE &5
Note ‘000 HK$'000
iokza Th% BT T

Ordinary shares: LB

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1H 350,544 35,055

Share issued upon exercise of options TERBIREEIR T

granted under the Share Option Scheme — RBEAIER 21T Z IR D 4,786 479
Placing of new share fic & A% 0] 69,520 6,952
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 MR2017%F12 318 -

and 31 December 2018 2018 F1 A1 H X

2018412 A 31 H 424,850 42,486

Convertible preference shares AEBRE LR (ii)

At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 R2017%12 A31H -

and 31 December 2018 2018F1 A1 A K

2018412 A31 H 80,000 8,000

Ordinary shares and convertible preference = 27T R &R 2 L@k &

shares issued and fully paid ] B RS S AT

At 31 December 2018 M 201812 H31H 504,850 50,486

At 31 December 2017 M2017F12 A31H 504,850 50,486

Notes: BaE:

[0) The Company entered into a placing agreement on 12 May 2017, (0] AABR2017E5 A 12 BRI L EHE « B
pursuant to which 69,520,000 new shares of the Company were places to it 7 A § 69,520,000 A% 7 I IA B AR 8
independent investors at the placing price of HK$1.09 per share. The 109 EEBRMBLREERE - RER
completion of placing took place on 13 June 2017. R 2017F6 A13H
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(ii) 800,000,000 CPSs of HK$0.75 each were issued as part of the
consideration paid for the acquisition of ISP business in late 2012. The
rights, privileges and restrictions of the CPS are set out below:

(@) Dividend
Holder of each CPS shall have the same entitlement to dividend
and other income distribution as the holder of each ordinary share
of the Company and shall rank pari passu with ordinary shares of
the Company as to dividend payments.

(b) Return on capital
On winding up of the Company, the holder of the CPSs shall be
entitled to the return of capital on the basis of the issue price of the
CPSs and in priority to ordinary shares of the Company.

() Conversion rights
The CPSs is convertible at the option of the holder at any time after
the issue date. Conversion of the CPSs shall subject to, among
others, the minimum public float requirements stipulated under the
Listing Rules or as required by the Stock Exchange being satisfied.

(d) Conversion price
The conversion price is HK$0.75, subject to adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the CPSs. The adjustment event
includes consolidation, sub-division, right issue, issue of the
Company’s shares for cash and grant of options or warrants to
subscribe for new shares of the Company at a discount of more
than 20% of the market price.

e Redemption
The Company shall have the sole right to redeem the CPSs at any
time after the issue at the issue price of the CPSs, i.e. HK$0.75 per
share.

23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group are set out on
page 95.

871 %5 ¥k = BY 51

(i) 20124 &K 217800,000,000 8% FA% 5 #50.75
TR AR R E S IR RS B = R RS R
EBHREN - - ATRRETRZE
F -~ FEEEFIBRBIZAT ¢

(@) R
BRI B LR Z FE ARERAK
AEEBRZHFA ARBRERE MBI
ADKFEZAEREEHN - BRIKE
FHEARN B EBRZR RS -

(b) BARRE
AR ELRZFEABREIRER
BB BEEENAR R ERBEIZ A
BB BETEEEEEARE -

(©) udilierd
FA AR R AT A & E(TRERE
i) AR E Y - B AT E L
fRARFED (AR aFE) EmRAIFA
ERBMIAERZHERRIERE
& T AIHEAT o

@  LBE
HpERE0.757 - AIRIRATIRRE
R ZAER T AR - 2EALEMH
BIEAG - A HRREITAAR]
FRDAERIR S + AR B AR fE sk
SRR DA SR T (38 20% 2 T R aR 0
RATFREG ©

) =)
RRABEBBARER - ATREITAE

BB REIZETE(DERER0.75
TT) BB AT AR B SRR o

23 BRAKfEH
AEBEEEHEERNEBH -

SEERERAR
—TN\EER
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24 LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES 24 RHERBEEE

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who
have completed at least five years of service with the Group.
The amount payable is dependent on the employee’s final
salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group’s defined contribution retirement
scheme that is attributable to contributions made by the Group.

REFE(RREEN) AEEREETH
RARBRGFEELFIALMES
TEATELZENRENE —FBH
T - XIS BEDRIEEBHRK
e MRBERMETE - LMK ERE
REEFER-FORING S T R R
AREBAH 2 FH - AEBELEE LT
MEBEEAREMRSBOETREES -

The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining

obligations.
The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is RiEaBEEEBRABRAZABED AR
present value of unfunded obligation and its movements are as BNEEZREREEEHNT
follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At 1 January MW1B1H 1,380 2,378
Net charge to the income statement R &R R NRIFE
Current service cost RVER AR 75 K 2R 115 165
Interest cost FLE A 16 26
131 191
Net credit to other comprehensive income R Efb 2 E U A Pt AR EE
Remeasurements: EHFE
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from: BEUATSREEECREE
e () -
Liability experience KRR 1,076 (180)
Financial assumptions SRR (19) )
Demographic assumptions UNEE AR 2 (318)
1,055 (505)
Other HAth
Benefits paid BfEF (603) (684)
At 31 December M12H831H 1,963 1,380
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The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting REFENHEACEIEREREZNT ¢
purposes are as follows:

2018 2017
% %
Discount rate BRIR =X 1.8 1.4
Long-term salary increase rate RHHFEIERR 4.0 4.0
Long term average expected return on BEIABEHEEEY
mandatory provident fund scheme R EF 5 78 BAE] ¥
assets 3.5 3.5
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the HERMNEEHERTERREFHN
significant principal assumptions are as follows. REEEHFGAT o

Impact on defined benefit obligation
AERANEEZZE

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumptions assumptions assumptions

Rk fRERIE N Rexm L

Discount rate BEIR & 0.25% Decrease by 0.6%  Increase by 0.6%

B 0.6% 3 500.6%

Long-term salary increase rate RHFeERR 0.25% Increase by 2.1% Decrease by 2.1%

HENN2.1% B 21%

Long-term average expected BEIMEAESTEEE Y 0.25% Decrease by 1.7%  Increase by 1.7%

return on mandatory provident REITSTaHAE A 1.7% HIN1.7%

fund scheme assets
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an A EERRESTEER A —E/EREH
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In WE . MEMERERAESEES - T
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the P ERARMERAR  RELBSE
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity ZEE N Re 2 EMEBEN - S E®E
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial ENEERREZERATENETHNH
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined RRERE - B T HER A (RS EAR A
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit Bit B A KT ERERTREANEE
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied. HIR{E) °

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation M2018FE12 A31 H A E/AME F A

is 2.2 years as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 2.5 years). VESLIHARR B 2.2 (20174 : 2.54F) ©
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25 DEFERRED TAXATION 25 RIEFRIE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences BERERBREEREERM B E
under the liability method using tax rates substantively enacted REBEAREREHEHTE - BER
as at the balance sheet date. The movement on the net BH(EE)/AERBFHEZEHNT :

deferred tax (assets)/liabilities account is as follows:

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt st BET T BT
At 1 January ®W1H1H 207 6,278
Deferred taxation recognised in REEEESRERZ
consolidated income statement ERERLIE 11 (6,546) (6,071)
At 31 December ®12 H31H (6,339) 207
The movement on the deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to EEBEEELBE(RIBREER 5 ERE
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) EHSHAE AR ) RANE R ST -
during the year is as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets
BEHERE EEHEEE
Accelerated Accounting
tax Intangible tax
depreciation assets Total depreciation  Tax losses Total
MEBIENE BREE Bt enBERE BEEE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BT BRI BRI

At 1 January 2017 R2017E1H1H 494 5,862 6,356 (78) - (78)
Credited to consolidated R4 ABRRTA

income statement (246) (5,862) (6,108) - - -
Charged to consolidated WA BRERAGR

income statement - - - 37 - 37
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 248 - 248 (41) - (41)
Credited to consolidated ~ R&RABERRFTA

income statement (59) - (59) (443) (6,044) (6,487)
At31December2018 R 2018412 531 A 189 - 189 (484) (6,044) (6,528)
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of HK$117,160,000 (2017:
HK$88,944,000) to carry forward against future taxable income.
Tax losses amounting to HK$60,808,000 will expire at various
dates up to and including 2023 (2017 up to and including 2022:
HK$53,230,000). The remaining tax losses do not have expiry
dates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance

871 %5 ¥k = BY 51

RAEENTHEBENERNECHEE
EERREBoMBENEREITEER
RIRERBRMNERNIHD - XEEZ
RIERTIAEE - BB 117,160,000
76 (2017 4F : 5 %88,944,0007T) * A 4%
VKRR 2 FERFIURA - BEUEE
60,808,000 FIEEEKNEZERE
FE2023F (2017 FHEZE K B 152022 4 :
7 53,230,000 7T) &I -N R B HAJE W © 84
TR BBEL EERBE -

ERAEANITENATBERRAEE
HEHPHRBRERE  METHEBEIR
R —BI R RE - BRI EEE TR IR A A
EXER AR BEEEE - £t ABE R
MR NIEREGRABEERBRAL

sheet. iR o
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEETIT
Deferred tax assets BELEFIREE (6,528) 41)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERERE 189 248
(6,339) 207
26 BANK LOANS 26 IRITEM
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET T
Portion due for repayment within one year 14 N E|Ei(E & 3D 144,000 126,402
Portion due for repayment after one year, 151 2| EREZE 25 -
which contains a clause of repayment BESREBIEK
on demand
(i) inthe second year () E2F 22,000 24,000
(i) in the third to fifth years, inclusive (i) EIESF(BEEEMSE) - 12,000
166,000 162,402
SEZRERATR
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Notes: Bt 3E

(@  Asat 31 December 2018, the Group had bank loans of HK$166,000,000 (@) R2018F 12 A31H - XEBMARITERE
(2017: HK$162,402,000) denominated in Hong Kong dollars. ¥ 166,000,000 7T (2017 F : & #

162,402,000 7T) bAJE B AHE

()  The bank loans of the Group carried weighted average interest rates of (o) REEZBITERZ IETFHERNER4.5%
4.5% (2017: 3.0%) per annum. (20174 : 3.0%) °

(© The Group’s term loan of HK$36,000,000 (2017: HK$60,000,000) is (© AEE 7 BB AB36,000,0007T(2017
subject to a floating charge over the assets of the Company and its F : ##60,000,0007T) * ETYEAR R K
subsidiaries. EWBARZEEEZSHAL -

(d  The Group's revolving loans of HK$90,000,000 (2017: HK$90,000,000) is () R B 2 AR E A7 #90,000,0007T. (2017
subject to a floating charge over the assets of the Company and its 4 : B ¥90,000,0007T) + ET3# AR A K
subsidiaries. HMB R R 2 BEEZBIFG °

()  The Group’s bank loan of HK$126,000,000 (2017: HK$150,000,000) is € A& E 2 17 E 5B A ¥ 126,000,000 7T
personally guaranteed by an indirect controlling shareholder. (2017 4 : 7 #150,000,0007T ) * E Ty e [

AR ARAR R A A M HEAR o

) The carrying amounts of loans approximate their fair values. 4} ERHREEEEARLEEE -

27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27 RETHERIE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses under BB HECEHERN BRI AH
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: KBS ERBRENT :
Land and buildings Office equipment
T REF WRELRE
2018 2017 2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT BETR BT

Within one year — %R 9,553 11,027 366 395

In the second to fifth F_FRERF
years inclusive (BIEEEMT) 3,667 7,825 697 918
13,220 18,852 1,063 1,313

166 SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e
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28 NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 28 AT XM
Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash generated from/ BREAIBRELEEBEE (FA)Z
(used in) operations: MEHIRR -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Loss before taxation FRELRIES 1R (161,937) (53,751)
Share option expenses ERERS - 339
Depreciation e 7,303 6,806
Amortisation of intangible assets A B - 1,628
Impairment loss on goodwil AEREERE 116,794 55,000
Impairment of contract assets AHEERME 47,162 2,723
Impairment of receivables FEUW R FURE 23,271 3,160
Interest income B A (238) (8,712)
Interest expenses B 6,235 5,291
Fair value gain on investment properties "EYHE AR BERE (1,400) (2,000)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME WS REHE 2
plant and equipment Eia, (kas) 38 (184)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR ZER 623 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — KB AR 2 W (183) -
Loss on write-off of intangible asset WEsER L E 2 B8 - 33,907
Operating profit before working EEESHE A KL RN
capital changes 37,668 49,207
Decrease in contract assets BB ERD 8,989 59,395
Decrease/(increase) in receivables FEURBR TR (4 40) 87,012 (95,791)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits T RIS FRIE g m), R
and prepayments (4,187) 3,953
Decrease in amounts due to other FEA E A HL R4S & B A R TE R
partner of joint operation (15) -
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to JE 1~ S22 AR 25 IR
non-controlling interest CRA) /1N (153) 66
Decrease in payables and accruals and EEER - BETBERA R
long service payment liabilities RERGEE8ERLD (118,448) (49,732)
Cash generated from/(used in) RERREE (BRA) 2RSS
operations 10,866 (82,902)
SEZRERATR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

871 55 i 2% B9 5

Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the

FIEBEER

$Eﬁ7§IJ$JC 2B FEB DM LF

movements in net debt for each of the period presented. B
Net debt 2018 2017
BEH HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET I
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHESEME 103,084 112,532
Time deposits with original maturities [REHA B8R = 8 A T HifE R
over three months 10,866 3,666
Borrowings — repayable within one year &3 — R—FRNEE (144,000) (126,402)
Borrowings — repayable after one year B — R—F1&EE (22,000) (36,000)
(52,050) (46,204)
Cash and cash equivalents WERREEE 103,084 112,532
Time deposits with original maturities REEFE BB = A T HFER
over three months 10,866 3,666
Gross debt — variable interest rates MAEFE — FEFR (166,000) (162,402)
(52,050) (46,204)
Liabilities from
Other assets financing activities
HtEE RMEEKEL AR
Time
deposits Borrowings- Borrowings-
with original due for due for
Cash and maturities  repayment  repayment
cash over three  within one after one
equivalents months year year Total
REHA &R — BX -
Hek H@A=fEA R—FR R—&#
Be%E EHER FHEE FEmEER @t
Net debt as at 1 January 2018 7201841 A1 H
2 IBER 112,532 3,666 (126,402) (36,000) (46,204)
Cash flows Heme (8,615) 7,200 (17,598) 14,000 (5,013)
Foreign exchange adjustments [ i J5 % (833) - - - (833)
Net debt as at R2018F12A31H
31 December 2018 ZRER 103,084 10,866 (144,000) (22,000) (52,050)
Net debt as at 1 January 2017 20171 A 1R
ZRER 111,723 17,561 (204,000 - (74,716)
Cash flows Bene (1,204) (13,895) 77,598 (36,000) 26,479
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ [E 3 12 2,033 - - - 2,033
Net debt as at R2017F12 A31H
31 December 2017 ZHER 112,582 3,666 (126,402) (36,000) (46,204)
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29 LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 29 LHEMBASIMER
Hsin Shun Metal Fabrication Company Limited and Hsin Shun e B RBERARMMIECES)
(Dongguan) Metal Fabrication Company Limited*, which are BRERERARRUSRERHEEZRLER
60% owned subsidiaries of the Company and engaged in o N B Rl iE B NN B HE A 60% H MY B
provision of direct metal work and curtain wall fabrication, were AAE] R2018F 6 AEHE °

disposed in June 2018.

Total
st
HK$’000
BT T
Net assets disposed EHEEEFE
Property, plant & equipment VI - BN RE 164
Receivables FEU AR K 1,490
Deposits and prepayments e RIBFFIA 4177
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkBeEHE 1,513
Payables and accruals FER R ERTE A (5,394)
Amount due to non-controlling interests FEAT SRV AR I 25 IR (1,153)
Taxation payable FEIRRIE (130)
667
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR e B 1,404
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HEREIRIE X EE 1562
Net assets disposed EHEEEFE 2,223
Consideration RE 1,600
Net assets disposed BHEEEFE (2,223)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE (623)
Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal HEZREARANEE
Cash received (Note) BUE S (FisE) =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of TERERBESSE (1,513)
(1,513)
Note: The cash consideration was not yet settled as at 31 December 2018, MizE : M 2018F 12 A31 A MABBEHNBELRER
which was recognised as other receivables in the consolidated balance HEBEABRERSEMERTIE -
sheet.
* For identification purposes only

FEZERERAF
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30 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

ISP Project Services (Vietnam) Company Limited,

owned subsidiary engaged in fitting-out work and construction

services in Vietnam, was disposed in December 2018.

30 WE—REASZEE

MEREREIERBEERBENZE
B /& A &]ISP Project Services (Vietnam)
Company Limited * 72018412 At % o

a wholly

Total
st
HK$’'000
BT IT
Net assets disposed EHEEEFE

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEHE 70
Payables and accruals FERT R R BT A )
Net assets disposed EHEEEFHE 67
Consideration RE 250
Net assets disposed BEHEEEFE 67)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R A Bz s 183

Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal HEZHEESRANBE
Cash received (Note) BUERE (F13E) =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERERASEFE (70)
(70)

fizE © M2018F 12 A31 HHABBHNESRER
REBEARBRRERBHEMBTIE -

Note: The cash consideration was not yet settled as at 31 December 2018,
which was recognised as other receivables in the consolidated balance

sheet.

BEALTRS
(a) FTBERASHH

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31

(a) Key management personnel compensation

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits e FEYRREYH

in kind 33,725 40,263

Pension — defined contribution BiRke — REHKEE
scheme 1,140 1,218
Share option expenses AEAR MR - 266
34,865 41,747
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(b) Related party transactions (b) FAEBALXRZ
Summary of the related party transactions carried out by REARKEET2HAEATRS
the Group during the year are follows: BMEWNT :
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KaE BET T BT T
Service charges paid to ERNZIVNCIEEN S
— Company controlled by — H—RESE
a director /N 0] (202) -
— Company with common — B —E L RES
controlling shareholder MR Z A F] (i) - (1,097)
Services income from KE T AR Z RN
— Company with common — A EERENER
controlling shareholder S /NG| (iii) 2,874 1,760
Repair and maintenance KB TSR R 2 #E
income from RIREBHRA
— Company with common — B EHEENER
controlling shareholder S WA/NG]| (iv) 4,637 =

Contracting work’s income from 2R B N3I|/A 7] 2

BHTRKA
— Company with common — B —M R
controlling shareholder [ W d/NG | (v) 2,053 -
Notes: P E
() Service charges paid in respect of typesetting, translation and () PBEAR B2 R EDRI AR5 =2 1+
printing services were mutually agreed by both parties. MR 2B E g B
5
(ii) Service charges paid in respect of commission and documentation (i MEESFEZAERXHEX
fee for placing were mutually agreed by both parties. NZRIBE - HRETTHEM
LHY o
(i~ Services income earned on services including property (i)  BEERE(BENEER -
management, asset management services, consultancy fee, BEEERRY BRE- R
security, repair and maintenance, laundry, cleaning, etc. rendered - BIERRE  KRRFR
was mutually agreed by both parties. FRS) R Z BRI YA - T3
1RG5 15 MR o
(iv) Repair and maintenance income represents fees earned on repair (iv) HE RIRBEWATE R4S KRR
and maintenance works. The prices and terms were mutually BTRRRZ B - B RIE
agreed by both parties. HEHEFRE -
(v Contracting work’s earned from fitting-out projects, were mutually v  HMEREBEERRIANIRE
agreed by both parties. THHEEE T 173 5 T YER ©

FEZERERAF
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 32 KnroEEaERKk#BEE
THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company K IEEEBR/R

As at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BEET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - HWESNERE 36 63
Subsidiaries SIEPNG 89,204 89,204
Total non-current assets FRBEERTE 89,240 89,267
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments Ee KA FIR 312 307
Amounts due from subsidiaries GRS NGIE S 8,608 193,009
Deposit, cash and cash equivalents e RekBesk 29,264 24,178
Total current assets REBEEHATE 38,184 217,494
Current liabilities REEE
Payables and accruals FERTER TR K JERT & A 1,914 2,898
Bank loan RITER 36,000 60,000
Total current liabilities BB EAE 37,914 62,898
Netcurrentassets RBEEFE 210 | 154,596
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERRBERE 89,510 243,863
Non-current liabilities knBERE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBGEE 6 10
Total non-current liabilities FHRBEEHEE 6 10
Netassets HEFE 89,504 : 243,853
Equity attributable to equity holders A2 TR EEIEA A IS

of the Company

Share capital A& 2R 50,486 50,486
Retained profits/accumulated losses and 1R BT, 2i&HBE R

other reserves H 39,018 193,367

Total equity EREEE 89,504 243,853

ARAFREERBREEZTEN201943
H26B#tE  WHATATREEE -

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 26 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf.

Kingston Chu Chun Ho k8%
Chairman /&

Terence Leung Siu Cheong 23k &
Director & 5
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Reserve of the Company KRAIFEE

Employee ((Accumulated

share losses)/
Share Share Contributed option retained Total
capital premium surplus reserve profit equity

e (RatER)/
R Rt aE HABR BRERE REEF ERAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTT BRI BRI BRI BE T BRI

At 1 January 2017 R2017E151H 43,055 114,143 82,601 255 (16,154) 223,900
Loss attributable to equity holders ARRIRIER B AEEER

of the Company - - - - (58,500) (58,500)
Placing of new shares REHRNM 6,952 66,777 - - - 73,729
Share option scheme BRiEE - - - 195 - 195
Issue of shares upon exercise of RITFEBREm BT

share options 479 4,500 - (450) - 4,529
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12831H 50,486 185,420 82,601 - (74,654) 243,853
Loss attributable to equity holders KARIRERE AEGER

of the Company - - - - (154,349) (154,349)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 128318 50,486 185,420 82,601 - (229,003) 89,504
Note: BT -
The contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated MABRIENE R B4R E IR E € BN A A7 2003
shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s FEREHEBRKBZSHBARREITZAAT
shares issued for the acquisition of these subsidiaries at the time of the Group’s BHOEEMEMERE - BRIEEGRZE1981FRARPEK
reorganisation in 2003. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as E5]) » ARE ] AMABBRAEEKRREH DR

amended), the Company may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus.

33 HOLDING COMPANY 33 R G
The directors regarded Champ Key Holdings Limited, a % = i Champ Key Holdings Limited (7
company incorporated in British Virgin Islands, as its ultimate RBEZHESHEMNLHAR) AEHEK
holding company. PERRAA] o

SEERERAR
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

34 FEMBERT

Place of
incorporation Issued and paid up/ Effective percentage
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital of interest held
£ SMAIRELHY TBER BRTRAR/ERRA FEERERA AL
2018 2017
Interest held directly:
EREAER:
Synergis Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ' Investment holding 100,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
KBRAHE REER HK$0.1 each
100,000 R B R E(E
BB Tz EBR
Driven Power Management Limited  British Virgin Islands " Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
RBRAHE REER US$1 each
100REREE1XT
LER
Interest held indirectly:
BERERER
Synergis Management Services  Hong Kong Provision of property management 206,837 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Limited 55 services and investment holding HK$1 each
AREBRBEERAR RENZERRERREER 206,837 R BREE
BT ERR
Synergis Facility Management Hong Kong Provision of facility 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Limited B management services HK$1 each
ARREERARAA AR E R R 2REREEEE T
LRk
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong Provision of maintenance 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
HARBERAR i contracting HK$1 each
REREAD 2REREEEE T
ZERR
SecurExpert Solutions Limited Hong Kong Provision of security and 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
MERERBERAR BB consultancy services HK$1 each
RERE KRR 2RBREEEEIT
ZERR
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Place of
incorporation Issued and paid up/ Effective percentage
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital of interest held
£R SMRIRELHE  FTEER BRORMR/ERRE FEERERA A
2018 2017
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of laundry services 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
FRERBARRR Bl RETKIRS HK$1 each
2REREEEEIT
FAK
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of cleaning services 200,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
RERBBRAR i RAUERRT HK$1 each
200,000 R BREE
BEITERR
SynWave Services Limited Hong Kong Sales of products, provision of 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%
MRBREERAR B copying services and property 1 REEB S 172 EER
holding
HEEM  RELERER
BENR
ISP Interiors Limited Hong Kong Provision of fitting-out, renovation 5,000,000 ordinary share of 100% 100%
AMEREHER AR & and addition and alteration works ~ HK$1 each
REEAKE - BHEIER 5,000,000 B REE
BEIR BRI ERR
ISP Construction (Engineering) Hong Kong Provision of demolition work, 22,000,000 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited & addition and alteration works and ~ HK$1 each
AORER(TR)BRAR special construction projects 22,000,000 EREE
REFRIRENERAEIR BEITZERR
REHEEER
ISP Curtain Wall and Aluminum Hong Kong Provision of curtain walling, 100,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Products Limited i cladding & related products HKS1
AHBERREHNERAR RERE  ERRABER 100,000f BIREE
BE 1T ERR
ISP Sourcing Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of procurement and 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 100% 100%
AMFEREERAR B supply chain services and 2REREEEEIT
trading business L ERR

REFERALERRER
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Place of
incorporation Issued and paid up/ Effective percentage
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital of interest held
£ SMRIRELHY  FTEER BRARMRE/ERKRE FEERERA AL
2018 2017
Everich Construction (Macau) Macau Provision of renovation and MOP$25,000 100% 100%
Limited il fitting-out works 25,0002 %
BHEE(RM) BRAR REBMRERRH IR
Synergis Property Management ~ PRC (wholly owned Provision of property management, ~ RMB31,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ? foreign enterprise) repair and maintenance of AR 31,000,000
AENEER(MIERAR  REGMEBELE)  sophisticated equipment and indoor
cleaning services, and property
management consultancy services
REMEKER  BERETER
RERBZRS - ARMEEE
BRIR
Synergis Property Services (Beiing)  PRC (wholly owned Provision of property and facility RMB32,000,000 100% 100%

Co. Ltd. 2 foreign enterprise) management servioes, property AR #:32,000,000 7
AEMERK(OLR)ERAR FE(HNEBELE)  agentand property consultancy
servioes
RENFRIHERRY  FiE
mE L EEBERRE

ZARR—HMEEZERAR  UEARKE
HE o

! This is an investment holding company with no specific place of operation. !

ZEW M AR A - 2 HEF -

a These are not registered company names but merely for identification 2
purposes only.

35 JOINT OPERATION 35 HEKEE
Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
A8 gk TEER 2R
2018 2017
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Joint Hong Kong Construction 50% 50%
Venture (02) BB ey
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFf iR

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT A& AT BT BT
Operating Results REEE
Revenue W 1,532,986 2,083,300 2,433,471 2,447,379 1,906,253
Operating profit/loss BRGEIEE 2
before exception items BEEH/BE 26,674 20,418 63,718 81,593 69,569
Other (expenses)/income Hip (), A (1,723) 803 (5,157) (14,069) (13,471)
Intangible asset write off WiHEREE - (33,907) (1,755) - -
Doubtful debt recovery qEpgE 339 19,818 - - -
Impairment of contract asset ~ A#)EE K EW
and receivables ERRE (70,433) (5,883) (91,752) = =
Impairment loss on goodwil EEZMEBR (116,794) (55,000) = = -
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRAA (B1E) % F (161,937) (63,751) (34,946) 67,524 56,098
Taxation BE 1,673 (1,770) (4,766) (12,243) (10,756)
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(ER),/ 5 (160,264) (65,621) (39,712) 55,281 45,342
Non-controlling interests JEE R 246 1,144 229 - -
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity (E518),/ S FISBR
holders of the Company RARIRERE A (160,018) (54,377) (39,483) 55,281 45,342
Assets and Liabilities BERER
Assets EE
Property, plant and equipment )% + 123 K k& 10,960 15,263 13,435 6,883 8,891
Investment properties REME 7,000 5,600 3,600 3,040 2,800
Intangible assets B EE - - 35,535 40,691 48,974
Goodwill HE - 116,794 171,794 171,794 168,968
Deferred tax assets EIEHIERE 6,528 4 78 91 144
Prepayment BAFUR 2,331 2,080 1,840 - -
Current assets MEBEE 812,055 981,119 971,280 1,007,076 720,337
Total assets BELSR 838,874 1,120,897 1,197,562 1,229,575 950,114
Liabilities =1
Current liabilities nBEE 747,200 868,442 963,278 938,974 693,361
Long service payment liabilties £ HRE S & E 1,963 1,380 2,378 3,977 1,940
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE 189 248 6,356 7,232 8,859
Total liabilities BELSE 749,352 870,070 972,012 950,183 704,160
Non-controling interests IRPERE - (1,158) (14) (1,211) -
Equity attributable to equity ARAIRERE A
holders of the Company FefhiEss 89,522 251,985 225,564 280,603 245,954
SEZRERATR
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MAJOR PROJECTS
ET2TizRB

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS

REETPER2TiRIAB

Commencement  Anticipated
Description Group’s Interest Date Completion Date  Client/Ultimate Employer
e rEEMGRE BIRS BEHATHE BF/BRET
INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS
EREBRISHER
Facade Works of Kowloon East Regional Headquarters and 100% July 2016 June 2019 Build King Construction Limited
Operational Base cum Ngau Tau Kok Divisional Police 20167 A 201946 A
Station at 105 Concorde Road, Kai Tak
HEHRE 100 RRNELR G RITHEN
ELFANREZNERIMETR
Builder Works for Automation of Arrival Bags Delivery 100% September 2017 August 2019 ATAL Engineering Limited
at Hong Kong International Airport 201759 A 2019%8 A RETRARAR
BRERRZ AR TERIEE DI MRETR
Commercial Building Development at 2C82D Lau Li 100% August 2018 November 2019 Success Seeker Limited
Street & 68-70 Electric Road, Hong Kong 201848 A 2019 11 A AEERAR
BB E2C R2DF AR ERE6S-T05H)
BREARERER
The Proposed Residential Development at No. 2 100%  November 2018 November 2019 Design Corporation Limited
Headland Road, Replus Bay, Hong Kong, R.B.L. 676 201811 A 2019F 11 A
Superstructure Works
BREKEHBERNESETERER
AR 6765 FETR
Architectural Builders Works and Finishes Management 100%  October 2018 December 2019 Blue Poles Limited
Services Trade Contract for M+ Museum Project at West 201810 A 2019412 A
Kowloon Cultural District
BABANE 2 M+ BERER MBETRR
KEEERKESHN
Reprovision of an Indoor All-Weather Swimming Pool at Po 100%  August 2017 April 2020 The Incorporated Management
Leung Kok Camoes Tan Siu Lin Primary School 201748 A 20204 A Committee of Po Leung Kok

at 6 Hoi Ting Road, Tau Ma Tei, Kowloon
BENEMIUEEE6RNRRBRTC 28
ERRRERKD
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MAJOR PROPERTIES
E2MF

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 12018 F 12 H31 B ERE 2%

2018
Percentage of
Group’s Interest
Description Use Status Lease Term A& B Fr b
Ea A% AR HEFH EEED
Car Park Nos. P250, P251, P252, P253, P254, Carpark Rental Medium 100%
P255, P256 and P257, Sun Hing Garden, AE{ ekl # £

No. 2 On Po Lane, Tai Po, New Territories.
24/64,299th shares of and in
Tai Po Town Lot No. 26

RN B 2SR ¥ EIEE P250 « P251 - P252
P253 » P254 ~ P255 + P256 & P257 SR B AT
0 E% 26 5% 55 64,299 1) 2 24 17

SEERERAR
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BARACE R EB AR

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

B LEESRTARDA

Chong Hing Bank Limited

BIERTARRA

0-Bank Co., Ltd

TEBERTRNBERAA

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM 11
Bermuda

7/F. Linkchart Centre
2 Tai Yip Street
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
EENEER
REH 2

BER LT

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

BT REHEDERAE

EREFERRBR183%

ARMROATEAT12-1716 54

02340
4,000 shares
4,000 %
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info@synergis.com.hk
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